COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

In the Matter of:

ELECTRONIC APPLICATION OF DUKE ENERGY
KENTUCKY, INC. FOR (1) AN ADJUSTMENT OF
ELECTRIC RATES; (2) APPROVAL OF NEW
TARIFFS; (3) APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTING
PRACTICES TO ESTABLISH REGULATORY
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES; AND (4) ALL OTHER
REQUIRED APPROVALS AND RELIEF

Case No.
2022-00372
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NOTICE OF FILING

Notice is given to all parties that the following materials have been filed

into the record of this proceeding:

- The digital video recording of the evidentiary hearing
conducted on May 11, 2023 in this proceeding;

- Certification of the accuracy and correctness of the
digital video recording;

- All exhibits introduced at the evidentiary hearing
conducted on May 11, 2023 in this proceeding;

- A written log listing, inter alia, the date and time of
where each witness’ testimony begins and ends on the

digital video recording of the evidentiary hearing
conducted on May 11, 2023.

A copy of this Notice, the certification of the digital video record, and hearing
log have been served upon all persons listed at the end of this Notice. Parties
desiring to view the digital video recording of the hearing may do so at

https://youtu.be/S BZ93HmxSsE.



https://youtu.be/S_BZ93HmxsE

Parties wishing an annotated digital video recording may submit a written
request by electronic mail to pscfilings@ky.gov. A minimal fee will be assessed for a
copy of this recording.

Done at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 19t day of July 2023.

o Bt

Linda C. Bridwell

Executive Director
Public Service Commission of Kentucky
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CERTIFICATION

I, Candace H. Sacre, hereby certify that:

1. The attached flash drive contains a digital recording of the Formal Hearing
conducted in the above-styled proceeding on May 11, 2023. The Formal Hearing Log,
Exhibits, and Exhibit List are included with the recording on May 11, 2023;

2. | am responsible for the preparation of the digital recording;

3. The digital recording accurately and correctly depicts the Formal Hearing of

May 11, 2023; and

4. The Formal Hearing Log attached to this Certificate accurately and correctly
states the events that occurred at the Formal Hearing of May 11, 2023, and the time at
which each occurred.

Signed this sﬁl day of June, 2023.

Candace H. Sacre
Administrative Specialist Il

Stephanie Schweighardt
Kentucky State at Large ID# KYNP 64180
Commission Expires: January 14, 2027




Session Report - Detail 2022-00372 11May2023

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (Duke

JUSTICE AFSOLUTIONS Kentucky)
Date: Type: Location: Department:
5/11/2023 Public Hearing\Public Hearing Room 1 Hearing Room 1 (HR 1)
Comments

Witness: Richard Baudino; Steve Chriss; Randy Futral; Lane Kollen; Patricia Kravtin; Sarah Lawler; Bruce Sailers; Sarah
Shenstone Harris; Amy Spiller

Judge: Kent Chandler; Angie Hatton; Mary Pat Regan

Clerk: Candace Sacre

Event Time Log Event
9:09:12 AM Session Started
9:09:35 AM Video Conference Activated
9:09:37 AM Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Back on the record in Case No. 2022-00372.
9:09:42 AM Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Next witness?
9:09:46 AM Atty Herring Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace Bruce Sailers.
9:09:52 AM Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Witness is sworn.
9:10:00 AM Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Examination. Name and address?
9:10:19 AM Atty Herring Duke Kentucky - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Direct Examination. Title?
9:10:37 AM Atty Herring Duke Kentucky - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Cause be filed testimony and responses?
9:10:43 AM Atty Herring Duke Kentucky - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Changes?
9:11:11 AM Atty Herring Duke Kentucky - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Also changes to tariff schedules?
9:11:48 AM Atty Herring Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace Copies of tariff changes. (Click on link for further comments.)
9:11:56 AM Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Provide those and identify ones would like to name 2, 3, and 4.
(Click on link for further comments.)
9:11:57 AM MARKED - HEARING EXHIBIT DK 2
Note: Sacre, Candace ATTY HERRING DUKE KENTUCKY - WITNESS SAILERS
Note: Sacre, Candace TARIFF DATED 2022 WITH MARK-UP
9:11:58 AM MARKED - HEARING EXHIBIT DK 3
Note: Sacre, Candace ATTY HERRING DUKE KENTUCKY - WITNESS SAILERS
Note: Sacre, Candace TARIFF DATED 2023 CLEAN COPY
9:11:59 AM MARKED - HEARING EXHIBIT DK 4
Note: Sacre, Candace ATTY HERRING DUKE KENTUCKY - WITNESS SAILERS
Note: Sacre, Candace TARIFF IN EFFECT WITH MARGIN NOTES
9:17:15 AM Atty Herring Duke Kentucky - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Walk through changes made on these?
9:17:49 AM Atty Herring Duke Kentucky - witness Sailers

Note: Sacre, Candace Remaining exhibits show change required by Schedule L?
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9:17:59 AM

9:18:00 AM

9:18:01 AM

9:18:16 AM

9:18:19 AM

9:18:25 AM

9:18:32 AM

9:18:43 AM

9:19:02 AM

9:19:15 AM

9:19:45 AM

9:20:27 AM

9:21:14 AM

9:21:45 AM

9:21:51 AM

9:22:00 AM

9:22:07 AM

9:22:17 AM

9:22:38 AM

9:23:17 AM

9:23:25 AM

9:23:31 AM

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace

HEARING EXHIBIT DK 2
Note: Sacre, Candace
Note: Sacre, Candace

HEARING EXHIBIT DK 3
Note: Sacre, Candace
Note: Sacre, Candace

HEARING EXHIBIT DK 4
Note: Sacre, Candace
Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Offer Exhibits 2, 3, and 4 for the record. (Click on link for further
comments.)

ATTY HERRING DUKE KENTUCKY - WITNESS SAILERS
TARIFF DATED 2022 WITH MARK-UP

ATTY HERRING DUKE KENTUCKY - WITNESS SAILERS
TARIFF DATED 2023 CLEAN COPY

ATTY HERRING DUKE KENTUCKY - WITNESS SAILERS
TARIFF IN EFFECT WITH MARGIN NOTES
witness Sailers
Other changes?
witness Sailers
Asked same questions, answers be same?
witness Sailers
Intent testimony and data requests received as evidence?

Questions?
witness Sailers
Cross Examination. Direct testimony in front of you?
witness Sailers
Refer to page 15, lines 25-30, state that Rate RS-TOU-CPP, reading
(click on link for further comments), correct?
witness Sailers
Refer to direct testimony, page 1, lines 2-4, state regarding rate RS-
TOU-CPP, reading (click on link for further comments), correct?
witness Sailers
I apologize, in direct state, at page 15, bottom of page, discuss
benefits new tariff sheets for EV customers, correct?
witness Sailers
One of key goals of RS-TOU-CPP facilitate continuing customer
adoption of technology such as EVs?
witness Sailers
Redesign intended to promote off-peak charging?
witness Sailers
Rate design intended provide savings for EV customers?
witness Sailers
Incentivize participation off-peak charging?
witness Sailers
In order rate RS-TOU-CPP work as intended customers must enroll?
witness Sailers
Having off-peak rate intended to benefit EV customers?
witness Sailers
Rebuttal, page 2, lines 19-21, state, reading (click on link for further
comments), correct?
witness Sailers
Super off-peak rate, another name for that?
witness Sailers
Super off-peak discount same throughout?
witness Sailers
Refer direct, first attachment, second page, different residential
service rates, residential service rate RS, energy charge kW hour?
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9:24:31 AM

9:24:52 AM

9:25:11 AM

9:25:26 AM

9:25:48 AM

9:26:03 AM

9:26:07 AM

9:26:15 AM

9:26:33 AM

9:26:54 AM

9:27:23 AM

9:27:41 AM

9:28:37 AM

9:29:09 AM

9:29:36 AM

9:30:20 AM

9:30:54 AM

9:31:20 AM

9:31:38 AM

9:31:53 AM

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

witness Sailers
For customer who chooses RS-TOU-CPP, off-peak charge be what?
witness Sailers
Proposed rate residential service and proposed off-peak rate for RS-
TOU-CPP difference less than one cent?
witness Sailers
For discount per kW hour, what proposed rate for RS-TOU-CPP?
witness Sailers
Difference between proposed RS rate and super off-peak/discount
rate per kW hour?
witness Sailers
Difference between RS rate of 10.7428 cents and discount rate of
7.9534 cents less than three cents?
witness Sailers
Per kW hour?
witness Sailers
Examined Shenstone Harris testimony for writing rebuttal testimony?
witness Sailers
Have testimony in front of you?
witness Sailers
Rebuttal, do not dispute conclusions difference between on-peak
and off-peak savings per month for EV customer?
witness Sailers
Rebuttal, do not take on discussion savings for EV customer per
month?
witness Sailers
EV customers differential same as for all customers per kW hour?
witness Sailers
Company could strengthen on-peak to off-peak differential and
differential between regular RS rate and off-peak and RS-TOU-CPP
rate?
witness Sailers
As customer folks not taking time look at LMP differential and
broader disaggregation?
witness Sailers
To incentivize customer, thing most salient changing difference
between rate RS and rate RS-TOU-CPP?
witness Sailers
When talking about how incentivize customer, said customer looking
at rates in front of them, changing differential between rate RS and
RS-TOU-CPP would incentivize customer?
witness Sailers
Strengthening differential between rate RS and rate for RS-TOU-CPP
increase incentives EV customers enrolled in rate RS-TOU-CPP
charge during off-peak hours?
witness Sailers
Strengthening differential between RS rate and rates for RS-TOU-
CPP increase enrollment in RS-TOU-CPP?
witness Sailers
Differential between RS and RS-TOU-CPP off-peak of one cent
unlikely incentivize customers?

Objection, calls for speculation. (Click on link for further comments.)
witness Sailers
In direct, described design incentivize adoption of EVs?
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9:32:13 AM

9:32:31 AM

9:32:56 AM

9:33:24 AM

9:33:38 AM

9:34:01 AM

9:34:10 AM

9:34:58 AM

9:35:49 AM

9:36:07 AM

9:37:14 AM

9:37:21 AM

9:37:35 AM

9:38:01 AM

9:39:22 AM

9:39:58 AM

9:40:53 AM

9:42:01 AM

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

witness Sailers
In direct, state this rate facilitates adoption of EVs?

witness Sailers
By strengthening differential between off-peak or super off-peak and
ordinary residential rate, would create bill savings and incentives
join RS-TOU-CPP rate?

Objection, again calls for speculation. (Click on link for further
comments.)
witness Sailers
Greater EV adoption means more sale electricity?
witness Sailers
Also means for customer load spread over larger number of
customers?
witness Sailers
Pushes rates downwards all customers?
witness Sailers
Discuss rate DT, page 9, lines 12-15, direct, describe updating
structure of rate GT and rider LM, quote, reading (click on link for
further comments), correct?
witness Sailers
Rebuttal, page 6, lines 20-22, state, reading (click on link for further
comments), correct?
witness Sailers
If individual customer maximizing use at off-peak time, not
necessarily adding stress and costs to distribution system?
witness Sailers
If individual customer using distribution system using not at time of
peak demand, minimizing stress and cost to distribution system?
witness Sailers
Distribution system peaks?
witness Sailers
You would say sort of as work way closer to distribution point
becomes more and more true?
witness Sailers
Operating at off-peak time that is minimizing stress compared to
operating at on-peak time?
witness Sailers
Just talking about rate RS-TOU-CPP, understanding is design
intended to divert customers to off-peak times for that reason?
witness Sailers
Imagine have three industrial customers, each uses very large
megawatts, when designing rate prefer those customers using
electricity same eight hours?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers

Note: Sacre, Candace

Examination. Why not?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers

Note: Sacre, Candace

Under example, three industrial customers, each uses peak demand
thousand MW, utility expect sell 30 million kW hours a year, make
sense?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers

Note: Sacre, Candace

Be done in infinite number of ways, that system over year still sells
30 million kW hours of electricity but peak demand of system is only
thousand megawatts?
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9:43:05 AM

9:43:18 AM

9:44:09 AM

9:44:40 AM

9:45:41 AM

9:46:24 AM

9:46:27 AM

9:49:27 AM

9:49:42 AM

9:50:06 AM

9:50:55 AM

9:51:21 AM

9:52:15 AM

9:52:48 AM

9:52:51 AM

9:53:24 AM

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Could all run first eight hours of day, that system also sells 30
million kW a year but peak demand is 3,000 megawatts?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Is operating a system, meeting customer demand, have a monopoly
system, customers demand something, provide it to them, service
obligation, then what talking about, certain changes in price
depending on when use electricity?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace First scenario, only build production/transmission up to a thousand
megawatts and reserve margin, bring system up to 1100
megawatts?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Under second scenario, could build three different distribution
circuits 1,000 megawatts each?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace May be asking about diversity load, on production and transmission
largest driver fixed cost, transmission and generation large driver
what deemed fixed cost, company have to build transmission meet
3,000 MW demand?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Second scenario, all use it coincident?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Is a benefit to company, place to invest, not a terrible situation
company earns return on investment, given friction how balance
that against maximizing opportunity to make investments?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Are not rates making utility indifferent how customers use
electricity?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not price signal, cost of service-based rate so can meet revenue
requirement?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Backwards looking amount based on embedded costs, or forward-
looking amount based on expected cost user driving based off how
use electricity?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Reflection of fact more person uses during those periods pay larger
share costs already invested in system, or based off cost person is
driving investments will need to be made?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Reflective pay larger amount of system assets in place for their
benefit, or reflective of cost driving for assets have to be put into
system serve them going forward?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace When you say price signal, really mean cost signal?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Counsel?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Cross Examination (cont'd). Rebuttal, page 7, line 14-17, reading
(click on link for further comments)?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Discussion off-peak versus on-peak, testimony refers to off-peak,
what mean by off-peak?
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9:53:58 AM

9:54:17 AM

9:54:44 AM

9:55:12 AM

9:55:27 AM

9:55:50 AM

9:55:57 AM

9:56:12 AM

9:56:26 AM

9:56:57 AM

9:57:10 AM

9:57:34 AM

9:57:47 AM

9:58:18 AM

9:58:36 AM

9:59:10 AM

9:59:31 AM

9:59:40 AM

10:01:01 AM

10:01:19 AM

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Actually is DT, correct?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Discussing on-peak and off-peak, clarify, named off-peak for
distribution system, substation level, when talking off-peak here
talking off-peak for distribution system in entirety?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Here where discussing different setup, imagine under current rate
design, EV load at off-peak, no additional demand charge, customer
large electric trucks, require chargers hundreds of kilowatts?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Charger size for electric vehicle affect peak demand?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Commercial electric vehicle fleet could add significant load during
peak demand?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace During customers time of peak demand?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Add significant load to system?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Difference would be if adding toward system peak period add
significant load?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Incentivizing commercial electric fleet charge off-peak where
exceeds maximum demand would prevent future load being added?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Decrease stress on system?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace All else being equal, decrease costs all customers?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Said entire line of thinking what already done with rate DT?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Rate DT, attempting to accomplish divert commercial fleet use of
electricity off-peak time?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Only incentivizes customers charge off-peak to system until
customer off-peak demand exceeds customer maximum demand?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Page 7, lines 14-17, state, reading (click on link for further
comments), correct?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace If off-peak demand exceeds customer maximum demand, EV load
requires additional demand charge bill?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not proposing time-limited demand charges?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Describes time-limited demand charges?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Is additional demand charge bill impact if off-peak demand exceeds
maximum demand?
Atty Huddleston Sierra Club - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Incentivizing commercial EV fleet charge off-peak where exceeds
current maximum demand prevents new future load?
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10:01:34 AM

10:02:06 AM

10:02:21 AM

10:03:04 AM

10:03:26 AM

10:03:47 AM

10:04:08 AM

10:04:21 AM

10:05:21 AM

10:06:03 AM

10:06:59 AM

10:07:29 AM
10:07:41 AM
10:08:02 AM
10:08:30 AM
10:26:59 AM
10:27:02 AM
10:27:12 AM

10:27:19 AM

10:28:24 AM

10:28:42 AM

10:28:53 AM

10:29:00 AM

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Huddleston Sierra Club -

Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Session Paused
Session Resumed
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

witness Sailers
Something like time-bearing volumetric charge or time-limited
demand charge would do that?
witness Sailers
Shenstone Harris recommendations for rate DT time-limited demand
charges or time-varying volumetric charges?
witness Sailers
Time-bearing volumetric charge only to certain point under rate DT?
witness Sailers
EV load requires, once customer demand exceeds maximum,
requires additional demand charge?
witness Sailers
Decreasing off-peak demand charge incentivize large EV customers
charge off-peak?
witness Sailers
Point is would incentivize them shift loads to off-peak time?
witness Sailers
Further reduced rate incentivize them?
witness Sailers
Direct, page 25, lines 17-20, rider LM, reading (click on link for
further comments), correct?
witness Sailers
Rebuttal, page 10, lines 13-16, reading (click on link for further
comments), correct?
witness Sailers
Incentivizing commercial EV fleet charge off-peak where exceeds
maximum demand prevent new future load?
witness Sailers
If charging exceeds customer maximum demand, rider LM not
incentivize off-peak charging as much as could as reducing price?
witness Sailers
Include for commercial electric vehicle fleet?
witness Sailers
EV charging load can be fairly significant for company?

Recess until 10:25.

Back on the record in 2022-00372.

Counsel for KBCA, questions?

Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable

Note: Sacre, Candace

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Passed out some documents may be referencing during cross.
(Click on link for further comments.)

Mark each individual exhibit? (Click on link for further comments.)

Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers

Note: Sacre, Candace

Cross Examination. Pole attachments, submitted rebuttal?

Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers

Note: Sacre, Candace

Part of purpose of rebuttal address testimony Patricia Kravtin?

Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers

Note: Sacre, Candace

Submitted testimony on behalf of KBCA?
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10:29:04 AM

10:29:07 AM

10:29:16 AM

10:29:20 AM

10:29:26 AM

10:29:42 AM

10:30:09 AM

10:30:29 AM

10:30:47 AM

10:30:58 AM

10:31:35 AM

10:31:47 AM

10:32:17 AM

10:32:42 AM

10:33:07 AM

10:33:15 AM

10:33:40 AM

10:33:49 AM

10:33:53 AM

10:34:08 AM

10:34:22 AM

10:34:52 AM

Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Read that testimony?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace In testimony, takes issues with two aspects of pole attachment rate?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace First issue nonunitized poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Second issue, distribution of attachments on poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Start with nonunitized polls, nonunitized poles are poles recorded on
property records as unspecified property units, right?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Nonunitized pole, reading (click on link for further comments), right?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Depending on lag in accounting process, nonunitized poles can
remain unspecified for year or longer?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Potential for mismatches investment dollars and property units?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace If lag in reporting poles, create difference poles recorded and
nonunitized poles not added?
Atty Herring Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace Objection, outside scope of testimony. (Click on link for further
comments.)
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Lag in accounting process create mismatch investment dollars and
property units?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Difference in number of poles and investment amount?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Duke identified 2,464 nonunitized poles not finalized when did first
calculation?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Identified 2,464 what would call it?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Nonunionized and estimated retirements?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Binder, tab 7, Duke response to KBCA DR-01-0117?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Look at as of Dec 20, see under quantity says nonunitized and
estimated retirements?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Have 3,375 there?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Asterisk next to that, bottom of page, asterisk says, reading (click on
link for further comments), right?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Some portion Duke end up finalizing?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace That was 9117
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Stating poles not finalized means not include in number of poles in
calculation?
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10:35:07 AM

10:35:13 AM

10:36:01 AM

10:36:23 AM

10:36:49 AM

10:37:00 AM

10:37:12 AM

10:37:19 AM

10:37:31 AM

10:37:35 AM

10:37:46 AM

10:37:58 AM

10:38:21 AM

10:38:41 AM

10:39:21 AM

10:39:53 AM

10:39:58 AM

10:40:04 AM

10:40:12 AM

10:40:20 AM

10:41:08 AM

10:41:40 AM

Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not include in pole count in calculation?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace How incorrect?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree of 3,375 number 911 finalized in 20217?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace When Kravtin did analysis, took 2,464 nonunitized units and
recalculated pole attachment rate?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace What she did, agree?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Kravtin calculation operated to lower pole attachment rate from
$9.99 Duke requesting to $9.62?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Reduced pole rate 30 cents per pole?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Lowered rate for three-year user pole from $8.62 to $7.96?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Almost 70 cents?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Assert Kravtin not use correct numbers of 35-foot, 40-foot, and 45-
foot nonunitized poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Prior to testimony, Duke not report number of 35-foot, 40-foot, and
45-foot nonunitized poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Prior to testimony, Duke not report number of 35-foot, 40-foot, and
45-foot nonunitized poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace In testimony, assert some of 2,464 nonunitized poles, of those 22 35
-foot poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Testimony, tab 1, page 14, lines 3-4, rebuttal, here say, reading
(click on link for further comments), see that?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Of those nonunitized assets, saying 22 are 35-foot poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Identified 22 were 35-foot poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Identified 9 were 40-foot poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace And 35 were 45-foot poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Total 71 poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Could be additional 35-, 40-, and 45-foot poles remaining
nonunitized poles identified?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Was 2,393?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace In bucket of nonunitized poles, additional 35-foot, 40-foot, and 45-
foot poles?
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10:42:03 AM

10:42:16 AM

10:42:20 AM

10:42:35 AM

10:43:01 AM

10:43:13 AM

10:43:17 AM

10:43:20 AM

10:43:28 AM

10:43:32 AM

10:44:38 AM

10:45:18 AM

10:45:30 AM

10:45:40 AM

10:45:57 AM

10:46:13 AM

10:46:26 AM

10:46:55 AM

10:47:03 AM

10:47:24 AM

10:47:28 AM

10:47:41 AM

10:47:50 AM

10:48:01 AM

Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace How know are very few?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Say numbers not available?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Why?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Correct assets installed in 20217?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Assets left, assets installed one, two, three years ago?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Still not unitized?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Know when will be?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace That long lag when assets installed and unitized normal practice?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Who would?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Looking how include in pole attachment rate could add 35-foot, 40-
foot, or 45-foot nonunitized poles to count in rate formula proportion
of poles otherwise has?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Number of poles ununitized, told earlier some be 35-, 40-, or 45-
feet, since not know which, could estimate based on proportion
already in system?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Something Duke not do here?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace That choice results in higher attachment rates imposed?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree more poles include in formula lower attachment rate?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree more poles in rate lower the rate?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Know Duke average percentage pole replacements per year is?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Investment associated nonunionized poles into formula, assert
adding nonunitized poles to rate formula not change rate?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace What you did?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Duke not provide information showing investment for 71 poles
added back in?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Attachment referring to is BLS rebuttal 1?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Tab 4 in binder, just referenced attached to rebuttal?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Revised attachment rate calculation incorporating 71 unitized poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Cost number of poles and source, see that?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Look 45-foot pole line, list 10,976 45-foot poles?
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10:48:16 AM

10:48:45 AM

10:48:46 AM

10:49:23 AM

10:49:37 AM

10:49:43 AM

10:49:55 AM

10:50:06 AM

10:50:20 AM

10:50:40 AM

10:50:46 AM

10:50:53 AM

10:50:58 AM

10:51:04 AM

10:51:36 AM

10:51:41 AM

10:51:45 AM

10:52:02 AM

10:52:25 AM

10:52:31 AM

10:52:38 AM

10:52:50 AM

10:52:59 AM

10:53:15 AM

Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace
boxes, with me?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Tab 13 KBCA 1. (Click on link for further comments.)
MARKED - HEARING EXHIBIT KBCA 1
Note: Sacre, Candace ATTY WIGGER KENTUCKY BROADBAND & CABLE- WITNESS
SAILERS
Note: Sacre, Candace ATTACHMENT BLS-7 AND ATTACHMENT BLS-REBUTTAL-1
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Tab 13, KBCA 1, on right have what just looking at in rebuttal,
correct?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace If want to compare, go ahead, or subject to check?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Left same section of spreadsheet from BLS-7?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace 45-foot pole line, established number of poles in rebuttal 10,976?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Increase of 40 from BLS-7 number of poles 10,9367
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace
$19,328,392 in rebuttal exhibit 1?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Increase a little more than $74,000 for 40 unitized poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace BLS-rebuttal-1, extra column says source?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace And source says asset accounting?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable
Note: Sacre, Candace Pull up Duke response KBCA-DR-01-05.
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Pull up on screen. (Click on link for further comments.)
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace See document?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Tab 2021 at bottom, see that?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Asset accounting number of polls in investment data?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Reason doubt asset accounting in rebuttal?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Know where numbers come?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Beyond that, not know numbers accurate?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace No reason to doubt information given you?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Seen spreadsheet before?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Have no idea what information says?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Contains information about polls?
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10:53:23 AM

10:53:30 AM

10:53:40 AM

10:53:44 AM

10:53:52 AM

10:54:12 AM

10:54:27 AM

10:54:44 AM

10:55:03 AM

10:55:10 AM

10:55:26 AM

10:55:43 AM

10:55:44 AM

10:55:51 AM

10:56:10 AM

10:56:14 AM

10:56:30 AM

10:56:54 AM

10:57:11 AM

10:57:23 AM

10:57:32 AM

10:57:51 AM

Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Includes things like pole height?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable
Note: Sacre, Candace Pull up column Q?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Line 1, pole, wood, 30 feet or less?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Scroll down, different pole heights for poles identified?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Nonunitized poles Duke not disclosed pole height?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Row 600, column Q, instead of pole, wood, 30 feet or 40 feet, says
nonunitized?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace KBCA or Commission cannot identify 71 poles not unitized that now
unitized and added to attachment formula?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Tell which poles nonunitized when filed original testimony that now
unitized?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree tens of thousands of rows?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace No way know KBCA or Commission know whether Duke properly
calculated rate using numbers now unitized poles and investment
associated?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not go back and check math not know which 71 poles added into
formula?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Something Duke provide?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Something willing provide?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Duke agree provide KBCA and Commission information pole height
and investment each of 71 poles identified?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Rebuttal exhibit looked at source listed in asset accounting?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace What asking want to see actual investment associated each of poles
now unitized?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Duke agree provide KBCA information pole height and investment
each nonunitized pole installed each year?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Duke not track height of nonunitized poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace How determine heights once unitized?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Know how Dang determines height nonunitized poles then unitized?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Some point be recorded?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Tab 14, KBCA 2, has two boxes, one screenshot top portion BLS-7,
see that?
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10:58:32 AM

10:58:33 AM

10:58:39 AM

10:58:45 AM

10:58:50 AM

10:59:10 AM

10:59:19 AM

10:59:28 AM

11:00:01 AM

11:00:13 AM

11:00:38 AM

11:01:02 AM

11:01:08 AM

11:01:16 AM

11:01:23 AM

11:01:32 AM

11:01:46 AM

11:02:48 AM

11:03:48 AM

11:04:15 AM

11:04:29 AM

11:04:50 AM

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Mark as KBCA 2. (Click on link for further comments.)
MARKED - HEARING EXHIBIT KBCA 2
Note: Sacre, Candace ATTY WIGGER KENTUCKY BROADBAND & CABLE - WITNESS
SAILERS
Note: Sacre, Candace ATTACHMENT BLS-7 & KBCA-DR-01-005_ATTACHMENT
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Top of BLS-7 three red boxes under number of poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Know what pivot table is?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Bottom box pivot table 2021 tab Duke response to KBCA 01-005,
random number of poles 35-foot poles, 40-foot poles, and 45-foot
poles, see box?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Look 40-foot poles, quantity in pivot table 16,827?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Under 40-foot poles in rate calculation BLS-7 says 16,7077?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Explain why discrepancy number of poles account 364 data and
number in rate calculation?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace 2021 tab on DR-01-005 poles as of 2021?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Know if changing daily, or 2022 be changing as things added in?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Second issue rebuttal, distribution of attachments on poles, agree
Duke charges different rates?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Familiar Admin Case 251?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Referenced in testimony?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Methodology for calculating rates for pole attachment space?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Analyzes situations two users and three users?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Assumes two users 35- to 40-foot poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Assumes half on 35-foot poles and half on 40-foot?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Tab 2, exhibit 2, Kravtin testimony, page 11 administrative order,
second paragraph, second sentence, reading (click on link for further
comments), see that?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Page 11, paragraph 2, second sentence, reading (click on link for
further comments), see that?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable- witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace What doing saying average pole height 37.5?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Calculation works have equal attachments 35-foot poles and 40-foot
poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Just average, not weighted average?
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11:05:12 AM

11:05:23 AM

11:05:35 AM

11:05:44 AM

11:05:49 AM

11:06:32 AM

11:07:15 AM

11:07:31 AM

11:07:42 AM

11:07:49 AM

11:08:22 AM

11:08:36 AM

11:09:00 AM

11:09:12 AM

11:09:19 AM

11:09:23 AM

11:09:33 AM

11:09:43 AM

11:09:48 AM

11:09:58 AM

11:10:26 AM

11:10:32 AM

11:11:07 AM

11:11:17 AM

11:11:45 AM

Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace 251 assumes three users?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Looking at average pole height?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Why assumption presumes average of 42.5 pole height?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Average height of 40- and 45-foot pole, with me?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Usable space assumptions based on average pole heights?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Pagel3, AO 251, paragraphs 2 and 3, reading (click on link for
further comments), see that?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Usable space assumption based on average pole height?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Same thing for three-user, again, using average height?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree cost 50-foot pole not included?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace AO 251 usable space, Order not determine usable space?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace AO 251 determines unusable space on poles?
Atty Herring Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace Object. (Click on link for further comments.)
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Sets assumptions three components unusable space?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Assumes six feet in ground?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Assumes 20 feet to lowest attachment?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Assumes 3.3 feet safety space?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Those numbers not vary by pole height?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Says don't?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Same six feet buried in ground?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Under AO 251, Commission stated, reading (click on link for further
comments), correct?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree major means notable?
Atty Herring Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace Objection, legal conclusion. (Click on link for further comments.)
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Opine no major discrepancy?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Testimony, Tab 1, page 16, rebuttal, reading (click on link for
further comments)?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Opining no major discrepancy?
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11:12:11 AM

11:12:31 AM

11:12:49 AM

11:13:04 AM

11:13:15 AM

11:13:40 AM

11:13:51 AM

11:13:53 AM

11:14:05 AM

11:14:14 AM

11:14:23 AM

11:14:28 AM

11:14:33 AM

11:14:45 AM

11:15:32 AM

11:15:45 AM

11:15:51 AM

11:15:56 AM

11:16:00 AM

11:16:05 AM

11:16:11 AM

11:16:23 AM

11:16:32 AM

Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Focusing on prior testimony where state, reading (click on link for
further comments), your opinion?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Major discrepancy, major mean notable or conspicuous?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Answer question asking?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace How you define?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace When said not agree Kravtin, had no definition major discrepancy
be?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Turn Tab 16, binder?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Marked KBCA 3, Tab 16.
MARKED - HEARING EXHIBIT KBCA 3
Note: Sacre, Candace ATTY WIGGER KENTUCKY BROADBAND & CABLE - WITNESS
SAILERS
DUKE ACTUAL DISTRIBUTION, DESCRIPTION 2 USER POLES,
ADMIN 251 PRESUMED DISTRIBUTION, AND VARIANCE 35-FOOT
POLES AND 40-FOOT POLES
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace See bottom where says Source: KBCA-DR-02-002?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Bracket by bracket, top says Duke Actual Distribution, see that?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Description 2 User Poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Quantity and Percentage of Attachments?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Quantity, based on Duke numbers?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Tab 8, responses, KBCA-DR-02-002, check, can go back?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Match numbers third-party pole attachments reported in KBCA-DR-
02-002?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace First one Duke own numbers?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Then see Admin 251 Presumed Distribution?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Thirty-five- and 40-foot poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Fifty percent percentages attachments?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Variance for 35- and 40-foot poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Variance is difference 35 foot poles 50 percent presumed and actual
percentage of attachments?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace For 35-foot poles, variance 26.91 percent?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace 26 percent off presumption AO 2517?

Note: Sacre, Candace
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11:16:47 AM

11:17:27 AM

11:17:46 AM

11:17:53 AM

11:18:06 AM

11:18:17 AM

11:18:29 AM

11:18:41 AM

11:18:58 AM

11:19:06 AM

11:19:12 AM

11:19:13 AM

11:19:15 AM

11:19:23 AM

11:19:29 AM

11:19:38 AM

11:19:47 AM

11:20:06 AM

11:20:08 AM

11:20:16 AM

11:20:27 AM

11:20:32 AM

11:20:56 AM

Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree 26 percent major variance?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not asking deviation attachment charge, distribution of attachments
on poles, 27 almost 30 percent variance pretty noticeable?
Atty Herring Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace Objection, asked and answered. (Click on link for further
comments.)
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree 30-percent variance noticeable?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Familiar with pole attachment tariffs?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Aware Duke audits poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Aware audit as fact?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace If third-party had 26 percent more attachments than Duke
expecting, be big discrepancy?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Duke be pretty concerned?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable
Note: Sacre, Candace Tab 15, mark KBCA 4, please.
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace KBCA Exhibit 4.
MARKED - HEARING EXHIBIT KBCA 4
Note: Sacre, Candace ATTY WIGGER KENTUCKY BROADBAND & CABLE - WITNESS
SAILERS
DUKE ACTUAL DISTRIBUTION, DESCRIPTION - 3 USER POLES,
ADMIN 251 PRESUMED DISTRIBUTION, AND VARIANCE 40-FOOT
POLES, 45-FOOT POLES, AND 50-FOOT POLES
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Like chart were looking at, this time three-user poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace By three-user, have 40- and 45-foot and also 50-foot poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Same setup?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Quantity attachments based on Duke reported?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Percentage of attachments based on KBCA-DR-02-002?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Admin 251 presumed distribution have 50 percent?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Admin 251 not talk about 50-foot poles, zero there?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Variance expect or presumed 40-foot poles be 1.47 percent?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Be 10.65 percent 45-foot poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace 12.13 percent 50-foot poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree AO 251 came out 19827

Note: Sacre, Candace
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11:21:02 AM

11:21:10 AM

11:21:32 AM

11:21:38 AM

11:21:45 AM

11:21:50 AM

11:21:54 AM

11:22:06 AM

11:22:15 AM

11:22:24 AM

11:22:31 AM

11:22:37 AM

11:22:50 AM

11:23:14 AM

11:23:25 AM

11:23:28 AM

11:23:38 AM

11:23:52 AM

11:24:00 AM

11:24:09 AM

11:24:23 AM

11:24:31 AM

11:24:38 AM

11:24:44 AM

11:24:50 AM

Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Then had fewer 50-plus-foot poles than today?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace
-foot poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Looking at Tab 8, Response to KVCA-DR-02-002?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Looks like 8,606 attachments to 35-foot poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace And 7,164 attachments to 50-foot poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace And 2500 to 55-foot poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Same number attachments 50-foot poles as 35-foot poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Roughly ten percent?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace The 50-foot pole attachments account for roughly ten percent of
attachments?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Duke putting in 50-foot poles for a reason?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Benefits installing taller pole?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace One is 50-foot poles more usable space?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree 50-foot more usable space?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Looked at Admin Case 251 earlier, three parts of pole Order
excludes from usable space, remember that?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Part in ground, parts to lowest attachment, and safety space?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Safety space not change?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not change in Admin Order 251?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not know today if safety space on pole is 3.33 feet?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not know if nhumber applies today?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Still 20 feet from ground to lowest attachment?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree Order 251 presumes six feet in ground?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Know standard safety formula how much pole bury in ground?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Ever heard is ten percent pole height plus two feet?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace For 50-foot pole be seven feet?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Only foot more than 45-foot pole?
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11:25:14 AM

11:25:32 AM

11:25:38 AM

11:25:48 AM

11:26:05 AM

11:26:13 AM

11:26:22 AM

11:26:34 AM

11:26:51 AM

11:27:25 AM

11:27:38 AM

11:27:42 AM

11:28:11 AM

11:28:32 AM

11:28:49 AM

11:29:03 AM

11:29:24 AM

11:29:35 AM

11:29:42 AM

11:29:55 AM

11:30:26 AM

11:30:39 AM

Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not contesting 50-foot pole more unusable space than 40-foot?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Extra usable space can be rented out to attachers?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Broadband providers pay Duke rental fees?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree accounting for 50-poles way Kravtin did results in lower
attachment rate?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Read Kravtin calculation?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree using her calculations results in lower attachment rate?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Fact agree calculations result in lower attachment rate?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not performed calculations, not recalculated using factors Kravtin
used but your distribution of poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Recalculated pole attachment rates using factors by Kravtin but your
distribution of poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not contest distribution data Kravtin used calculate revised usable
space factor?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Data comes from Duke?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not contest data Kravtin used recalculate two-user usable space
factor based on poll height 38.85 feet?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Answer is correct, not contest data Kravtin used?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Contested doing her doing calculation, not contest actual nhumbers
used?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not find you contesting underlying data Kravtin used?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not contest underlying data used to calculate three-user usable
space factor based on height of 43.2 feet?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Did use 50-foot poles, not protest her math?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Actually two separate things, whether include 50-foot poles and
whether include investment?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Just asking including 50-foot poles, not contest way recalculated
usable space factor for three-user pole with 50-foot poles?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Did any calculations with her factors but adding investment and
poles identified in your testimony?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Surprise to know two-user rate under scenario be $8.57?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Three-user rate $8.18?
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11:30:48 AM

11:31:04 AM

11:31:08 AM

11:31:15 AM

11:31:26 AM

11:31:36 AM

11:31:50 AM

11:31:59 AM

11:32:23 AM

11:32:42 AM

11:34:48 AM

11:35:27 AM

11:35:36 AM

11:36:33 AM

11:36:41 AM

11:36:49 AM

11:37:27 AM

11:37:37 AM

11:38:39 AM

11:39:02 AM

11:39:10 AM

11:39:34 AM

11:39:46 AM

Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Proposal raise two-user rate by 16 percent?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Sixteen percent increase one bill?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Proposal raise three-user rate by 19 percent?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Differences have effect on what cost broadband providers provide
service?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not know raising rate by 20 percent have effect on broadband
providers provide service?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Raising rates by 16 and 19 percent has effect on what cost
broadband providers provide service?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Raise cost of attachment for providers and make more expensive?
Atty Wigger Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace By extension, raise cost to customers?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Questions?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Cross Examination. Line extension policy and installation proposed
changes in tariff, as policy in place now what costs customers
responsible?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Three-year estimate on load in revenues, what components go in to
making that estimate?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Mentioned two ways customer make arrangements cover cost?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace What were those?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not have preference what choose, just options?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace What cost change in installation?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Currently?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Little different credit only option?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Proposed tariff, how change for installation?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Under proposed how affect differences?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Even installation now have two options?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Critical peak rate, optional rate, requesting waiver of regulation part
of proposing rate?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Requesting waiver relates to meter reading on bill?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Proposing use only usage information?
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11:40:03 AM

11:40:31 AM

11:40:49 AM

11:41:12 AM

11:41:23 AM

11:42:13 AM

11:42:19 AM

11:42:50 AM

11:43:49 AM

11:45:09 AM

11:45:23 AM

11:46:04 AM

11:47:00 AM

11:47:30 AM

11:47:39 AM

11:47:50 AM

11:47:55 AM

11:48:29 AM

11:48:33 AM

11:48:34 AM

11:48:51 AM

11:49:05 AM

Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Familiar with other utility asking for waiver?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Tariff similar any other Duke subsidiaries?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Similarly to what proposed?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Asked for copies able provide?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace AMI meters, related case, DSM case 2022-00251, mention reason
requesting waiver utilize those?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Have AMI all customers?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Percentage wise?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Examination. All RS customers smart meter unless service under
Rate AMO?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Cross Examination (cont'd). Rebuttal, page 5, lines 8-9, mention
technology customers use with rate, feel those technologies
residential customers have access?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not large number, would say, four or five hundred?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Direct mention introducing as optional tariff now, may transition to
DSM program?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Explain peak time rebates and why think this might be cost
effective, not know yet?
Staff Atty Tussey PSC - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not done analysis as to benefits related to cost?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Commissioner?
Commissioner Regan - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Examination. Get data from asset management team?
Commissioner Regan - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Pull data from system using?
Commissioner Regan - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Input from operations team in field?
Commissioner Regan - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Human input?
Commissioner Regan
Note: Sacre, Candace
POST-HEARING DATA REQUEST
Note: Sacre, Candace
Note: Sacre, Candace

Will follow that up.

COMMISSIONER REGAN - WITNESS SAILERS
HOW DATA GETS FROM FIELD TO SYSTEM USED BY ASSET
MANAGEMENT TEAM
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Examination. RS-TOU-CPP rate, want that rate?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Peak time rebate implemented pursuant to stipulation?
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11:49:12 AM

11:50:06 AM

11:50:29 AM

11:50:43 AM

11:50:52 AM

11:50:55 AM

11:51:05 AM

11:52:02 AM

11:52:31 AM

11:52:54 AM

11:53:31 AM

11:54:24 AM

11:54:34 AM

11:55:10 AM

11:56:30 AM

11:56:48 AM

11:57:12 AM

11:57:20 AM

11:57:40 AM

11:58:11 AM

11:58:12 AM

11:58:22 AM

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Distinction important proposed CPP indifferent whether cost
beneficial?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Peak time rebate DSM program have time varying rates other than
peak event?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace RS-TOU-CPP?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Significant distinction?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Similar to peak time rebate?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Times generally same?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace On peak, off peak, super off peak related to cost of production, cost
of transmission?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Cost causation, what action drove costs?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Assigning costs to customers drove costs, past tense?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Used term cost causation couple of times, agree assigning costs to
those customers that drove imbedded costs?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Different than what discussing brand new rate, not assigning
different values based on costs drove, making sure change behavior
not drive additional costs?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Signal really only one rate in relation to another rate?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not in relation cost people will drive?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Talk about setting price signals, higher this time period, lower this
period, not related at all to costs drive when use, LMP example,
agree?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Equating rate recover imbedded cost with a price?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Entire system advanced metering?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace RS customers advanced meters?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Even opted out, still give same meter, just has communication
model off?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Still able receive interval usage between readings?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
POST-HEARING DATA REQUEST
Note: Sacre, Candace CHAIRMAN CHANDLER - WITNESS SAILERS
Note: Sacre, Candace OPTED OUT ABLE RECEIVE INTERVAL USAGE BETWEEN READINGS
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Time of use CPP experimental program, 1000 customers?

Will clarify in post-hearing data request.
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11:58:34 AM

11:58:48 AM

11:58:58 AM

11:59:09 AM

11:59:16 AM

11:59:25 AM

11:59:44 AM

12:00:21 PM

12:00:30 PM

12:00:38 PM

12:00:46 PM

12:00:49 PM

12:01:08 PM

12:01:24 PM

12:01:38 PM

12:02:23 PM

12:02:49 PM

12:03:04 PM

12:03:22 PM

12:03:32 PM

12:03:36 PM

12:03:45 PM

12:06:18 PM

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Net monthly bill using customer charge and four different energy
charges?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Critical peak kilowatt hours, on peak kilowatt hours, off peak
kilowatt hours, and discount kilowatt hours?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Proposed rates same energy charge critical peak both summer and
winter?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Same for on peak summer and winter?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Same off peak and discount kilowatt hours summer and winter?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Why provide summer and winter with same rates?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Two tables two different amounts, exactly same?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Exact same amount?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Rating periods?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Discount period 1 am to 6 am, Mon-Sun?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace All throughout year?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Summer on peak 2 pm to 8 pm, Mon-Fri, not holidays?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Summer on peak never weekends, never holidays, Mon-Fri?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Winter on peak, 6 am to 9 am, again 6 pm to 9 pm, weekdays, not
holidays?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Critical peak periods, super on peak, summer on peak, winter on
peak, three time periods?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Winter on peak, 6 am to 9 pm, then again 6 pm to 9 pm, critical
peak during winter on peak, during summer on peak?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Implementing those through communications?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Off peak, balance?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Do this as career, how long?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Friends and family not involved industry?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Talking about job, eyes glaze over?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace You understand this, supported that tariff, talk about friends and
family, be easy for them, simple enough proposal?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Definition of winter and summer?
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12:06:40 PM

12:07:27 PM

12:08:00 PM

12:08:17 PM

12:09:42 PM

12:10:05 PM

12:11:08 PM

12:11:18 PM

12:12:15 PM

12:12:29 PM

12:12:34 PM

12:13:44 PM

12:13:58 PM

12:14:21 PM

12:14:47 PM

12:15:13 PM

12:15:38 PM

12:15:56 PM

12:16:14 PM

12:16:42 PM

12:17:40 PM

12:18:32 PM

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace
Mar Apr May times considered shoulder months?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace When talking about savings driving, savings eroded in those time
periods?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace In winter, more usage 6 am Dec Jan Feb day than 6 am Apr or May
day?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Deviation from that greater impact?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Simple as can get?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Difference in shoulder months verse winter/summer months, not
studying if implemented net benefits?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Get rid of PTR or CPP?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Defined dates, catchall critical peak periods, any day system
emergency, defined by tariff?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Never on holidays unless system emergency, in that event charge
more?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace During event?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace How make call?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Talking about emailing two hours, one hour before event?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Time sign up, ask opt in provide cell phone when sign up or
separate action?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Lesson learned from peak time rebate?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Anticipate using mass media?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Apply to entirety of both time periods?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Dec 12, tell somebody critical peak day, two time periods winter
days?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Critical peak rate in effect both time periods?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace In winter, significant event, tomorrow critical peak day, what time
period?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Time period different?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Today, going on nightly news, in future implemented, begging all
but 1,000, idea behind system emergency carve out?
Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace AMI number of years?
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12:18:47 PM

12:18:54 PM

12:19:00 PM

12:19:10 PM

12:19:16 PM

12:19:37 PM

12:20:58 PM

12:21:11 PM

12:21:49 PM

12:22:36 PM

12:23:05 PM

12:23:10 PM

12:23:17 PM

12:23:32 PM

12:24:00 PM

12:24:17 PM

12:24:26 PM

12:24:48 PM

12:25:14 PM

12:25:25 PM

12:26:06 PM

12:26:42 PM

12:26:52 PM

12:26:53 PM

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Agreement approved 2016, rollout 2017?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Long enough do two-year pilot on PTR?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Operate other jurisdictions?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Ohio?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Aware restructured states opportunity shop for programs?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Not in position but Weinbtraub, discussed optionality but get smart

meters first?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Person not do on own?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Probably healthy understanding of tariffs and rates, ordinary person

not do it?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Rate comparison tool, something not yet exit, mentioned, saying

customers able go to website, figure out how fare under proposal?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Average RS customer applied to rate what impact bill be?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Is your expectation?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Rounding error?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Hope providing customers have less bills?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Everybody participated, default rate, revenues less?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Question Walmart had Ziolkowski about RRI?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Heard of relative rate of return?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Residential class poor relative rate of return?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Default application RS-TOU-CPP exacerbate that?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace People actually shifting load not necessarily using electricity at 12

CPs?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Actually increase relative rate of return, using less electricity?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace Post-hearing data request when rate calculator go into effect, ask

for dumby login?

Chairman Chandler - witness Sailers
Note: Sacre, Candace What asking for, if available, a dumby login?

POST-HEARING DATA REQUEST
Note: Sacre, Candace
Note: Sacre, Candace

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

CHAIRMAN CHANDLER - WITNESS SAILERS
WHEN CALCULATOR IN EFFECT AND DUMBY LOGIN INFORMATION

Questions?
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12:27:20 PM
12:28:10 PM
12:28:40 PM
1:24:59 PM
1:25:14 PM

1:25:21 PM

1:25:55 PM

1:26:06 PM

1:26:27 PM

1:26:28 PM

1:26:29 PM

1:26:30 PM

1:26:31 PM

1:27:28 PM

1:28:21 PM

1:29:15 PM

1:29:17 PM

1:29:22 PM

1:29:30 PM

1:29:47 PM

1:29:54 PM

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Session Paused

Session Resumed

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Procedural discussion. (Click on link for further comments.)

Recess until 1:15.

Back on record in Case No. 2022-00372.

During cross of Sailers, marked number of documents. Intend on
introducing.

Atty Osterloh Kentucky Broadband & Cable

Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler

Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler

Note: Sacre, Candace
HEARING EXHIBIT KBCA 1

Note: Sacre, Candace

Note: Sacre, Candace
HEARING EXHIBIT KBCA 2
Note: Sacre, Candace

Note: Sacre, Candace
HEARING EXHIBIT KBCA 3
Note: Sacre, Candace

Note: Sacre, Candace

HEARING EXHIBIT KBCA 4
Note: Sacre, Candace

Note: Sacre, Candace

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Atty Grundmann Walmart
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Introduce documents. (Click on link for further comments.)
Any objection? (Click on link for further comments.)
Admit KBCA 1, 2, 3, and 4.

ATTY WIGGER KENTUCKY BROADBAND & CABLE - WITNESS
SAILERS
ATTACHMENT BLS-7 AND ATTACHMENT BLS-REBUTTAL-1

ATTY WIGGER KENTUCKY BROADBAND & CABLE - WITNESS
SAILERS
ATTACHMENT BLS-7 & KBCA-DR-01-005_ATTACHMENT

ATTY WIGGER KENTUCKY BROADBAND & CABLE - WITNESS
SAILERS

DUKE ACTUAL DISTRIBUTION, DESCRIPTION 2 USER POLES,
ADMIN 251 PRESUMED DISTRIBUTION, AND VARIANCE 35-FOOT
POLES AND 40-FOOT POLES

ATTY WIGGER KENTUCKY BROADBAND & CABLE - WITNESS
SAILERS
DUKE ACTUAL DISTRIBUTION, DESCRIPTION - 3 USER POLES,

ADMIN 251 PRESUMED DISTRIBUTION, AND VARIANCE 40-FOOT
POLES, 45-FOOT POLES, AND 50-FOOT POLES

Direct of Sailers asked to mark DEK 2, DEK 3, and DEK 4 new tariff.
How intend to offer these?

Did offer and were admitted. (Click on link for further comments.)
Witness?
Steve Chriss.

Witness is sworn.

Chairman Chandler - witness Chriss

Note: Sacre, Candace

Examination. Name and address?

Atty Grundmann Walmart - witness Chriss

Note: Sacre, Candace

Cross Examination. Title and employer?

Atty Grundmann Walmart - witness Chriss

Note: Sacre, Candace

Cause be filed direct and corrected?
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1:30:10 PM

1:30:13 PM

1:30:20 PM

1:30:53 PM

1:30:57 PM

1:31:19 PM

1:31:29 PM

1:31:41 PM

1:31:48 PM

1:32:00 PM

1:32:15 PM

1:32:23 PM

1:32:30 PM

1:32:45 PM

1:32:59 PM

1:33:13 PM

1:33:48 PM

1:33:54 PM

1:34:14 PM

1:34:20 PM

1:34:44 PM

1:35:04 PM

1:35:12 PM

Atty Grundmann Walmart - witness Chriss

Note: Sacre, Candace

Prepared by you?

Atty Grundmann Walmart - witness Chriss

Note: Sacre, Candace

Changes or corrections?

Atty Grundmann Walmart - witness Chriss

Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Adopt as testimony?

Questions?
witness Chriss
Cross Examination. Reviewed authorized electric ROEs time period
2019 to present?
witness Chriss
Discuss on page 10 of direct?
witness Chriss
To present, through March 7 2023?
witness Chriss
Exhibit SWC-3?
witness Chriss
Any analysis how capital market conditions changed between 2019
and present?
witness Chriss
COVID-19 in 2020, effect on economy?
witness Chriss
Entered period of increasing interest rates?
witness Chriss
Period of higher inflation?
witness Chriss
Peak 9.1 percent Jul 2022 highest since 1980s?
witness Chriss
Federal reserve tightened monetary policy?
witness Chriss
Performed market analyses in current environment as compared to
2019?
witness Chriss
Refer to SWC-3, page 5, schedule shows combinations of ROE 2019
to present?
witness Chriss
Schedule regularly prepare?
witness Chriss
Pagel0, direct, average ROE 9.68 percent in 2023?
witness Chriss
So far, through Mar 7 20237
witness Chriss
Aware since Mar 7 S&P two additional ROEs including 9.9 percent
Upper Peninsula Power?
witness Chriss
In addition UPCO ROE, 10.00 percent ROE Liberty Utilities in CA,
aware?
witness Chriss
Exhibit SWC-3, reported authorized equity ratios?
witness Chriss
Page 5, 2022 recorded average authorized equity ratio 50.47
percent?
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1:35:28 PM

1:35:46 PM

1:36:07 PM

1:36:20 PM

1:36:28 PM

1:36:43 PM

1:37:06 PM

1:37:17 PM

1:37:37 PM

1:37:58 PM

1:38:22 PM

1:38:42 PM

1:38:49 PM

1:38:54 PM

1:39:07 PM

1:39:19 PM

1:39:30 PM

1:39:44 PM

1:40:12 PM

1:40:17 PM

1:40:22 PM

1:40:26 PM

1:40:40 PM

1:40:54 PM

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler

Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler

Note: Sacre, Candace
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky

Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler

Note: Sacre, Candace

witness Chriss
Look at pages 3 and 4 of exhibit, listed decisions calculate ratio for
2022?
witness Chriss
In 2022 average, included equity ratios from Arkansas, Indiana, and
Michigan?
witness Chriss
Page 3, third of way down?
witness Chriss
Agree include ratios for Arkansas, Indiana, and Michigan?
witness Chriss
Four data points from states and utilities?
witness Chriss
See Consumers Energy Michigan, Indiana-Michigan Power Indiana,
Southwestern Power Arkansas, and DTE Electric Michigan?
witness Chriss
Include noninvestor supplied capital?
witness Chriss
Know if Kentucky included such capital structures?
witness Chriss
Agree equity ratio for 2022 be 52.13 percent if excluded Arkansas,
Indiana, and Michigan?
witness Chriss
Seem like in ballpark?
witness Chriss
Part of question on page 3 three from 2022 Indiana-Michigan Power
equity ratio 40.70 percent?
witness Chriss
If look at Southwestern, 44.54 percent?
witness Chriss
For DTE, 39.62 percent?
witness Chriss
Dragging down average?
witness Chriss
Page 5, summary data?
witness Chriss
Average equity ratio is 52.31 percent?
witness Chriss
Requested equity ratio of 52.145 below 2023 average?

Questions?
Next witness?
Sarah Lawler.

Witness is sworn.

Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Examination. Name and address?
witness Lawler
Direct Examination. Position and employer?
witness Lawler
Cause be filed direct and rebuttal as well as responses?
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1:41:02 PM

1:41:08 PM

1:41:18 PM

1:41:20 PM

1:41:26 PM

1:41:37 PM

1:44:02 PM

1:44:44 PM

1:45:03 PM

1:45:13 PM

1:45:50 PM

1:46:13 PM

1:47:09 PM

1:47:36 PM

1:48:46 PM

1:49:34 PM

1:49:36 PM

1:50:56 PM

1:51:33 PM

1:52:05 PM

1:52:22 PM

1:52:28 PM

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Corrections or updates?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Intention testimony and responses to be admitted?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Ms. Goad?
Asst Atty General Goad - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Cross Examination. Not attorney?
Asst Atty General Goad - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Apply expertise in utility rate and regulation to discuss SB 4?
Asst Atty General Goad - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Rebuttal, page 7, Lines 8-19, read into record?
Asst Atty General Goad - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Based upon excerpt, net book value for East Bend considered net
incremental cost?
Asst Atty General Goad - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Saying in last sentence, including net book value as net incremental
cost?
Asst Atty General Goad - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree net book value consists of sunk costs and not incremental
costs?
Asst Atty General Goad - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Testimony today net book value incremental cost and not sunk cost?
Asst Atty General Goad - withess Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Customers required to pay net book value for East Bend whether
producing or retired?
Asst Atty General Goad - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Refer to rebuttal, page 14, line 21, read bottom paragraph to page
15?
Asst Atty General Goad - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Last sentence talk about Commission not consider impact of rate
shock, admitting $25 average customer's bill constitutes rate shock?
Asst Atty General Goad - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Explain what mean by that sentence?
Asst Atty General Goad - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Believe average rate increase constitute rate shock?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Sierra Club?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Cross Examination. Staying on page 14, lines 6-15, tenets of
ratemaking policy about equity intergenerational users, describe why
applicable?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Not want customers from 2035 to 2041 paying for asset not
used/useful because retired?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Crux of argument plant retire in 2035 for six years customers paying
for asset not generating for them?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace One of purposes align depreciation East Bend and Woodsdale with
projected useful life?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace In March 2023, SB 4 became law?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Review statutes and regulations as part of job?
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1:52:36 PM

1:52:49 PM

1:52:59 PM

1:53:14 PM

1:53:29 PM

1:53:47 PM

1:54:11 PM

1:54:24 PM

1:54:35 PM

1:54:51 PM

1:55:01 PM

1:55:14 PM

1:55:41 PM

1:56:01 PM

1:56:11 PM

1:57:03 PM

1:59:32 PM
2:00:06 PM
2:09:10 PM
2:09:23 PM
2:09:33 PM

2:09:38 PM

Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Law imposes new requirements before fossil fueled generating asset
retire?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Law creates presumption against retirement?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Presumption against retirement be overcome with evidence?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Upon retirement date, customers not exposed to net incremental
cost?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Can be no stranded cost utility seeks when unit retires?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Undepreciated net book value expenses be zero when retires unit?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Essential Commission align depreciation with remaining useful life?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Think state impossible meet burden to retire fossil fuel generating
unit?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Result in customers pay for operation, maintenance, and capital
investments for unit sitting idle?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Keeping uneconomic unit operational costs incurred new
environmental rules?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Best align depreciation with probable end useful life?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Rebuttal, page 14, lines 2-3, lives of asset change?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace New environmental rules constitute factor change useful life?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Had to comply, change useful life of unit?
Atty Henry Sierra Club
Note: Sacre, Candace Look at possibility, mark Sierra Club 7 and 8, 111(d) rule, Exhibit 7
Fact Sheet and Exhibit 8 proposed rule issued today. (Click on link
for further comments.)
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Counsel have copy of entire rule? (Click on link for further
comments.)
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Session Paused
Session Resumed
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Atty Henry Sierra Club
Note: Sacre, Candace

Recess until taken care of.

Back on record in Case No. 2022-00372.
Identify documents?

Mark SC Exhibit 7 a copy of the Fact Sheet for Greenhouse Gas
Standards and Guidelines for Fossil Fuel-Fired Power Plants
Proposed Rule.
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2:09:54 PM

2:10:33 PM

2:10:36 PM

2:10:37 PM

2:10:45 PM

2:10:50 PM

2:10:56 PM

2:11:13 PM

2:11:33 PM

2:11:38 PM

2:11:43 PM

2:12:05 PM

2:13:38 PM

2:14:16 PM

2:14:37 PM

2:14:45 PM

2:15:39 PM

Atty Henry Sierra Club
Note: Sacre, Candace Mark SC Exhibit 8 40 CFR Part 60 EPA New Source Performance
Standards for Greenhouse Gas Emissions from New, Modified, and
Reconstructed Fossil Fuel-Fired Electric Generating Units; reading

(click on link for further comments).
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace So marked.
MARKED - HEARING EXHIBIT SC 7
Note: Sacre, Candace ATTY HENRY SIERRA CLUB - WITNESS LAWLER
Note: Sacre, Candace FACT SHEET GREENHOUSE GAS STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES FOR
FOSSIL FUEL-FIRED POWER PLANTS PROPOSED RULE
MARKED - HEARING EXHIBIT SC 8
Note: Sacre, Candace ATTY HENRY SIERRA CLUB - WITNESS LAWLER
Note: Sacre, Candace 40 CFR PART 60 NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR
GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS FROM NEW, MODIFIED, AND
RECONSTRUCTED FOSSIL FUEL-FIRED ELECTRIC GENERATING
UNITS; EMISSION GUIDELINES FOR GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS
FROM EXISTING FOSSIL FUEL-FIRED ELECTRIC GENERATING
UNITS; AND REPEAL OF THE AFFORDABLE CLEAN ENERGY RULE
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Cross Examination (cont'd). Heard of Clean Air Act?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Heard of Rule 111(d) under Clean Air Act?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace U.S. EPA just issued proposed rule under Clean Air Act 111(d), heard
rumors was coming?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Know 111(d) expected regulate carbon dioxide emissions from
fossil-generating units?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Know it would apply to existing plants?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace East Bend coal-fired plant?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Knew was coming and could impact coal-fired units?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace SC 7, page 6, see section header Emission Guidelines for Existing
Fossil Fuel-Fired Steam Generating EGUs (Primarily Existing Coal
Units), see that?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Second bullet, read?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Even though not attorney, emission limit of 88.4 percent as
reduction rate, understand that?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Understand emission limitation probably lead to additional costs?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace Objection, outside scope and calls for speculation. (Click on link for
further comments.)
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace If new regulation issued and called for significant capital costs to
comply with law, also two off ramps, would utility want evaluate
retire unit rather than incur capital costs?
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2:16:36 PM

2:17:13 PM

2:17:34 PM

2:18:01 PM

2:18:19 PM

2:19:11 PM

2:19:30 PM

2:19:59 PM

2:24:40 PM

2:25:35 PM

2:25:38 PM

2:25:54 PM

2:26:14 PM

2:26:31 PM

2:28:05 PM

2:28:54 PM

2:29:17 PM

Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace One retirement year 2035 only 20 percent capacity factor, would
utility want to evaluate in best interest of ratepayers pay costs
operate unit at 20 percent?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Other off ramp said not have to reduce emissions but retire by 2032,
company want to evaluate 2032 better versus another option?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Two finalized laws and four proposed rules have significant cost on
generating unit, would company look whether slate of rules could
accelerate planned retirement of unit?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace If after evaluation done necessitated bump up retirement date,
should depreciation rate also bumped up?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace If slate of rules increased likelihood earlier retirement date, have
that fact plus fact SB 4 says not any net book value on books,
should utility accelerate depreciation so has options pick off-ramp in
best interests of ratepayers?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Chairman had conversations about resource adequacy, take up to
six years, here?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Concern capacity and energy meet demand in appropriate time
frame, company open doing new evaluation when appropriate date
retire unit?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace
Atty Henry Sierra Club
Note: Sacre, Candace

Objection, outside scope. (Click on link for further comments.)

Move to admit SC 7 and administrative notice of SC 8. (Click on link
for further comments.)
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Cross Examination (cont'd). Rebuttal, page 12, lines 19-20,
responding to Kollen suggestion Commission wait and address East
Bend depreciation request until later?
HEARING EXHIBIT SC 7
Note: Sacre, Candace
Note: Sacre, Candace

ATTY HENRY SIERRA CLUB - WITNESS LAWLER
FACT SHEET GREENHOUSE GAS STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES FOR
FOSSIL FUEL-FIRED POWER PLANTS PROPOSED RULE
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace State, reading (click on link for further comments), correct?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Rebuttal, page 12, lines 4-14, in paragraph, you state, reading (click
on link for further comments), correct?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Rebuttal, page 12, same lines 4 -14, reading (click on link for further
comments), correct?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace If new regulation require unit retire sooner 2035, in best interests of
ratepayers accelerate depreciation faster?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Page 12, lines 19-20, depreciation perspective not wait too late to
make decision?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Making sure useful life and depreciation aligned?
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2:29:31 PM

2:29:40 PM

2:30:15 PM

2:30:22 PM

2:30:48 PM

2:30:53 PM

2:31:38 PM

2:31:46 PM

2:32:04 PM

2:32:30 PM

2:33:18 PM

2:33:21 PM

2:34:44 PM

2:35:12 PM

2:36:04 PM

2:36:56 PM

2:37:34 PM

2:37:42 PM

2:37:49 PM

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Questions?
Staff Atty Temple PSC - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Cross Examination. Incremental load investment charge, wanted
make sure no municipality passed ordinance company worried
about?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Questions?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Examination. EGU retires early undepreciated value stranded asset
cost?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Have copy of SB 4?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Reviewed bill?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace What say at top?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Text be same, section 2 shall be rebuttal presumption?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Referring to earlier in testimony?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Rebuttal presumption, SB 4 created rebuttable presumption, reading
(click on link for further comments), net incremental costs
undepreciated value of plant?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawless
Note: Sacre, Candace Stranded asset costs?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Section 2(2), shall be a rebuttable presumption again, reading (click
on link for further comments), provides list of evidence, saying
stranded asset recovery net incremental cost but read bill not
recover stranded asset costs unless prove no stranded asset costs?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace How make sense?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Not question, read this as saying, have to prove no undepreciated
value of retired power plant?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Second sentence about more than just retirement, first action,
Section 2(2), first item, shall approve retirement, not approve
surcharge decommissioning, agree?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Or take any other action allows recovery of cost for retirement of
electric generating unit including stranded asset recover,
understanding undepreciated value net incremental cost?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Also asked agree undepreciated value stranded asset cost, also
agreed?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree stranded asset cost is net incremental cost?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree not recover undepreciated cost unless prove are no
undepreciated costs?
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2:38:16 PM

2:38:45 PM

2:38:58 PM

2:39:07 PM

2:39:22 PM

2:39:39 PM

2:40:08 PM

2:40:18 PM

2:40:28 PM

2:41:02 PM

2:41:14 PM

2:41:32 PM

2:41:58 PM

2:42:29 PM

2:42:36 PM

2:42:39 PM

2:42:56 PM

2:43:03 PM

2:43:23 PM

2:44:19 PM

2:44:32 PM

2:44:38 PM

2:44:46 PM

Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Concern with intergenerational inequity making sure folks after plant
not have value not pay costs of plant?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Read SB 4 keep uneconomic plant from retiring?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Concern you had?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Would drive whatever expenses necessary to keep open?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Idle?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Given consideration whether intent keep uneconomic plant from
retiring?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Hear debate SB 4, hearings, floor debates?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Supporters discuss concerns resource adequacy, lights going out?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Job of combustion turbines, may go year not operating, may be
years or months between operating, there for meeting peak
demand, your understanding?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Built for that?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Available for extreme times, provide value to consumers?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Almost for us to determine?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Questions for Steinkuhl, about test year expenses and deferral
related to replacement power?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Deferred incremental forced replacement power cost forced outages
since last rate case?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Proposing recover those?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Think power prices be lower in '23 than '22?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Testimony of Swez?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Replacement power lower than test year amount, will defer
detriment as regulatory liability?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Proposal amortize regulatory assets?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace One of couple reg assets have in this case?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Between what unwound under ARAM and unprotected?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Proposing regulatory assets/liabilities in rate base?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Why not?
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2:45:12 PM

2:46:27 PM

2:46:37 PM

2:46:41 PM

2:47:39 PM

2:47:49 PM

2:48:00 PM

2:48:27 PM

2:48:50 PM

2:49:13 PM

2:49:33 PM

2:49:59 PM

2:50:37 PM

2:50:40 PM

2:50:45 PM

2:51:11 PM

2:51:26 PM

2:51:51 PM

2:51:58 PM

2:52:11 PM

2:52:51 PM

2:54:21 PM

Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Carry return while being deferred?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Carry return even at debt rate?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Not think deferred O&M earned long-term debt rate was denied
inclusion?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace In 2017-00321 case?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Why all regulatory assets show up on amortization schedule?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Case where have capitalization '21 gas case?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Doing return on capitalization or rate base here?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace What distinction between amortizing opposed including in rate base?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Proposed amortization replacement power forced outages proposing
straight line amortize return of and not proposing return?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Alternative proposal to Kollen suggestion?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Proposal weighted average cost of capital or long-term debt rate?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Between amortization and inclusion of rate base, impact perspective
how long balances be recovered?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace For customers matters, greater carrying charge longer it goes?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Redirect?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Redirect Examination. SB 4, do you have still?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace What stranded cost, what incremental cost, cost of plant become
stranded before retirement?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Company proposing depreciate and align best can life of plant, have
bearing on whether have stranded cost?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Net incremental cost include stranded cost or cost new generation?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Net incremental costs could include either stranded costs or new
generation?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Company proposing actual retirement East Bend or Woodsdale?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace What happens if company depreciation request granted but need
extend life East Bend, what happen?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace To what extent setting depreciation aligning with 2035 life provide
flexibility to Commission life of East Bend?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Here yesterday Bauer on stand?
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2:54:50 PM

2:54:56 PM

2:55:37 PM

2:55:42 PM

2:56:01 PM

2:56:11 PM

2:56:47 PM

2:59:54 PM

3:00:18 PM

3:01:04 PM

3:02:20 PM

3:02:35 PM

3:02:45 PM

3:03:28 PM

3:03:40 PM

3:03:53 PM

3:03:59 PM

3:04:14 PM

3:04:26 PM

3:06:02 PM

3:06:31 PM

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Large issues impact on cash flow?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Heard Bauer impact cash flow on credit metrics and credit ratings?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Concern not just time value of money but cash flow as well?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Atty Henry Sierra Club
Note: Sacre, Candace

Questions?

Recross Examination. When build new asset, Duke usually request
QuIP?
Chairman Chandler - witness Lawler
Note: Sacre, Candace Examination. Distinction whether seeking set rates based on rate or
capitalization?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Procedural discussions. (Click on link for further comments.)
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Examination. Number of questions for Colley regarding in-person
payment opportunities, anybody made you aware?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace One location in Kentucky accept in-person payments without
charging additional $1.50, aware only one location?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Why not more options?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Already case when got there?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace When you went into your current position, Monmouth office open
then?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Since in this position, not had offering at Duke location?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Say offerings, with exception single location, customers pay for
offering?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Negative feedback on that?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace How many customers pay in person?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller

Counsel?

Note: Sacre, Candace Heard 400?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Questions?

Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Cross Examination. Company willing say look at slate of proposed
rules so Commission have a fuller picture of compliance costs?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Case with regard to Big Sandy, Commission considering if utility not
consider cost comply, would own as zero dollars, agree to disagree?
Atty D'Ascenzo Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace Object, counsel testifying, no foundation. (Click on link for further
comments.)
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3:07:11 PM

3:07:28 PM

3:07:42 PM

3:07:53 PM

3:08:11 PM

3:08:18 PM

3:08:45 PM

3:09:04 PM

3:09:21 PM

3:09:27 PM

3:09:29 PM

3:09:38 PM

3:09:46 PM

3:10:18 PM

3:10:30 PM

3:11:28 PM

3:11:36 PM

3:11:46 PM

3:11:58 PM

3:12:21 PM

3:12:34 PM

3:13:02 PM

Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Company position not consider proposed regulations when
considering comply with finalized rule?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace CPCN use forecasted information other variables?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace CPCN look at forecasted LMPs, market prices?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace In general, rate cases number of variables forecasted?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Not known variables be but forecast viable range?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Forecasting used as common practice?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Forecasting compliance costs with environmental rules outside what
appropriate in CPCN?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Proposed rule, no?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace What are lifecycles?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace At what stage company start forecasting compliance costs?
Atty D'Ascenzo Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace Objection, calls for speculation. (Click on link for further comments.)
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace How far in advance utility look, two years, three years, five years?
Atty D'Ascenzo Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace Objection, compound question. (Click on link for further comments.)
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace How far advance compliance obligation company forecasting
compliance costs?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Look at rules and cost compliance when proposed?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace If seek CPCN to comply with rule, share information possible
compliance cost and other rules with Commission?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Familiar with modeling for IRP 20217
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Modeling for IRP 2021 included carbon price?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Carbon tax be proxy other environmental rules?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Similar analysis not accompany CPCN?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace If Commission concerned how handle piecemeal nature of
regulations, how best Commission consider issues?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Not have any advice on how handle when regulations come in
cyclical fashion?
Atty D'Ascenzo Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace Objection, asked and answered. (Click on link for further
comments.)
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3:13:32 PM

3:13:44 PM

3:14:03 PM

3:14:20 PM

3:14:34 PM

3:14:42 PM

3:14:48 PM

3:14:55 PM

3:15:27 PM

3:15:37 PM

3:16:26 PM

3:17:01 PM

3:17:58 PM

3:18:02 PM

3:18:34 PM

3:19:41 PM

3:19:57 PM

3:20:06 PM

Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace In next IRP, company intend look how comply with proposed
regulations?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Include proposed or only finalized?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Appropriate next IRP Duke consider how 111(d) rule impact
generating resources?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace If was Good Neighbor Rule, think also be considered?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Know criteria use whether deemed appropriate include?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Majority proposed rules considered?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Questions?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Examination. Heard term, throwing good money after bad?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Requirement for CPCN utility must show need and proposal least
cost, most reasonable alternative, agree?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Least cost, most reasonable alternative is absence of wasteful
duplication, previous experience?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace In that, be situations have power plant retire in two years, not
propose upgrades $100 million continue two years without upgrade
and expect retire?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Duke not make proposal let's spend $100 million but customers get
no economic benefit not extend life expect something in two years
forces retirement of plant?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Environmental regulations passed in piecemeal fashion, believe
reasonable ignore risk expected/proposed rules have on decision
making, reasonable ignore making CPCN decisions?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace And to original proposal?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Seems is spectrum making decisions today based on speculative
concerns all way to ignoring anything happens after tomorrow,
bookends of questions being asked?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Reasonable assume DEK take into account and provide weight to
risks or certain actions may occur in future making proposal in CPC
and alternatives weighing different outcomes, how apply to proposal
and alternatives?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Generation exists to produce energy to serve consumers, need?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Know when next IRP filing is?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Conversations with Park about IRP in 2024?
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3:20:53 PM

3:21:30 PM

3:24:26 PM

3:25:16 PM

3:25:25 PM

3:25:29 PM

3:26:06 PM

3:27:12 PM

3:27:16 PM

3:27:18 PM

3:27:26 PM

3:27:42 PM

3:27:48 PM

3:27:56 PM

3:28:02 PM

3:28:21 PM

3:28:26 PM

3:28:33 PM

3:28:46 PM

3:29:08 PM

3:29:12 PM

3:29:33 PM

Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Personal perspective things move faster, moving faster in electric
industry?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Do IRPs every three years, stale by time filed with us, by time get it
input from two, three years before?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Necessarily mean Commission have confidence utilities internally
reviewing and weighing factors, confidence that not have to wait
how considering risks and options?
Chairman Chandler - witness Spiller
Note: Sacre, Candace Final item would seem responses were of the kind of we'll look at
that next IRP, expect to see in next IRP, thank you for your answer
on that, not waiting to kick the tires on increasing risks?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Call your witness?
Atty Werner Kentucky Broadband & Cable
Note: Sacre, Candace Patricia Kravtin.
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Witness is sworn.
Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Examination. Name and address?
Atty Werner Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Direct Examination. For whom work?
Atty Werner Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Title or position?
Atty Werner Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Prepare and cause be filed testimony and responses?
Atty Werner Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Corrections?
Atty Werner Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Any other corrections?
Atty Werner Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Asked those questions today, would answers be same?
Atty Werner Kentucky Broadband & Cable - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Adopt testimony and responses as testimony in hearing?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Questions?
Atty Herring Duke Kentucky - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Cross Examination. Have testimony in front of you?
Atty Herring Duke Kentucky - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Page 4, state served as witness in several other Kentucky
proceedings?
Atty Herring Duke Kentucky - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace All proceedings related to pole attachment regulations?

Happy to hear that, appreciate it.
Redirect?
Anything else?

Procedural discussion. (Click on link for further comments.)
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3:30:06 PM

3:30:37 PM

3:30:52 PM

3:32:12 PM

3:33:07 PM

3:33:25 PM

3:33:30 PM

3:33:47 PM

3:34:22 PM

3:35:05 PM

3:35:23 PM

3:36:07 PM

3:37:24 PM

3:38:08 PM

3:38:55 PM

3:40:01 PM

3:40:10 PM

3:40:48 PM

3:41:09 PM

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

witness Kravtin
Commission make any changes to methods used by utilities perform
pole attachment calculations?
witness Kravtin
Not see where disputed utility poll attachment charges be calculated
in accordance with Commission decision referencing in
Administrative Case 251?
witness Kravtin
Not dispute regulation should be calculating under is administrative
case?
witness Kravtin
Direct, page 6, one KBCA issues how Duke calculated charge is Duke
calculation not take into account attachments on 50-foot poles?
witness Kravtin
Looking at testimony in middle where state, reading (click on link for
further calculations), portion referencing, see that?
witness Kravtin
Focus on fifty-foot pole issue, decision in 251 attach that as exhibit
to testimony?
witness Kravtin
Familiar with decision?
witness Kravtin
Have decision in front of you?
witness Kravtin
Page 12, heading usable space, understanding Commission
discusses assumptions calculate usable space on pole heights?
witness Kravtin
Commission not discuss usable space 50-foot pole?
witness Kravtin
No discussion of 50-foot poles?
witness Kravtin
Commission not perform analysis of 50-foot pole?
witness Kravtin
Did you perform analysis usable space 50-foot pole for this
proceeding?
witness Kravtin
Aware whether company done analysis of its 50-foot poles space for
attachments?
witness Kravtin
Usable space part of calculation?
witness Kravtin
Agree Commission decision in Admin 251 controls?

Questions?

Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin

Note: Sacre, Candace

Examination. Noticed in CV first time presenting testimony was in
Kentucky, welcome back.

Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin

Note: Sacre, Candace

Experience where going on other places, testified for KCTA and
other CATV attachments?

Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin

Note: Sacre, Candace

Swath of investor-owned groups, even with Admin 251, working
across entire territory, all investor-owned implementing 251 same
way used/unused space in calculation?
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3:50:46 PM

3:51:23 PM

3:51:36 PM

3:51:49 PM

3:52:05 PM

3:53:23 PM

3:53:43 PM

3:54:09 PM

3:54:12 PM

3:54:30 PM

3:54:36 PM

3:54:45 PM

3:56:09 PM

3:57:50 PM
3:57:53 PM
3:58:12 PM
3:58:49 PM
4:14:56 PM
4:15:20 PM

4:15:25 PM

Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Distinction between use of average verse weighted average for 30-
35 and 40-45 foot poles?
Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Argument material discrepancy 1982 order, aware other utilities
have relative number same size poles consistent across all
territories, make sense?
Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Exhibit 2, page 11, usable space, testimony, in 1982, Commission
said, reading (click on link for further comments), what recommend
using calculating average height?
Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Other question Sailers could not answer, physics of pole, height of
pole dictates depth must be buried?
Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Know what general rule is?
Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Admin 251, usable space whatever left over after determine
unusable space?
Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Averages calculated here are 32.5 and 37.5 feet?
Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Not necessarily lead to poles buried six feet?
Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Page 12, Order, trying give amount CATV operator responsbile for,
one foot?
Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Which is five and a half feet for 32.5-foot pole?
Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Next page?
Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Next page, first one, 37.5 feet results in one foot of 8.17 feet?
Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace That results in .1224?
Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Input in determining rate for CATV?
Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Why asking, going to four decimal points determining rate but
averages for determining height of pole?
Chairman Chandler - witness Kravtin
Note: Sacre, Candace Calculation of rate, use averages, mean not care if .1224 was .12 or
.13, would matter in determining rate?
Chairman Chandler

Note: Sacre, Candace Redirect?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Questions?

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Session Paused

Session Resumed

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Recess until 4:10.

Back on the record in Case No. 2022-00372.

Call your witness.
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4:16:10 PM

4:16:16 PM

4:16:30 PM

4:17:13 PM

4:17:16 PM

4:17:39 PM

4:17:51 PM

4:18:10 PM

4:18:16 PM

4:18:28 PM

4:18:31 PM

4:18:36 PM

4:18:42 PM

4:19:04 PM

4:19:15 PM

4:19:43 PM

4:19:50 PM

4:20:11 PM

Atty Henry Sierra Club
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Witness is sworn.
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Examination. Name and address?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Direct Examination. Same Shenstone Harris caused testimony be
filed?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Modifications?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace What are changes?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Any other?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Only changes?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Asked today, answers be same?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Questions?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Cross Examination. Perspective reviewing company's testimony,
ever been coal plant operator?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace CT or CC gas plant operator?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Look at resume, spent time modeling potential generation and
power supply decisions?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Prepare own models?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Why do that?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Why prepare own models?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace What value completing own analyses opposed to relying on others
analyses?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace When doing modeling, what value of doing own models versus on
somebody else's models?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Direct, page 7, relied on work papers, exhibits, and responses of
Duke witnesses?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Also rely on public information other Commission proceedings and
documents?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Not conduct model useful life of East Bend, Woodsdale, or other
Duke facility?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Conduct own resource plan?

Sarah Shenstone Harris.
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4:25:27 PM

4:25:43 PM
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Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Analysis retirement date comparing cost versus benefits operating
East Bend?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Complete resource plan also look at comparison of East Bend versus
alternative sources needed?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Not estimated cost per megawatt replacing East Bend with
renewables?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Not calculated cost megawatt hour replacing East Bend?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Question is what analyses conducted, not estimated that cost?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace When look at cost of CT plant when looking at, not hear what you
said?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Not estimated cost per megawatt of replacing East Bend with
renewables, only question?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Did conduct analysis natural gas unit replacement?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Said was conservative or high level, trying to get to where you
characterize analysis?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Not assess whether renewable resources be located within Duke
service territory?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Not assess whether renewable resources to extent play role in
replacement of East Bend within/outside Duke territory?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Not analyze what percentage energy needs come from market
purchases?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Said earlier East Bend should retire around 2030, Sierra Club
position?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace What SC advocating for?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Is SC advocating retirement by 20307?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree regulated utility obligation to serve customers?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Unlike nonregulated, Duke not choose stop serving customers based
on cost benefit analysis?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Duke needs cost of replacement units, market energy purchases, or
other needs to serve load?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace SC position East Bend retired by 2030, less than seven years?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Where in testimony evaluate capability replace East Bend by 20307?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Where do evaluate feasibility taking East Bend offline by 20307?
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Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace
Atty Henry Sierra Club
Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Henry Sierra Club
Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

witness Shenstone Harris
Hear Parks testimony company not identified replacement type?
witness Shenstone Harris
Mean not plan out in marketplace?
witness Shenstone Harris
Be necessary steps?
witness Shenstone Harris
Here for Swez testimony PJM requires three years looking at
interconnections?
witness Shenstone Harris
Company needs CPCN?
witness Shenstone Harris
Experience how long plan, prepare, obtain CPCN?
witness Shenstone Harris
Know how long it takes?
witness Shenstone Harris
Hear testimony take four-six years for approval interconnection and
CPCN?
witness Shenstone Harris
On top of that, time for construction?
witness Shenstone Harris
Not involved with operating generation facility, not get into time
takes?
witness Shenstone Harris
Page 14, direct, lines 18-22, country's experience inflation and
supply chain challenges?
witness Shenstone Harris
Supply chain and inflationary challenges access to materials,
vendors, parts/equipment more challenging?
witness Shenstone Harris
Repeating, also correct (click on link for further comments)?
witness Shenstone Harris
Understand Duke not requesting actual retirement date?
witness Shenstone Harris
SC agree if Commission not agree 2030 probable retirement date
then 2035 preferable?
witness Shenstone Harris
SC agree general principle ratemaking commission should typically -

Objection, expert hired represent SC. (Click on link for further
comments.)

witness Shenstone Harris
SC agree appropriate for commission to align depreciation and
decommissioning costs with remaining useful life?

Objection, speaks for her own opinion not Sierra Club. (Click on link
for further comments.)

witness Shenstone Harris
Agree principle ratemaking commission align depreciation and
decommissioning costs with remaining useful life?

witness Shenstone Harris
Also agree aligning depreciation with probable life provides flexibility
adjust retirement down road?
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4:44:45 PM
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Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace
Atty Henry Sierra Club
Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace
Atty Henry Sierra Club
Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

witness Shenstone Harris
Also agree aligning depreciation with probable life provides flexibility
adjust retirement down road?
witness Shenstone Harris
If life extended beyond depreciation term, a commission can
readjust depreciation align new facts?
witness Shenstone Harris
Page 40-49 of testimony, securitization, line 10, reading (click on
link for further comments)?
witness Shenstone Harris
What mean by irrevocable and nonbypassable?
witness Shenstone Harris
If company choose securitization and Commission or company
determines East Bend operate longer then end date, no going back
under securitization model?
witness Shenstone Harris
Your position good goal incentivize closure coal plants is good?
witness Shenstone Harris
Is your view incentivizing closure of coal plants opposed to keeping
open is good thing?
witness Shenstone Harris
Closure of coal plants, retiring early?

Objection, outside scope of proceeding. (Click on link for further
comments.)
witness Shenstone Harris
Good thing to close coal plants as early as feasible?
witness Shenstone Harris
Page 30 of direct, line 6-7, reading (click on link for further
comments)?
witness Shenstone Harris
Agree unless battery storage more feasible wind displaces base
load/resources when wind blows and solar only when sun shines?
witness Shenstone Harris
Not see where speak about dispatchability, miss anything?

Objection, in middle of answer. (Click on link for further comments.)
witness Shenstone Harris
On same page, state, reading (click on link for further comments)?
witness Shenstone Harris
Looked at footnote reference page 30, not see anything speaks to
what high end LMPs might be?
witness Shenstone Harris
Review of testimony only speaks to 26 percent low end future LMP
range, not see high end could be, miss anything?
witness Shenstone Harris
Page 42, direct, bottom and on to page 43, speak other risks coal
plant operations?
witness Shenstone Harris
Provide analysis quantification how risks affect Duke modeling 2035
to 2030?
witness Shenstone Harris
Assertion did not?
witness Shenstone Harris
EV adoption, RS-TOU-CPP, DT, and Rider LM, talk about each?
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4:52:00 PM

4:52:39 PM

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace RS-TOU-CPP is whole account rate?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Not EV specific rate?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Rate DT and Rider LM customer entire account load?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree Commission investigation specific to EV adoption/rates?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace RS-TOU-CPP not incentive enough customers adopt rate?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Recommendation solve problem company strengthen on-peak, off-
peak differential?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Not quantify what differential be?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Rate differential not big enough based on savings to customers?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Stated in dollars or cents?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace RS-TOU-CPP, page 56 of testimony, Table 3, analysis specific to
EVs?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Sailers speaking percentage change in rate?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Possible what consider insignificant dollar differential function of low
pricing?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Speaking in terms insignificant dollar differential, not a function of
rate already low?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Saw in testimony spoke to programs elsewhere not work?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Testimony offer evidence higher differential succeeded in creating
higher enrollment rates?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace In order understand what big enough, have quantification what
should be?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Page 65 of testimony, Table 4, analysis Rate DT?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Comparison specific commercial customers with EV fleet?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Rider LM concerns hinge on fact including off-peak hours result in
paying too much off-peak hours?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Again, EV charging?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Same table Rider LM page 67 specific to commercial customers EV
fleet?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Not provide whole account analysis?
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4:54:38 PM

4:54:48 PM

4:54:58 PM

4:55:28 PM

4:55:38 PM

4:56:08 PM

4:56:12 PM

4:56:14 PM
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4:57:25 PM

4:58:20 PM

4:58:38 PM

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Have quantitative analysis to show say be incorrect Sailers testimony
say participation Rider LM lowers customer bill?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Have any quantitative analysis dispute Sailers testimony?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Questions?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Examination. Consulting expert now?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Previously worked at utility?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Integrated resource planning?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Customers care about rates or bills?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Reason for that?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Have friends/family eyes glaze over when talk about job?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Personally know friends or family know what rates are?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Appreciation for what utility bill is?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace More likely know what end bill is than are rate?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace RS-TOU-CPP tariff, Duke RS rate ten cents?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Less than Cambridge, Mass?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Less than California?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Places in U.S. ordinary RS Tariff quarter, 30 cents kilowatt hour?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Seen Duke customer charge?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Duke fairly low or fairly high customer charge?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace RS-TOU-CPP Sailers referring to $13, what say that is relative to
experience?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree what not recovered customer charge recovered by volumetric
charge?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Tariff only has customer charge and volumetric, what not recovered
customer charges recover through volumetric component?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Four-part time of use CPP charge, fine with having four distinct
parts?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Why how simple matter?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Understanding or implementation or both?
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Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Analysis determined East Bend no longer economic?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Compared to cost to operate and revenues in market?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Duke vertically integrated utility?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace If Duke leaves PIJM, now PIM has penalty to leave RTO?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Aware Kentucky PSC had to agree allow Duke join PIM?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Make sense inverse be true?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace As vertically integrated utility meet native load, why definition
economic revenues from market instead of stay open costs
more/less than replacement?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Regardless how much Duke/East Bend/Woodsdale lose in market,
customers paying embedded costs?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Be case in market or out of market?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Why market revenues matter if customers on hook for embedded
costs?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Economic to what alternative, what as alternative to status quo?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Did analysis said East Bend uneconomic?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace What counterfactual to actual experience East Bend?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace To a counterfactual?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace But what alternative?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Not analysis you did?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree is analysis determine current plant economic or not?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace That is alternative, uneconomic and East Bend retires, replacement
capacity value be counterfactual whether retire?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Going forward analysis?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Should ignore sunk costs?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Should take into account stay open costs, cost of production,
expected revenues, things like that?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Similar/same analysis having do environmental upgrades verse not
complying and retire?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace When say uneconomic your analysis, take into consideration
additional cost utility incur if not member of PJM?
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Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree additional costs incur if said forget market revenues, forget
market costs, do stand-alone basis, are additional costs incur
foregoing through RTO membership?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Heard of contingency reserves?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Utilities have to carry contingency reserves equal to largest single
contingency?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Ordinarily, largest single contingency biggest unit currently on
system?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace If 2,000 MW largest operating plan, need have 2,000 megawatts
reserves contingency?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Duke has two generating plants, one multiple units?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace East Bend and Woodsdale?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Ignoring behind meter stuff?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Duke, to comply with NERC, have to carry own contingency reserves
or enter into agreements other utilities carry their portion?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace If part of PIM, pay their share; if not, come up with own?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Cost be incurred not taken into account in determination economic?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Taking into account risk proposed environmental compliance costs
represent to individual EGU?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace How recommend taking into account risks when modeling if costs
not yet determinable?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Can kick it to Duke, but the buck stops here, ends of spectrum,
make sure have appreciation not have recommendations how take
considerations into account?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Seen in experience folks using COS assumption EGUs seen decades
environmental compliance costs and assuming going forward like
historical compliance costs?
Chairman Chandler - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace When say picking up speed, mean speed occur, magnitude of
impact, or other metric?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Redirect?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Redirect Examination. Case about retiring East Bend and Woodsdale
or pegging depreciation to anticipated retirement dates?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Is this case about retiring East Bend and Woodsdale or about
pegging depreciation to anticipated retirement dates?
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Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Recommended Commission peg depreciation to 2030 instead of
2035, based on analysis or other information?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Saying modeling in Duke IRP supports recommendation?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace What events happened since Duke modeling that support
recommendation?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Under Inflation Reduction Act, provisions would lose value if Duke
waited until 2035 how replace any unit?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace One of ways figure out take advantage, how recommend figure out
value?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace How Duke figure out value of Inflation Reduction Act?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Timeframe for new resource interconnected and approval for CPCN,
those actions favor earlier action or waiting?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Supply chain and inflation issues, think those favor waiting take
action or take action earlier?
Atty Grundmann Walmart
Note: Sacre, Candace Object to line. (Click on link for further comments.)
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Supply chain and inflation issues, asked those issues favor earlier
action or waiting?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Opinion based on economics of facility?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Conversation with counsel risk of aging coal plants, Duke modeling
handled in reasonable manner, how Duke handle fixed costs?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace In analysis look at cost of East Bend compared to BRA or auction or
something else?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Consider net CONE be considering a replacement resource?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Did look at cost and revenues plant and compared to alternative?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Conversation with Chairman grappling with new regulations, 111(d)
just today, how comply with rule like that?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace Objection, proposed rule or rule? (Click on link for further
comments.)
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Have any insights now?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Analysis talking about looking at prospective costs compared to all-in
costs of alternative?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Duke can purchase energy from PIJM?
Atty Henry Sierra Club - witness Shenstone Harris
Note: Sacre, Candace Also purchase bilateral contracts?
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Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Asst Atty General Goad
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Additional questions?
Anything else?

First witness?

Lane Kollen.

Witness is sworn.

Chairman Chandler - witness Kollen

Note: Sacre, Candace

Examination. Name and address?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Kollen

Note: Sacre, Candace

Direct Examination. What your occupation?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Kollen

Note: Sacre, Candace

Cause be filed testimony?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Kollen

Note: Sacre, Candace

Additions or corrections?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Kollen

Note: Sacre, Candace

Sponsor responses to discovery requests?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Kollen

Note: Sacre, Candace

Asked same questions, answers be same?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Kollen

Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Grundmann Walmart -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Grundmann Walmart -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Grundmann Walmart -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Grundmann Walmart -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Grundmann Walmart -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Grundmann Walmart -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Grundmann Walmart -

Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Energy -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Energy -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Intention adopt testimony in this matter?

Questions?

witness Kollen
Cross Examination. Listening cross examining Halstead about Clean
Energy Connection program?

witness Kollen
Questions were context of, if Commission approve Clean Energy
Connection now, future CPCN, company gauge customer interest in
program, hear those questions?

witness Kollen
Agree concept approve tariff future CPCN give company ability
gauge interest from customers?

witness Kollen
My point, your understanding assume future CPCN project subject
Clean Energy Connection tariff program, goal not impose costs on
nonparticipating customers?

witness Kollen
Review Clean Energy Connection program approved Duke Energy
Florida?

witness Kollen
Aware Duke Energy Florida implemented Clean Energy Connection?

witness Kollen
When saw testimony Halstead, not look how program worked?

Questions?
witness Kollen

Cross Examination. Are CPA?
witness Kollen

Not engineer?
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5:30:13 PM

5:31:50 PM

5:33:02 PM

5:33:22 PM

5:34:02 PM

5:34:56 PM

5:35:27 PM

5:36:17 PM

5:36:24 PM

5:38:04 PM

5:38:26 PM

5:39:51 PM

5:40:48 PM

5:41:04 PM

5:41:26 PM

5:42:05 PM

5:43:33 PM

Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Not attorney?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Also not certified depreciation professional?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Recommendation East Bend 2 maintain retirement date of 2040
calculate depreciation expense?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Understanding company proposal change depreciation date to 2035?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree company proposal based on 2021 IRP?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Neither you nor other OAG witnesses provided modeling?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Under recommendation East Bend depreciation rates reflect 2041
retirement date and Woodsdale 2040?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Provide analysis in testimony impact to customers retiring those 12-
month period?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree substantial impact on ratepayers?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Direct, page 31, line 2, discuss possibility new capacity, retires East
Bend 2 prior 2041?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree assuming no change depreciable life prior be undepreciated
net book value?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace In room when Lawler testified?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Recall purpose of company proposing 2035 date reduce net book
value?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Page 30, lines 4-7, discussing recovery remaining net book value
East Bend 2 if plant retired 2035?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Testify remaining costs be considered "cost transitioning to new
capacity?"
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Those future customers paying for large undepreciated net book
value in addition new generation?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Paying for resource no longer operating?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Not disagree East Bend 2 operating/generating energy for
customers?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Direct, page 29, discuss recommendation not change depreciation
rate?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Recommendation future CPCN proceeding Commission approve
replacement resource, time to adjust rate?
Atty Herring Duke Energy - witness Kollen
Note: Sacre, Candace Recommendation, page 37, discussing end-of-life materials/supply
inventories?

Created by JAVS on 7/12/2023

- Page 51 of 60 -



5:43:54 PM

5:44:36 PM

5:45:08 PM

5:46:00 PM

5:46:20 PM

5:47:24 PM

5:47:44 PM

5:48:03 PM

5:48:14 PM

5:48:16 PM

5:48:43 PM

5:48:49 PM

5:49:08 PM

5:49:14 PM

5:49:18 PM

5:49:23 PM

5:49:29 PM

5:49:33 PM

5:49:41 PM

5:50:01 PM

5:50:25 PM

5:51:01 PM

5:51:06 PM

5:51:33 PM

Atty Herring Duke Energy -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Energy -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Energy -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Energy -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Energy -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Herring Duke Energy -

Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

witness Kollen
Not dispute end of life for Woodsdale and East Bend be materials
and supply?
witness Kollen
Not performed studies/analyses contradict ones by company?
witness Kollen
Based on current materials and supply?
witness Kollen
Page 11, discuss reduce revenue lag days cash working capital
calculation?
witness Kollen
Recommendation based on assumption line 12 Duke sells prior day
accounts receivable on daily basis?
witness Kollen
Whether did watch that part of proceeding?

Questions?
Redirect?

Ms. Goad?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Futral

Note: Sacre, Candace

Randy Futral.

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Futral

Note: Sacre, Candace

Witness is sworn.

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Futral

Note: Sacre, Candace

Examination. Name and address?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Futral

Note: Sacre, Candace

Direct Examination. Occupation?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Futral

Note: Sacre, Candace

Cause be filed testimony?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Futral

Note: Sacre, Candace

Additions, corrections?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Futral

Note: Sacre, Candace

Sponsor responses?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Futral

Note: Sacre, Candace

Asked same questions, answers be same?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Futral

Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler

Note: Sacre, Candace
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace

Intention adopt testimony and responses?

Questions?

- witness Futral

Cross Examination. Understanding Dept of Revenue establishes
property taxes based on calendar year data?

- witness Futral

Question 36, discovery responses, question was, reading (click on
link for further comments), correct?

- witness Futral

Say no, and go on to explain why?

- witness Futral

Say in response observed Duke operating income decrease 2021
before new rates go into effect?

- witness Futral

Mean I-1?
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5:52:38 PM

5:52:55 PM

5:53:09 PM

5:53:20 PM

5:53:24 PM

5:53:35 PM

5:53:50 PM

5:54:14 PM

5:54:28 PM

5:54:33 PM

5:54:38 PM

5:55:14 PM

5:55:25 PM

5:55:31 PM

5:55:48 PM

5:56:12 PM

6:07:39 PM

6:08:07 PM

6:08:14 PM

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Session Paused
Session Resumed
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

witness Futral
Not think appropriate reflect reductions operating income?
witness Futral
Outlined in response?
witness Futral
Basis for comparing Schedule I-1 from application, note operating
income 2021 $59.813 million?
witness Futral
Calendar year 20217
witness Futral
Actual data from 2021?
witness Futral
Schedule I-1 projected base year electric operating income fall to
$48.705 million?
witness Futral
Projected base year?
witness Futral
Accept twelve months ended Feb 28 2023?
witness Futral
Not calendar year?
witness Futral
Same time in Schedule I about base period and test year
comparisons?
witness Futral
Time Schedule I filed base period six months actual data through
Aug 31 2022 and six months forecast?
witness Futral
Turning to discovery Question 36, after talking '21 and projected
base year, say electric operating income increase slightly to $50.991
million forecasted test year prior any rate increases?
witness Futral
Agree forecasted test year 12 months ending Jun 30 2024?
witness Futral
Again not calendar year?
witness Futral
Familiar with FERC Form 1 is?
witness Futral
Explain what is?
witness Futral
Agree provides actual data for prior period?
witness Futral
FERC Form 1 publicly available document?

Ask can approach witness. (Click on link for further comments.)

Short recess, five minutes.

Back on the record in Case No. 2022-00372.

Continue with cross.
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6:08:27 PM
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6:09:11 PM

6:09:28 PM

6:09:53 PM

6:10:03 PM

6:10:22 PM

6:10:29 PM

6:10:35 PM

6:10:43 PM

6:10:54 PM

6:11:02 PM

6:11:23 PM

6:11:44 PM

6:11:58 PM

6:12:20 PM

6:12:24 PM

6:12:25 PM

6:13:12 PM

6:13:16 PM

6:16:40 PM

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

witness Futral
Cross Examination (cont'd). Before break talking about FERC Form
1, recall?
witness Futral
Provided what marked DEK 5, see that?
witness Futral
Recognize document?
witness Futral
Includes statement of income, net operating income current and
prior year?
witness Futral
Take a look at DEK 5, first two pages indicate Duke Kentucky FERC
Form 1 20227
witness Futral
Green tab, turn to that page?
witness Futral
See statement of income?
witness Futral
Look at column headings, find headings labeled electric utility?
witness Futral
Electric utility, current year to date?
witness Futral
Current year to date 2022?
witness Futral
Next to it, electric utility, previous year to date, 20217
witness Futral
Move down to Row 27?
witness Futral
Net utility operating income, enter total line 2 less 25?
witness Futral
Electric utility, previous year to date, 2021, net utililty operating
income of $59,813,236 referenced in discovery?
witness Futral
Column to left, 2022 actual calendar year net utililty operation
income for electric department, total $61,216,563?
witness Futral
Increase of $2 million in income?
witness Futral
Those data points represent net utility operating income increase
from 2021 to 2022?

Introduce this?
witness Futral
Move admission DEK 5.

HEARING EXHIBIT DEK EXHIBIT 5

Note: Sacre, Candace

Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler

Note: Sacre, Candace

ATTY BRAMA DUKE KENTUCKY - WITNESS FUTRAL
DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY FERC FORM 1

Questions?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Futral

Note: Sacre, Candace

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Redirect Examination. Did Duke property tax expert Panizza cite to
FERC financial report or use in testimony?

Additional questions?
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6:17:25 PM

6:17:45 PM

6:17:51 PM

6:17:55 PM

6:18:00 PM

6:18:06 PM

6:18:10 PM

6:18:18 PM

6:18:46 PM

6:19:23 PM

6:19:30 PM

6:19:37 PM

6:19:46 PM

6:19:54 PM

6:19:56 PM

6:20:10 PM

6:20:23 PM

6:21:40 PM

6:21:53 PM

6:22:02 PM

6:22:11 PM

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Asst Atty General Goad
Note: Sacre, Candace

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Ms. Goad?

Richard Baudino.

Witness is sworn.

Chairman Chandler - witness Baudino

Note: Sacre, Candace

Examination. Name and address?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Baudino

Note: Sacre, Candace

Direct Examination. Occupation?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Baudino

Note: Sacre, Candace

Cause be filed testimony?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Baudino

Note: Sacre, Candace

Additions, corrections?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Baudino

Note: Sacre, Candace

Sponsor responses?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Baudino

Note: Sacre, Candace

Asked same questions, responses be same?

Asst Atty General Goad - witness Baudino

Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky -

Note: Sacre, Candace

Intention adopt direct as testimony?

Questions?
witness Baudino
Cross Examination. Page 42, direct, lines 11-13, note EEI reported
average allowed ROEs in third and fourth quarters 2022 9.34
percent and 9.73 percent?
witness Baudino
Source EEI cited in footnote 22?
witness Baudino
Know where obtains data?
witness Baudino
Is that S&P Global Market Intelligence and RRA?
witness Baudino
Now called S&P Capital IQ?
witness Baudino
All same thing?
witness Baudino
Same source Nowak cited figure 1 rebuttal?
witness Baudino
Have Nowak rebuttal testimony?
witness Baudino
Page 7, rebuttal, Nowak rebuttal, page 7, figure 1, cites for source
S&P Capital IQ Pro RRA data?
witness Baudino
He specifies in figure set of ROEs for vertically integrated electric
utilities?
witness Baudino
Agree Duke Kentucky vertically integrated electric utility?
witness Baudino
Other vertically integrated electric utilities are better proxy for risks
to Duke than distribution utilities?
witness Baudino
But RRA includes other cases in database, transmission only cases
limited issue riders?
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6:23:00 PM

6:23:12 PM

6:23:32 PM

6:23:48 PM

6:24:00 PM

6:24:14 PM

6:24:27 PM

6:25:31 PM

6:25:51 PM

6:26:40 PM

6:26:50 PM

6:27:17 PM

6:28:11 PM

6:28:48 PM

6:29:08 PM

6:29:21 PM

6:29:25 PM

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Not transmission only or limited issue rider case?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Most recent data cite in direct reported average ROE was 9.73
percent?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Eighteen basis points above recommendation?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Aware since fourth quarter 2022 Moody's change Duke outlook
stable to negative?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Look at data figure 1 Nowak rebuttal determine average ROE end
quarter 2022?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Have basis to dispute limiting data to fourth quarter 2022 average
up 9.87 percent?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace See figure 1 authorized ROEs compared to yield on 30-year U.S.
Treasury?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Based on trend in chart, agree yield increased substantially in third
quarter 2022 before leveling out between 3.5 and 4 percent?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree overall back a little further in time on chart clear upward trend
and higher interest rates seen since Jan 1 of 2020?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree average yield on 30-year Treasury increased from 2.3 percent
first quarter 2021 to 3.26 third quarter 2022?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Talked about in third quarter 2022, after leveled between 3.5 and
four, asking increases earlier three quarters 2022?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Look at page 19 of direct, indicate range of DCF model results of
8.89 to 10.51 with average 9.48?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Method 2 relied on average 9.58 percent?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree market credit rating agencies and investors how look at credit
rating and potential of utility consider business and regulatory risk
as well as investment?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Reason ask not see in testimony business risk or regulatory risk?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Consider specific factors choosing within range specific issues
regulatory or cash flow issues?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Rely on CAPM establishing range or recommendations?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace True over last ten years ROE proposals made have relied on DCF
method?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Used constant growth form of DCF?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Constant growth analysis requires assumptions hold true including
constant growth rate earnings and dividends?
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6:31:45 PM
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6:32:08 PM

6:32:23 PM

6:32:33 PM
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6:33:37 PM
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6:35:52 PM

6:37:15PM

6:37:33 PM

6:37:37 PM

6:38:00 PM

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace And stable dividend payout ratio?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace And constant price to earnings ratio?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Last ten years price to earnings ratio remained constant?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace All more reason consider multiple variables?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Ultimately, based on constant growth DCF?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Page 30, lines 9-12, forward looking ROE 12.48 impossibly high and
represents extreme outlier?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Also say due to high growth rate of 11.58 percent?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Refer to forecasts of long-run GDP growth 4.0 percent to state 11.58
percent constant growth rate not sustainable?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace GDP growth rate, not specific any one company or utility industry in
general?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Reflects different market participants affect changes in GDP?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Some companies growth expand, others will contract or disappear?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Some of many companies contribute overall GDP growth will
expand, others contract or disappear?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Rates of growth vary for companies within overall market?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace True not just for utilities in any one state but all market participants
in GDP growth rate?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Range of CAPM outcomes between 8.30 and 12.8 percent?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Based on discussion testimony page 30 what did was remove high
end CAPM range?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Did that because growth rates unreasonable, not compare to GDP
takes into account growth rates of entire economy?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree not setting rates indefinitely?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Nobody recommending 12.48 percent, disagree with Nowak but not
recommending 12.48 percent ROE either?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Just answer question if not mind, please?
Asst Atty General Goad
Note: Sacre, Candace Objection, Baudino should be able to finish response. (Click on link
for further comments.)
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace GDP is average?
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6:43:36 PM

6:43:52 PM

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace S&P growth rates Nowak uses from ValueLine?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Your 11.58 percent growth rate you reject is based on ValueLine?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Consider ValueLine well-respected source for data?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Say Nowak have considered ValueLine dividend growth forecast as
you did with DCF?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Say that several times, refer to ValueLine in testimony?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Found calculation error in ValuelLine data?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace In data have used, found mathematical error in way ValueLine
calculated number?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Page 35, testify, acknowledge DCF approach similar to Nowak?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Stated in testimony Nowak approach to DCF reasonable?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Reviewed Nowak rebuttal attachment JCNR-2?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Provides his constant growth DCF analysis through Mar 31 2023?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Contains updated constant growth DCF analysis through Mar 31
2023?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace If look at page 1 of rebuttal attachment JCNR-2, see line labeled
proxy group mean?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace See on line Nowak updated proxy group mean constant growth DCF
is 10 percent?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace CAP structure, appears did review company cost short-term and
long-term debt?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Basis for rejecting requested common equity ratio of 52.5 percent, it
is excessive when compared to Duke recent historical common
equity percentage?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Understand Commission asked authorize capital structure/equity
ratio going forward?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Understand testimony company manage equity ratio to what
Commission authorizes?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree tilities tend to manage equity ratio to align with what
Commission authorizes equity ratio?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace If not, customers get benefits reduced cost of capital, good credit
ratings with company covering incremental cost?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace If utility obtain historical equity ratio currently managing mean utility
never improve equity?
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6:45:27 PM

6:45:38 PM

6:45:54 PM

6:46:03 PM

6:46:42 PM

6:47:18 PM

6:47:27 PM

6:47:50 PM

6:48:12 PM

6:49:26 PM

6:49:35 PM

6:49:42 PM

6:50:58 PM

6:51:43 PM

6:51:56 PM

6:52:15 PM

6:52:19 PM

6:52:46 PM

6:53:08 PM

6:53:11 PM

6:53:22 PM

Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Rate case whole point establish what credit equity ratio be going
forward?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Noted page 32 reason keep equity ratio 50 percent because
company able hold on to credit ratings that rate?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Duke Kentucky S&P credit ratings A- in 2020 and BBB+ in 2021 and
2022?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Already referenced negative outlook from Moody's?
Atty Brama Duke Kentucky - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Agree historical equity ratio should change if historical capitalization
no longer sufficient maintain rating?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace Questions?
Chairman Chandler - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Examination. Counsel asked along lines of not setting rates forever,
just setting rates now, remember?
Chairman Chandler - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace If setting rates forever and expecting reset at some period, change
opinion using forecasted interest rates and determining ROE
proxies?
Chairman Chandler - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Rates periodically set argue using more definite near-term
information opposed forecasted information?
Chairman Chandler - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace With forecast talking about last document, referring ValueLine
growth rates?
Chairman Chandler - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Three- to five-year growth rates?
Chairman Chandler - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace If expect utility reset rates within three-year or five-year period, be
taken into account considering disparate growth rates and setting
ROE proxy?
Chairman Chandler - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace If reasonably using information make investment decisions,
Commission should use same breadth of information what required
rate of return?
Chairman Chandler - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace CAPM results are varied between high and low?
Chairman Chandler - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Wider than normally is?
Chairman Chandler - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Driver of disparity?
Chairman Chandler - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Betas always relatively low, relative to market all betas fairly low?
Chairman Chandler - witness Baudino
Note: Sacre, Candace Come down from peak?
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Redirect?
Additional questions?

Entirety of witnesses?
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6:53:43 PM

6:55:24 PM

6:57:41 PM

6:59:37 PM

7:02:45 PM

7:06:19 PM

7:07:24 PM

7:07:41 PM

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace

Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Chairman Chandler
Note: Sacre, Candace
Session Ended

Exhibits. (Click on link for further comments.)
Errata. (Click on link for further comments.)

Post-hearing data requests/responses. (Click on link for further
comments.)

Briefing process/schedule. (Click on link for further comments.)
Corrected testimony/errata. (Click on link for further comments.)
Review. (Click on link for further comments.)

Hearing adjourned.
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JUSTICE AFSOLUTIONS

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (Duke
Kentucky)

Name:

Description:

HEARING EXHIBIT DK 2
HEARING EXHIBIT DK 3
HEARING EXHIBIT DK 4
HEARING EXHIBIT DK 5
HEARING EXHIBIT KBCA 1
HEARING EXHIBIT KBCA 2
HEARING EXHIBIT KBCA 3

HEARING EXHIBIT KBCA 4

HEARING EXHIBIT SC 7

HEARING EXHIBIT SC 8

TARIFF DATED 2022 WITH MARK-UP

TARIFF DATED 2023 CLEAN COPY

TARIFF IN EFFECT WITH MARGIN NOTES

DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY FERC FORM 1

ATTACHMENT BLS-7 AND ATTACHMENT BLS-REBUTTAL-1
ATTACHMENT BLS-7 & KBCA-DR-01-005_ATTACHMENT

DUKE ACTUAL DISTRIBUTION, DESCRIPTION - 2 USER POLES, ADMIN 251 PRESUMED
DISTRIBUTION, AND VARIANCE 35-FOOT POLES AND 40-FOOT POLES

DUKE ACTUAL DISTRIBUTION, DESCRIPTION - 3 USER POLES, ADMIN 251 PRESUMED
DISTRIBUTION, AND VARIANCE 40-FOOT POLES, 45-FOOT POLES, AND 50-FOOT
POLES

FACT SHEET GREENHOUSE GAS STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES FOR FOSSIL FUEL-
FIRED POWER PLANTS PROPOSED RULE

40 CFR PART 60 NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR GREENHOUSE GAS
EMISSIONS

Created by JAVS on 7/12/2023
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RIDER DSM

DEMAND SIDE MANAGEMENT COST RECOVERY RIDER

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to service rendered under the provisions of Rates RS_and RS-TOU-CPP (residential
class), DS, DP, DT, EH, GS-FL, SP, and TT (non-residential class).

CHARGES

Where:

The monthly amount computed under each of the rate schedules to which this rider is applicable
shall be increased or decreased by the DSM Charge at a rate per kilowatt-hour of monthly
consumption and, where applicable, a rate per kilowatt of monthly billing demand, in accordance
with the following formula:

DSM Charge =PC + LR + Pl + BA

PC = DSM PROGRAM COST RECOVERY. For each twelve month period, the PC shall include all
expected costs for demand-side management programs which have been approved by a
collaborative process. Such program costs shall include the cost of planning, developing,
implementing, monitoring, and evaluating DSM programs. Program costs will be assigned for
recovery purposes to the rate classes whose customers are directly participating in the program. In
addition, all costs incurred by or on behalf of the collaborative process, including but not limited to
costs for consultants, employees and administrative expenses, will be recovered through the PC.
Administrative costs that are allocable to more than one rate class will be recovered from those
classes and allocated by rate class on the basis of the estimated avoided capacity and energy costs
resulting from each program.

The PC applicable to the residential class shall be determined by dividing the cost of approved
programs allocated or assigned to the residential class by the expected kilowatt-hour sales for the
upcoming twelve-month period. The cost of approved programs assigned or allocated to the non-
residential class shall be allocated as either demand-related or energy-related based on the
respective percentage of avoided capacity cost or avoided energy cost to the total avoided cost
estimated in the determination of the net resource savings for the program. For purposes of this
tariff, net resource savings are defined as program benefits less the cost of the program, where
program benefits will be calculated on the basis of the present value of the Company's avoided costs
over the expected life of the program, and will include both capacity and energy savings. The
demand-related program costs thus determined shall be divided by the expected billing demand in
kilowatt-months for the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the demand-related PC. The
associated energy-related program costs shall be divided by the expected kilowatt-hour sales for the
upcoming twelve-month period to determine the energy-related PC for such rate class.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated April-27-2020 in Case No. 202218-00372274.

Issued:

DecemberMay 1, 20220

Effective: JanuaryMay 34, 20230
Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller

HEARING EXHIBIT DK 2
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LR = LOST REVENUE FROM LOST SALES RECOVERY. Revenues from lost sales due to DSM
programs will be recovered through the decoupling of revenues from actual sales of the residential
class. At the end of each twelve-month period after implementation of the DSM Charge, the non-
variable revenue requirement (total revenue requirement less variable costs) for the residential class
for ULH&P's most recent twelve month period will be adjusted to reflect changes in the number of
customers and the usage per customer as follows: (1) the non-variable revenue requirement will be
multiplied by the factor obtained by dividing the twelve month average number of customers at the
end of the current twelve-month period by the twelve month average number of residential customers
at the end of the twelve-month period ending December 1994, and (2) the non-variable revenue
requirement will be multiplied by a factor "Fg" calculated by the following formula:

Fa=(1+ g2

Where: g = Growth factor - recalculated annually based on the most recent eleven years of
actual customer data. Initially “g” shall be set at 0.0175; and
n = the number of months from December 1994 to the end of the current twelve-month
period.

At the end of each twelve-month period after implementation of the DSM Charge, the difference
between the actual non-variable revenue billed during the twelve-month period and the adjusted
non-variable revenue requirement, as described above, will be determined. This difference ("LR
amount established for the twelve-month period”) will be divided by the estimated kilowatt-hour sales
for the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the LR for the residential class.

The LR applicable to the non-residential class shall be computed by 1) multiplying the amount of
kilowatt-hour sales and, where applicable, the kilowatt-months of billing demand that will be lost for
each twelve-month period as a result of the implementation of the approved programs times the
energy charge for the applicable rate schedule, less the variable cost included in the charge, and the
demand charges, respectively; and, 2) dividing that product by the expected kilowatt-hour sales or
expected billing demand in kilowatt-months for the upcoming twelve-month period. The lost revenue
attributable to decreased sales to the non-residential class due to approved programs will be
calculated through estimates agreed upon by the collaborative process, which may inciude
engineering estimates, of the level of decreased kilowatt-hour energy sales and billing demand in
kilowatt-months. Recovery of revenues from lost sales calculated for a twelve-month period for non-
residential rate classes shall be included in the LR until January 1, 2000 or until terminated by the
implementation of new rates pursuant to a general rate case, whichever comes first. Revenues from
lost sales will be assigned for recovery purposes to the rate classes whose programs resulted in the
lost sales.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated April-27-2020 in Case No. 202248-003722#4.

Issued: DecemberMay 1, 20220
Effective. JanuaryMay 34, 20230
Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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Pl = DSM PROGRAM INCENTIVE RECOVERY. The DSM Program Incentive (Pl) amount shall be
computed by multiplying the net resource savings expected from the approved programs which are
to be installed during the upcoming twelve-month period times fifteen (15) percent. Net resource
savings are defined as program benefits less the cost of the program, where program benefits will
be calculated on the basis of the present value of the Company's avoided costs over the expected
life of the program, and will include both capacity and energy savings. The DSM incentive amount
related to programs for the residential class shall be divided by the expected kilowatt-hour sales for
the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the Pl for that rate class. The Pl amount related to
programs for the non-residential class rates shall be allocated as either demand-related or energy-
related in the same manner as program costs are allocated as demand- or energy related. The
demand-related Pl amount thus determined shall be divided by the expected billing demand in
kilowatt-months for the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the demand-related PI. Similarly,
the energy-related incentive amount thus determined shall be divided by the expected kilowatt-hour
sales for the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the energy-related Pl for such rate class.
DSM incentive amounts will be assigned for recovery purposes to the rate classes whose programs
created the incentive.

BA = DSM BALANCE ADJUSTMENT. The BA is used to reconcile the difference between the
amount of revenues actually billed through the respective DSM Charge components; namely, the
PC, LR, and Pl and previous application of the BA and the revenues which should have been billed,
as follows:

(1) Forthe PC, the balance adjustment amount will be the difference between the amount billed in
a twelve-month period from the application of the PC unit charge and the actual cost of the
approved programs during the same twelve-month period.

(2) For the LR applicable to the residential class, the balance adjustment amount will be the
difference between the amount billed during the twelve-month period from the application of the
LR unit charge and the LR amount established for the same twelve-month period.

For the LR applicable to the non-residential class, the balance adjustment amount will be the
difference between the amount billed during the twelve-month period from application of the LR
unit charge and the amount of lost revenues determined for the actual DSM program, or
measures implemented during the twelve-month period.

(3) For the PI, the balance adjustment amount will be the difference between the amount billed
during the twelve-month period from application of the Pl unit charge and the incentive amount
determined for the actual DSM program, or measures implemented during the twelve-month
period.

(4) For the BA, the balance adjustment amount will be the difference between the amount billed
during the twelve-month period from application of the BA and the balance adjustment amount

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated April27-2020 in Case No. 202248-00372271.

Issued: DecemberMay 1, 20220
Effective: JanuaryMay 34, 20230
Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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established for the same twelve-month period.

BA = DSM BALANCE ADJUSTMENT (Cont.d)

For the non-residential class, balance adjustment amounts will be separated into both demand and
energy-related components. The balance adjustment amounts determined above shall include
interest. The interest applied to the monthly amounts, shall be calculated at a rate equal to the
average of the "3-month Commercial Paper Rate" for the immediately preceding 12-month period.
The total of the demand-related balance adjustment amounts, plus interest, shall be divided by the
expected billing demand in kilowatt-months for the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the
demand-related BA, while the total of the energy-related balance adjustment amounts shall be
divided by the expected kilowatt-hour sales for the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the
energy-related BA. DSM balance adjustment amounts will be assigned for recovery purposes to the
rate classes to which over or under-recoveries of DSM amounts were realized.

All costs recovered through the DSM Charge will be assigned or allocated to Duke Energy Kentucky,
Inc.'s electric or gas customers on the basis of the estimated net electric or gas resource savings
resulting from each program.

DSM CHARGE FILINGS
The filing of modifications to the DSM Charge shall be made at least thirty days prior to the beginning
of the effective period for billing. Each filing will include the following information as needed:

(1) A detailed description of each DSM program developed by the collaborative process, the total
cost of each program over the twelve-month period, an analysis of expected resource savings,
information concerning the specific DSM or efficiency measures to be installed, and any
applicable studies which have been performed, as available.

(2) A statement setting forth the detailed calculation of each component of the DSM Charge.

Each change in the DSM Charge shall be applied to customers' bills with the first billing cycle of the
revenue month which coincides with, or is subsequent to, the effective date of such change.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction
of the Kentucky Public Service Commission, and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect,
as filed with the Kentucky Public Service Commission, as provided by law.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated Aprl-27-2020 in Case No. 202249-00372274.

Issued: DecemberMay 1, 20220
Effective: JanuaryMay 34, 20230
Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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ENVIRONMENTAL SURCHARGE MECHANISM RIDER
APPLICABILITY
This rider is applicable to all retail sales in the Company's electric service area beginning with the billing month
June 2018. Rate RTP program participants utilize the applicable portions of the Baseline Charge and Program
Charge, as those terms are defined in Rate RTP, for this rider.
Standard electric rate schedules subject to this schedule are:
Residential: Rate Schedules RS_and RS-TOU-CPP
Non-Residential: Rate Schedules DS, EH, SP, DP, DT, GSFL, TT, SL, TL, UOLS, NSU, SC, SE, and LED
RATE
The monthly billing amount under each of the schedules to which this rider is applicable, shall be increased or
decreased by a percentage factor according to the following formula:
Environmental Surcharge Billing Factor = Jurisdictional E(m) / R(m)
DEFINITIONS
For all Plans:

E(m) = RORB + OE - EAS + Prior Period Adjustment + (Over)Under Recovery

RORB = (RB/12)*ROR

RB = the Environmental Compliance Rate Base, defined as electric plant in service for
applicable environmental projects adjusted for accumulated depreciation, accumulated
deferred taxes, accumulated investment tax credits, CWIP and emission allowance
inventory.

ROR = the Rate of Return on the Environmental Compliance Rate Base, designated as the cost
of debt and pretax cost of equity for environmental compliance plan projects approved
by the Commission.

OE = the Operating Expenses, defined as the monthly depreciation expense, taxes other than
income taxes, amortization expense, emission allowance expense and environmental
reagent expense.

EAS =  proceeds from Emission Allowance Sales.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated March-4.-2022 in Case No. 20224-00372280.
Issued: December 1Mareh-Z, 2022

Effective: January 3March-7, 20232

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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DEFINITIONS (Contd.)

(1)

©)

(4)

Prior Period Adjustment is the amount resulting from the amortization of amounts determined by the
Commission during six-month and two-year reviews.

(Over) or Under Recovery is a one-month “true-up” adjustment.

Plans are the environmental surcharge compliance plans submitted to and approved by the Kentucky
Public Service Commission.

Total E(m), (the environmental compliance plan revenue requirement), is multiplied by the Jurisdictional
Allocation Factor. Jurisdictional E(m) is adjusted for any (Over)/Under collection or prior period
adjustment to arrive at Adjusted Jurisdictional E{m). Adjusted Jurisdictional E(m) is allocated to
Residential and Non-Residential on the basis of Revenue as a Percentage of Total Revenue for the 12
months ending with the Current Month.

Residential R(m) is the average of total monthly residential revenue for the 12 months ending with the
current expense month. Total revenue includes residential revenue, including all riders, but excluding
environmental surcharge mechanism revenue.

Non-Residential R(m) is the average of total monthly non-residential revenue for the 12 months ending
with the current expense month. Total revenue includes non-residential revenue, including all riders,
but excluding environmental surcharge mechanism revenue, base fuel revenue and FAC revenue.

The current expense month (m) shall be the second month proceeding the month in which the
Environmental Surcharge is billed.

SERVICE REGULATIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS
The supplying and billing for service and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the
Kentucky Public Service Commission, and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect, as filed with the
Public Service Commission of Kentucky.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated Mareh-4—2022 in Case No. 20224-00372290.

Issued:

December 1March—£, 2022
Effective: January 3Mareh+#, 20232
Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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RIDER PSM

PROFIT SHARING MECHANISM

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all retail sales in the Company’s electric service area, excluding interdepartmental
sales, beginning with the billing month March 2023.

PROFIT SHARING RIDER FACTORS
On a quarterly basis, the applicable energy charges for electric service shall be increased or

decreased to the nearest $0.000001 per kWh to reflect the sharing of net proceeds as outlined
in the formula below.

Rider PSM Factor = (((OSS + NF + CAP+REC) x 0.90) + R) / S

where:
0SS= Net proceeds from off-system power sales.

Includes the non-native portion of fuel-related costs charged to the Company
by PJM Interconnection LLC including but not limited to those costs identified
in the following Billing Line Items, as may be amended from time to time by
PJM Interconnection LLC: Billing Line ltems 1210, 2210, 1215, 1218, 2217,
2218, 1230, 1250, 1260, 2260, 1370, 2370, 1375, 2375, 1400, 1410, 1420,
1430, 1478, 1340, 2340, 1460, 1350, 2350, 1360, 2360, 1470, 1377, 2377,
1480, 1378, 2378, 1490, 1500, 2420, 2220, 1200, 1205, 1220, 1225, 2500,
2510, 1930, 2211, 2215, 2415 and 2930.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated in Case No. 2022-00372.—
Issued: December 1danuary-34, 20223

Effective: January 3March-2, 2023

Issued by: Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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PROFIT SHARING RIDER FACTORS Contd.

NF =

CAP=

REC=

Net proceeds from non-fuel related Regional Transmission Organization
charges and credits not recovered via other mechanisms.

Includes non-fuel related costs charged to the Company by PJM
Interconnection LLC including but not limited to those costs identified in the
following Billing Line Items, as may amended from time to time by PJM
Interconnection LLC: Billing Line items 1240, 2240, 1241, 2241, 1242, 1243,
1245, 2245, 1330, 2330, 1362, 2362, 1472, 1365, 2365, 1475, 1371, 2371,
1376, 2376, 1380 and 2380.

Net proceeds from: PJM charges and credits as provided for in the
Commission's Order in Case No. 2014-00201, dated December 4, 2014,
capacity sales; capacity purchases; capacity performance credits, and
capacity performance assessments.

Net proceeds from the sales of renewable energy credits.

Reconciliation of prior period Rider PSM actual revenue to amount
calculated for the period.

Current period sales in kWh as used in the Rider FAC calculation.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service

Commission dated

in Case No. 2022-00372.—

Issued: December 1danuar-34, 20223
Effective: January 3Mareh-2, 2023
Issued by: Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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Rate Group

Rate RS, Residential Service

Rate RS-TOU-CPP, Redidential Service Time of Use with Critical Peak
Pricing

Rate DS, Service at Secondary Distribution Voltage

Rate DP, Service at Primary Distribution Voltage

Rate DT, Time-of-Day Rate for Service at Distribution Voltage
Rate EH, Optional Rate for Electric Space Heating

Rate GS-FL, General Service Rate for Small Fixed Loads

Rate SP, Seasonal Sports Service

Rate SL, Street Lighting Service

Rate TL, Traffic Lighting Service

Rate UOLS, Unmetered Outdoor Lighting

Rate NSU, Street Lighting Service for Non-Standard Units

Rate SC, Street Lighting Service — Customer Owned

Rate SE, Street Lighting Service — Overhead Equivalent

Rate LED, LED Street Lighting Service

Rate TT, Time-of-Day Rate for Service at Transmission Voltage
Other

Rider PSM credits, reductions to bills, are shown as positive numbers without parentheses. Rider

PSM charges, increases to bills, are shown in parentheses.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto are subject to the
jurisdiction of the Kentucky Public Service Commission, and to the Company’s Service Regulations

Rate
($/ kWh)

0.011373
0.011373

0.011373
0.011373
0.011373
0.011373
0.011373
0.011373
0.011373
0.011373
0.011373
0.011373
0.011373
0.011373
0.011373
0.011373
0.011373

currently in effect, as filed with the Kentucky Public Service Commission as provided by law.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated in Case No. 2022-00372.—
Issued: December 1danuary-34, 20223

Effective: January 3Marsh-2, 2023

Issued by: Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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RIDER DSM

DEMAND SIDE MANAGEMENT COST RECOVERY RIDER

APPLICABILITY
Applicable to service rendered under the provisions of Rates RS and RS-TOU-CPP (residential
class), DS, DP, DT, EH, GS-FL, SP, and TT (non-residential class).

CHARGES
The monthly amount computed under each of the rate schedules to which this rider is applicable
shall be increased or decreased by the DSM Charge at a rate per kilowatt-hour of monthly
consumption and, where applicable, a rate per kilowatt of monthly billing demand, in accordance
with the following formula:

DSM Charge =PC + LR + Pl + BA

Where: PC = DSM PROGRAM COST RECOVERY. For each twelve month period, the PC shall include all
expected costs for demand-side management programs which have been approved by a
collaborative process. Such program costs shall include the cost of planning, developing,
implementing, monitoring, and evaluating DSM programs. Program costs will be assigned for
recovery purposes to the rate classes whose customers are directly participating in the program. In
addition, all costs incurred by or on behalf of the collaborative process, including but not limited to
costs for consultants, employees and administrative expenses, will be recovered through the PC.
Administrative costs that are allocable to more than one rate class will be recovered from those
classes and allocated by rate class on the basis of the estimated avoided capacity and energy costs
resulting from each program.

The PC applicable to the residential class shall be determined by dividing the cost of approved
programs allocated or assigned to the residential class by the expected kilowatt-hour sales for the
upcoming twelve-month period. The cost of approved programs assigned or allocated to the non-
residential class shall be allocated as either demand-related or energy-related based on the
respective percentage of avoided capacity cost or avoided energy cost to the total avoided cost
estimated in the determination of the net resource savings for the program. For purposes of this
tariff, net resource savings are defined as program benefits less the cost of the program, where
program benefits will be calculated on the basis of the present value of the Company's avoided costs
over the expected life of the program, and will include both capacity and energy savings. The
demand-related program costs thus determined shall be divided by the expected billing demand in
kilowatt-months for the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the demand-related PC. The
associated energy-related program costs shall be divided by the expected kilowatt-hour sales for the
upcoming twelve-month period to determine the energy-related PC for such rate class.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated in Case No. 2022-00372.

Issued: December 1, 2022

Effective: January 3, 2023

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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LR = LOST REVENUE FROM LOST SALES RECOVERY.

Revenues from lost sales due to DSM programs will be recovered through the decoupling of
revenues from actual sales of the residential class. At the end of each twelve-month period after
implementation of the DSM Charge, the non-variable revenue requirement (total revenue
requirement less variable costs) for the residential class for ULH&P's most recent twelve month
period will be adjusted to reflect changes in the number of customers and the usage per customer
as follows: (1) the non-variable revenue requirement will be multiplied by the factor obtained by
dividing the twelve month average number of customers at the end of the current twelve-month
period by the twelve month average number of residential customers at the end of the twelve-month
period ending December 1994, and (2) the non-variable revenue requirement will be multiplied by a
factor "Fg" calculated by the following formula:

Fo=(1+g)""

Where: g = Growth factor - recalculated annually based on the most recent eleven years of
actual customer data. Initially “g” shall be set at 0.0175; and
n= the number of months from December 1994 to the end of the current twelve-month
period.

At the end of each twelve-month period after implementation of the DSM Charge, the difference
between the actual non-variable revenue billed during the twelve-month period and the adjusted
non-variable revenue requirement, as described above, will be determined. This difference ("LR
amount established for the twelve-month period") will be divided by the estimated kilowatt-hour sales
for the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the LR for the residential class.

The LR applicable to the non-residential class shall be computed by 1) multiplying the amount of
kilowatt-hour sales and, where applicable, the kilowatt-months of billing demand that will be lost for
each twelve-month period as a result of the implementation of the approved programs times the
energy charge for the applicable rate schedule, less the variable cost included in the charge, and the
demand charges, respectively; and, 2) dividing that product by the expected kilowatt-hour sales or
expected billing demand in kilowatt-months for the upcoming twelve-month period. The lost revenue
attributable to decreased sales to the non-residential class due to approved programs will be
calculated through estimates agreed upon by the collaborative process, which may include
engineering estimates, of the level of decreased kilowatt-hour energy sales and billing demand in
kilowatt-months. Recovery of revenues from lost sales calculated for a twelve-month period for non-
residential rate classes shall be included in the LR until January 1, 2000 or until terminated by the
implementation of new rates pursuant to a general rate case, whichever comes first. Revenues from
lost sales will be assigned for recovery purposes to the rate classes whose programs resulted in the
lost sales.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated in Case No. 2022-00372.

Issued: December 1, 2022

Effective: January 3, 2023

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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Pl = DSM PROGRAM INCENTIVE RECOVERY. The DSM Program Incentive (Pl) amount shall be
computed by multiplying the net resource savings expected from the approved programs which are
to be installed during the upcoming twelve-month period times fifteen (15) percent. Net resource
savings are defined as program benefits less the cost of the program, where program benefits will
be calculated on the basis of the present value of the Company's avoided costs over the expected
life of the program, and will include both capacity and energy savings. The DSM incentive amount
related to programs for the residential class shall be divided by the expected kilowatt-hour sales for
the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the Pl for that rate class. The Pl amount related to
programs for the non-residential class rates shall be allocated as either demand-related or energy-
related in the same manner as program costs are allocated as demand- or energy related. The
demand-related Pl amount thus determined shall be divided by the expected billing demand in
kilowatt-months for the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the demand-related PI. Similarly,
the energy-related incentive amount thus determined shall be divided by the expected kilowatt-hour
sales for the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the energy-related Pl for such rate class.
DSM incentive amounts will be assigned for recovery purposes to the rate classes whose programs
created the incentive.

BA = DSM BALANCE ADJUSTMENT. The BA is used to reconcile the difference between the
amount of revenues actually billed through the respective DSM Charge components; namely, the
PC, LR, and Pl and previous application of the BA and the revenues which should have been billed,
as follows:

(1) Forthe PC, the balance adjustment amount will be the difference between the amount billed in
a twelve-month period from the application of the PC unit charge and the actual cost of the
approved programs during the same twelve-month period.

(2) For the LR applicable to the residential class, the balance adjustment amount will be the
difference between the amount billed during the twelve-month period from the application of the
LR unit charge and the LR amount established for the same twelve-month period.

For the LR applicable to the non-residential class, the balance adjustment amount will be the
difference between the amount billed during the twelve-month period from application of the LR
unit charge and the amount of lost revenues determined for the actual DSM program, or
measures implemented during the twelve-month period.

(3) For the PI, the balance adjustment amount will be the difference between the amount billed
during the twelve-month period from application of the Pl unit charge and the incentive amount
determined for the actual DSM program, or measures implemented during the twelve-month
period.

(4) For the BA, the balance adjustment amount will be the difference between the amount billed
during the twelve-month period from application of the BA and the balance adjustment amount
established for the same twelve-month period.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated in Case No. 2022-00372.

Issued: December 1, 2022

Effective: January 3, 2023

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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BA = DSM BALANCE ADJUSTMENT (Cont.d)

For the non-residential class, balance adjustment amounts will be separated into both demand and
energy-related components. The balance adjustment amounts determined above shall include
interest. The interest applied to the monthly amounts, shall be calculated at a rate equal to the
average of the "3-month Commercial Paper Rate" for the immediately preceding 12-month period.
The total of the demand-related balance adjustment amounts, plus interest, shall be divided by the
expected billing demand in kilowatt-months for the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the
demand-related BA, while the total of the energy-related balance adjustment amounts shall be
divided by the expected kilowatt-hour sales for the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the
energy-related BA. DSM balance adjustment amounts will be assigned for recovery purposes to the
rate classes to which over or under-recoveries of DSM amounts were realized.

All costs recovered through the DSM Charge will be assigned or allocated to Duke Energy Kentucky,
Inc.'s electric or gas customers on the basis of the estimated net electric or gas resource savings
resulting from each program.

DSM CHARGE FILINGS
The filing of modifications to the DSM Charge shall be made at least thirty days prior to the beginning
of the effective period for billing. Each filing will include the following information as needed:

(1) A detailed description of each DSM program developed by the collaborative process, the total
cost of each program over the twelve-month period, an analysis of expected resource savings,
information concerning the specific DSM or efficiency measures to be installed, and any
applicable studies which have been performed, as available.

(2) A statement setting forth the detailed calculation of each component of the DSM Charge.

Each change in the DSM Charge shall be applied to customers' bills with the first billing cycle of the
revenue month which coincides with, or is subsequent to, the effective date of such change.

SERVICE REGULATIONS
The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction
of the Kentucky Public Service Commission, and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect,
as filed with the Kentucky Public Service Commission, as provided by law.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated in Case No. 2022-00372.

Issued: December 1, 2022

Effective: January 3, 2023

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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ENVIRONMENTAL SURCHARGE MECHANISM RIDER

APPLICABILITY
This rider is applicable to all retail sales in the Company's electric service area beginning with the billing month
June 2018. Rate RTP program participants utilize the applicable portions of the Baseline Charge and Program
Charge, as those terms are defined in Rate RTP, for this rider.

Standard electric rate schedules subject to this schedule are:
Residential: Rate Schedules RS and RS-TOU-CPP (N)
Non-Residential: Rate Schedules DS, EH, SP, DP, DT, GSFL, TT, SL, TL, UOLS, NSU, SC, SE, and LED

RATE
The monthly billing amount under each of the schedules to which this rider is applicable, shall be increased or
decreased by a percentage factor according to the following formula:

Environmental Surcharge Billing Factor = Jurisdictional E(m) / R(m)

DEFINITIONS
For all Plans:

E(m) = RORB + OE — EAS + Prior Period Adjustment + (Over)Under Recovery

RORB = (RB/12)*ROR

RB = the Environmental Compliance Rate Base, defined as electric plant in service for
applicable environmental projects adjusted for accumulated depreciation, accumulated
deferred taxes, accumulated investment tax credits, CWIP and emission allowance
inventory.

ROR = the Rate of Return on the Environmental Compliance Rate Base, designated as the cost
of debt and pretax cost of equity for environmental compliance plan projects approved
by the Commission.

OE = the Operating Expenses, defined as the monthly depreciation expense, taxes other than
income taxes, amortization expense, emission allowance expense and environmental
reagent expense.

EAS =  proceeds from Emission Allowance Sales.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated in Case No. 2022-00372.

Issued: December 1, 2022

Effective: January 3, 2023

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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DEFINITIONS (Contd.)

(1

@)

(3)

(4)

Prior Period Adjustment is the amount resulting from the amortization of amounts determined by the
Commission during six-month and two-year reviews.

(Over) or Under Recovery is a one-month “true-up” adjustment.

Plans are the environmental surcharge compliance plans submitted to and approved by the Kentucky
Public Service Commission.

Total E(m), (the environmental compliance plan revenue requirement), is multiplied by the Jurisdictional
Allocation Factor. Jurisdictional E(m) is adjusted for any (Over)/Under collection or prior period
adjustment to arrive at Adjusted Jurisdictional E(m). Adjusted Jurisdictional E(m) is allocated to
Residential and Non-Residential on the basis of Revenue as a Percentage of Total Revenue for the 12
months ending with the Current Month.

Residential R(m) is the average of total monthly residential revenue for the 12 months ending with the
current expense month. Total revenue includes residential revenue, including all riders, but excluding
environmental surcharge mechanism revenue.

Non-Residential R(m) is the average of total monthly non-residential revenue for the 12 months ending
with the current expense month. Total revenue includes non-residential revenue, including all riders,
but excluding environmental surcharge mechanism revenue, base fuel revenue and FAC revenue.

The current expense month (m) shall be the second month proceeding the month in which the
Environmental Surcharge is billed.

SERVICE REGULATIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS
The supplying and billing for service and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the
Kentucky Public Service Commission, and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect, as filed with the
Public Service Commission of Kentucky.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated in Case No. 2022-00372.

Issued:

December 1, 2022
Effective: January 3, 2023
Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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RIDER PSM
PROFIT SHARING MECHANISM
APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all retail sales in the Company’s electric service area, excluding interdepartmental
sales, beginning with the billing month March 2023.

PROFIT SHARING RIDER FACTORS
On a quarterly basis, the applicable energy charges for electric service shall be increased or
decreased to the nearest $0.000001 per kWh to reflect the sharing of net proceeds as outlined
in the formula below.

Rider PSM Factor = (((OSS + NF + CAP+REC) x 0.90) + R)/ S

where:
0OSS= Net proceeds from off-system power sales.

Includes the non-native portion of fuel-related costs charged to the Company
by PJM Interconnection LLC including but not limited to those costs identified
in the following Billing Line Items, as may be amended from time to time by
PJM Interconnection LLC: Billing Line ltems 1210, 2210, 1215, 1218, 2217,
2218, 1230, 1250, 1260, 2260, 1370, 2370, 1375, 2375, 1400, 1410, 1420,
1430, 1478, 1340, 2340, 1460, 1350, 2350, 1360, 2360, 1470, 1377, 2377,
1480, 1378, 2378, 1490, 1500, 2420, 2220, 1200, 1205, 1220, 1225, 2500,
2510, 1930, 2211, 2215, 2415 and 2930.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated in Case No. 2022-00372.
Issued: December 1, 2022

Effective: January 3, 2023

Issued by: Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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PROFIT SHARING RIDER FACTORS Contd.

NF = Net proceeds from non-fuel related Regional Transmission Organization
charges and credits not recovered via other mechanisms.

Includes non-fuel related costs charged to the Company by PJIM
Interconnection LLC including but not limited to those costs identified in the
following Billing Line Items, as may amended from time to time by PJM
Interconnection LLC: Billing Line items 1240, 2240, 1241, 2241, 1242, 1243,
1245, 2245, 1330, 2330, 1362, 2362, 1472, 1365, 2365, 1475, 1371, 2371,
1376, 2376, 1380 and 2380.

CAP= Net proceeds from: PJM charges and credits as provided for in the
Commission's Order in Case No. 2014-00201, dated December 4, 2014;
capacity sales; capacity purchases; capacity performance credits; and
capacity performance assessments.

REC= Net proceeds from the sales of renewable energy credits.

R = Reconciliation of prior period Rider PSM actual revenue to amount
calculated for the period.

S = Current period sales in kWh as used in the Rider FAC calculation.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated in Case No. 2022-00372.
Issued: December 1, 2022

Effective: January 3, 2023

Issued by: Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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Rate Group Rate
($/ kWh)
Rate RS, Residential Service 0.011373
Rate RS-TOU-CPP, Redidential Service Time of Use with Critical Peak 0.011373
Pricing
Rate DS, Service at Secondary Distribution Voltage 0.011373
Rate DP, Service at Primary Distribution Voltage 0.011373
Rate DT, Time-of-Day Rate for Service at Distribution Voltage 0.011373
Rate EH, Optional Rate for Electric Space Heating 0.011373
Rate GS-FL, General Service Rate for Small Fixed Loads 0.011373
Rate SP, Seasonal Sports Service 0.011373
Rate SL, Street Lighting Service 0.011373
Rate TL, Traffic Lighting Service 0.011373
Rate UOLS, Unmetered Outdoor Lighting 0.011373
Rate NSU, Street Lighting Service for Non-Standard Units 0.011373
Rate SC, Street Lighting Service — Customer Owned 0.011373
Rate SE, Street Lighting Service — Overhead Equivalent 0.011373
Rate LED, LED Street Lighting Service 0.011373
Rate TT, Time-of-Day Rate for Service at Transmission Voltage 0.011373
Other 0.011373

Rider PSM credits, reductions to bills, are shown as positive numbers without parentheses. Rider

PSM charges, increases to bills, are shown in parentheses.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto are subject to the

jurisdiction of the Kentucky Public Service Commission, and
currently in effect, as filed with the Kentucky Public Service C

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated in Case No. 2022-00372.
Issued: December 1, 2022

Effective: January 3, 2023

Issued by: Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller

to the Company’s Service Regulations
ommission as provided by law.
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RIDER DSM

DEMAND SIDE MANAGEMENT COST RECOVERY RIDER

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to service rendered under the provisions of Rates RS (residential class), DS, DP, DT,
EH, GS-FL, SP, and TT (non-residential class).

CHARGES

Where:

The monthly amount computed under each of the rate schedules to which this rider is applicable
shall be increased or decreased by the DSM Charge at a rate per kilowatt-hour of monthly
consumption and, where applicable, a rate per kilowatt of monthly billing demand, in accordance
with the following formula:

DSM Charge = PC + LR + Pl + BA

PC = DSM PROGRAM COST RECOVERY. For each twelve month period, the PC shall include all
expected costs for demand-side management programs which have been approved by a
collaborative process. Such program costs shall include the cost of planning, developing,
implementing, monitoring, and evaluating DSM programs. Program costs will be assigned for
recovery purposes to the rate classes whose customers are directly participating in the program. In
addition, all costs incurred by or on behalf of the collaborative process, including but not limited to
costs for consultants, employees and administrative expenses, will be recovered through the PC.
Administrative costs that are allocable to more than one rate class will be recovered from those
classes and allocated by rate class on the basis of the estimated avoided capacity and energy costs
resulting from each program.

The PC applicable to the residential class shall be determined by dividing the cost of approved
programs allocated or assigned to the residential class by the expected kilowatt-hour sales for the
upcoming twelve-month period. The cost of approved programs assigned or allocated to the non-
residential class shall be allocated as either demand-related or energy-related based on the
respective percentage of avoided capacity cost or avoided energy cost to the total avoided cost
estimated in the determination of the net resource savings for the program. For purposes of this
tariff, net resource savings are defined as program benefits less the cost of the program, where
program benefits will be calculated on the basis of the present value of the Company's avoided costs
over the expected life of the program, and will include both capacity and energy savings. The
demand-related program costs thus determined shall be divided by the expected billing demand in
kilowatt-months for the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the demand-related PC. The
associated energy-related program costs shall be divided by the expected kilowatt-hour sales for the
upcoming twelve-month period to determine the energy-related PC for such rate class.

LR = LOST REVENUE FROM LOST SALES RECOVERY. Revenues from lost sales due to DSM

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated April 27, 2020 in Case No. 2019-00271.

Issued:

May 1, 2020

Effective: May 1, 2020
Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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programs will be recovered through the decoupling of revenues from actual sales of the residential
class. At the end of each twelve-month period after implementation of the DSM Charge, the non-
variable revenue requirement (total revenue requirement less variable costs) for the residential class
for ULH&P's most recent twelve month period will be adjusted to reflect changes in the number of
customers and the usage per customer as follows: (1) the non-variable revenue requirement will be
multiplied by the factor obtained by dividing the twelve month average number of customers at the
end of the current twelve-month period by the twelve month average number of residential customers
at the end of the twelve-month period ending December 1994, and (2) the non-variable revenue
requirement will be multiplied by a factor "Fg" calculated by the following formula:

Fg=(1+g)"?

Where: g = Growth factor - recalculated annually based on the most recent eleven years of
actual customer data. Initially “g” shall be set at 0.0175; and
n= the number of months from December 1994 to the end of the current twelve-month
period.

At the end of each twelve-month period after implementation of the DSM Charge, the difference
between the actual non-variable revenue billed during the twelve-month period and the adjusted
non-variable revenue requirement, as described above, will be determined. This difference ("LR
amount established for the twelve-month period") will be divided by the estimated kilowatt-hour sales
for the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the LR for the residential class.

The LR applicable to the non-residential class shall be computed by 1) multiplying the amount of
kilowatt-hour sales and, where applicable, the kilowatt-months of billing demand that will be lost for
each twelve-month period as a result of the implementation of the approved programs times the
energy charge for the applicable rate schedule, less the variable cost included in the charge, and the
demand charges, respectively; and, 2) dividing that product by the expected kilowatt-hour sales or
expected billing demand in kilowatt-months for the upcoming twelve-month period. The lost revenue
attributable to decreased sales to the non-residential class due to approved programs will be
calculated through estimates agreed upon by the collaborative process, which may include
engineering estimates, of the level of decreased kilowatt-hour energy sales and billing demand in
kilowatt-months. Recovery of revenues from lost sales calculated for a twelve-month period for non-
residential rate classes shall be included in the LR until January 1, 2000 or until terminated by the
implementation of new rates pursuant to a general rate case, whichever comes first. Revenues from
lost sales will be assigned for recovery purposes to the rate classes whose programs resulted in the
lost sales.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commiission dated April 27, 2020 in Case No. 2019-00271.
Issued: May 1, 2020

Effective: May 1, 2020

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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Pl = DSM PROGRAM INCENTIVE RECOVERY. The DSM Program Incentive (Pl) amount shall be
computed by muitiplying the net resource savings expected from the approved programs which are
to be installed during the upcoming twelve-month period times fifteen (15) percent. Net resource
savings are defined as program benefits less the cost of the program, where program benefits will
be calculated on the basis of the present value of the Company's avoided costs over the expected
life of the program, and will include both capacity and energy savings. The DSM incentive amount
related to programs for the residential class shall be divided by the expected kilowatt-hour sales for
the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the Pl for that rate class. The Pl amount related to
programs for the non-residential class rates shall be allocated as either demand-related or energy-
related in the same manner as program costs are allocated as demand- or energy related. The
demand-related Pl amount thus determined shall be divided by the expected billing demand in
kilowatt-months for the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the demand-related PI. Similarly,
the energy-related incentive amount thus determined shall be divided by the expected kilowatt-hour
sales for the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the energy-related Pl for such rate class.
DSM incentive amounts will be assigned for recovery purposes to the rate classes whose programs
created the incentive.

BA = DSM BALANCE ADJUSTMENT. The BA is used to reconcile the difference between the
amount of revenues actually billed through the respective DSM Charge components; namely, the
PC, LR, and PI and previous application of the BA and the revenues which should have been billed,
as follows:

(1) Forthe PC, the balance adjustment amount will be the difference between the amount billed in
a twelve-month period from the application of the PC unit charge and the actual cost of the
approved programs during the same twelve-month period.

(2) For the LR applicable to the residential class, the balance adjustment amount will be the
difference between the amount billed during the twelve-month period from the application of the
LR unit charge and the LR amount established for the same twelve-month period.

For the LR applicable to the non-residential class, the balance adjustment amount will be the
difference between the amount billed during the twelve-month period from application of the LR
unit charge and the amount of lost revenues determined for the actual DSM program, or
measures implemented during the twelve-month period.

(3) For the PI, the balance adjustment amount will be the difference between the amount billed
during the twelve-month period from application of the Pl unit charge and the incentive amount
determined for the actual DSM program, or measures implemented during the twelve-month
period.

(4) For the BA, the balance adjustment amount will be the difference between the amount billed
during the twelve-month period from application of the BA and the balance adjustment amount
established for the same twelve-month period.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated April 27, 2020 in Case No. 2019-00271.
Issued: May 1, 2020

Effective: May 1, 2020

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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BA = DSM BALANCE ADJUSTMENT (Cont.d)

For the non-residential class, balance adjustment amounts will be separated into both demand and
energy-related components. The balance adjustment amounts determined above shall include
interest. The interest applied to the monthly amounts, shall be calculated at a rate equal to the
average of the "3-month Commercial Paper Rate" for the immediately preceding 12-month period.
The total of the demand-related balance adjustment amounts, plus interest, shall be divided by the
expected billing demand in kilowatt-months for the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the
demand-related BA, while the total of the energy-related balance adjustment amounts shall be
divided by the expected kilowatt-hour sales for the upcoming twelve-month period to determine the
energy-related BA. DSM balance adjustment amounts will be assigned for recovery purposes to the
rate classes to which over or under-recoveries of DSM amounts were realized.

All costs recovered through the DSM Charge will be assigned or allocated to Duke Energy Kentucky,
Inc.'s electric or gas customers on the basis of the estimated net electric or gas resource savings
resulting from each program.

DSM CHARGE FILINGS
The filing of modifications to the DSM Charge shall be made at least thirty days prior to the beginning
of the effective period for billing. Each filing will include the following information as needed:

(1) A detailed description of each DSM program developed by the collaborative process, the total
cost of each program over the twelve-month period, an analysis of expected resource savings,
information concerning the specific DSM or efficiency measures to be installed, and any
applicable studies which have been performed, as available.

(2) A statement setting forth the detailed calculation of each component of the DSM Charge.

Each change in the DSM Charge shall be applied to customers' bills with the first billing cycle of the
revenue month which coincides with, or is subsequent to, the effective date of such change.

SERVICE REGULATIONS
The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction
of the Kentucky Public Service Commission, and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect,
as filed with the Kentucky Public Service Commission, as provided by law.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated April 27, 2020 in Case No. 2019-00271.
Issued: May 1, 2020

Effective: May 1, 2020

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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Page 1 of 2

APPLICABILITY

ENVIRONMENTAL SURCHARGE MECHANISM RIDER

This rider is applicable to all retail sales in the Company'’s electric service area beginning with the billing month
June 2018. Rate RTP program participants utilize the applicable portions of the Baseline Charge and Program
Charge, as those terms are defined in Rate RTP, for this rider.

Standard electric rate schedules subject to this schedule are:
Residential: Rate Schedule RS
Non-Residential: Rate Schedules DS, EH, SP, DP, DT, GSFL, TT, SL, TL, UOLS, NSU, SC, SE, and LED

RATE

The monthly billing amount under each of the schedules to which this rider is applicable, shall be increased or
decreased by a percentage factor according to the following formula:

Environmental Surcharge Billing Factor = Jurisdictional E(m) / R(m)

DEFINITIONS
For all Plans:

E(m)
RORB

RB

ROR

OE

EAS

RORB + OE — EAS + Prior Period Adjustment + (Over)Under Recovery
(RB/12)*ROR

the Environmental Compliance Rate Base, defined as electric plant in service for
applicable environmental projects adjusted for accumulated depreciation, accumulated
deferred taxes, accumulated investment tax credits, CWIP and emission allowance
inventory.

the Rate of Return on the Environmental Compliance Rate Base, designated as the cost
of debt and pretax cost of equity for environmental compliance plan projects approved
by the Commission.

the Operating Expenses, defined as the monthly depreciation expense, taxes other than
income taxes, amortization expense, emission allowance expense and environmental
reagent expense.

proceeds from Emission Allowance Sales.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated March 4, 2022 in Case No. 2021-00290.

Issued: March 7, 2022
Effective: March 7, 2022

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. Cancels and Supersedes
1262 Cox Road First Revised Sheet No. 76
Erlanger, Kentucky 41018 Page 2 of 2

DEFINITIONS (Contd.)

@)

(3)

(4)

Prior Period Adjustment is the amount resulting from the amortization of amounts determined by the
Commission during six-month and two-year reviews.

(Over) or Under Recovery is a one-month “true-up” adjustment.

Plans are the environmental surcharge compliance plans submitted to and approved by the Kentucky
Public Service Commission.

Total E(m), (the environmental compliance plan revenue requirement), is multiplied by the Jurisdictional
Allocation Factor. Jurisdictional E(m) is adjusted for any (Over)/Under collection or prior period
adjustment to arrive at Adjusted Jurisdictional E(m). Adjusted Jurisdictional E(m) is allocated to
Residential and Non-Residential on the basis of Revenue as a Percentage of Total Revenue for the 12
months ending with the Current Month.

Residential R(m) is the average of total monthly residential revenue for the 12 months ending with the
current expense month. Total revenue includes residential revenue, including all riders, but excluding
environmental surcharge mechanism revenue.

Non-Residential R(m) is the average of total monthly non-residential revenue for the 12 months ending
with the current expense month. Total revenue includes non-residential revenue, including all riders,
but excluding environmental surcharge mechanism revenue, base fuel revenue and FAC revenue.

The current expense month (m) shall be the second month proceeding the month in which the
Environmental Surcharge is billed.

SERVICE REGULATIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS
The supplying and billing for service and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the
Kentucky Public Service Commission, and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect, as filed with the
Public Service Commission of Kentucky.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated March 4, 2022 in Case No. 2021-00290.

Issued:

March 7, 2022

Effective: March 7, 2022
Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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RIDER PSM
PROFIT SHARING MECHANISM
APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all retail sales in the Company’s electric service area, excluding interdepartmental
sales, beginning with the billing month March 2023.

PROFIT SHARING RIDER FACTORS
On a quarterly basis, the applicable energy charges for electric service shall be increased or
decreased to the nearest $0.000001 per kWh to reflect the sharing of net proceeds as outlined
in the formula below.

Rider PSM Factor = (((OSS + NF + CAP+REC) x 0.90) + R) / S

where:
0SS= Net proceeds from off-system power sales.

Includes the non-native portion of fuel-related costs charged to the Company
by PJM Interconnection LLC including but not limited to those costs identified
in the following Billing Line Items, as may be amended from time to time by
PJM Interconnection LLC: Billing Line Items 1210, 2210, 1215, 1218, 2217,
2218, 1230, 1250, 1260, 2260, 1370, 2370, 1375, 2375, 1400, 1410, 1420,
1430, 1478, 1340, 2340, 1460, 1350, 2350, 1360, 2360, 1470, 1377, 2377,
1480, 1378, 2378, 1490, 1500, 2420, 2220, 1200, 1205, 1220, 1225, 2500,
2510, 1930, 2211, 2215, 2415 and 2930.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated in Case No.

Issued; January 31, 2023

Effective: March 2, 2023

Issued by: Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller

(M
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PROFIT SHARING RIDER FACTORS Contd.

NF = Net proceeds from non-fuel related Regional Transmission Organization
charges and credits not recovered via other mechanisms.

includes non-fuel related costs charged to the Company by PJM
Interconnection LLC including but not limited to those costs identified in the
following Billing Line ltems, as may amended from time to time by PJM
Interconnection LLC: Billing Line Items 1240, 2240, 1241, 2241, 1242, 1243,
1245, 2245, 1330, 2330, 1362, 2362, 1472, 1365, 2365, 1475, 1371, 2371,
1376, 2376, 1380 and 2380.

CAP= Net proceeds from: PJM charges and credits as provided for in the
Commission's Order in Case No. 2014-00201, dated December 4, 2014,
capacity sales; capacity purchases; capacity performance credits; and
capacity performance assessments.

REC= Net proceeds from the sales of renewable energy credits.

R = Reconciliation of prior period Rider PSM actual revenue to amount
calculated for the period.

S = Current period sales in kWh as used in the Rider FAC calculation.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated in Case No.

Issued; January 31, 2023

Effective: March 2, 2023

Issued by: Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller
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Sixty- Nineth Revised Sheet No 82
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Rate Group Rate

($/ kWh)
Rate RS, Residential Service 0.011373
Rate DS, Service at Secondary Distribution Voltage 0.011373
Rate DP, Service at Primary Distribution Voltage 0.011373
Rate DT, Time-of-Day Rate for Service at Distribution Voltage 0.011373
Rate EH, Optional Rate for Electric Space Heating 0.011373
Rate GS-FL, General Service Rate for Small Fixed Loads 0.011373
Rate SP, Seasonal Sports Service 0.011373
Rate SL, Street Lighting Service 0.011373
Rate TL, Traffic Lighting Service 0.011373
Rate UOLS, Unmetered Outdoor Lighting 0.011373
Rate NSU, Street Lighting Service for Non-Standard Units 0.011373
Rate SC, Street Lighting Service — Customer Owned 0.011373
Rate SE, Street Lighting Service — Overhead Equivalent 0.011373
Rate LED, LED Street Lighting Service 0.011373
Rate TT, Time-of-Day Rate for Service at Transmission Voltage 0.011373
Other 0.011373

Rider PSM credits, reductions to bills, are shown as positive numbers without parentheses. Rider

PSM charges, increases to bills, are shown in parentheses.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto are subject to the
jurisdiction of the Kentucky Public Service Commission, and to the Company’s Service Regulations
currently in effect, as filed with the Kentucky Public Service Commission as provided by law.

Issued by authority of an Order of the Kentucky Public Service
Commission dated in Case No.

Issued: January 31, 2023

Effective: March 2, 2023

Issued by: Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller

(R)
(R)
(R)
(R)
(R)
(R)
(R)
(R)
(R)
(R)
(R)
(R)
(R)
(R)
(R)
(R)






THIS FILING IS

item 1: [ An Initial (Original) Submission OR [¥] Resubmission No.
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-

FERC FINANCIAL REPORT
FERC FORM No. 1: Annual Report of
Major Electric Utilities, Licensees
and Others and Supplemental
Form 3-Q: Quarterly Financial Report

These reports are mandatory under the Federal Power Act, Sections 3, 4(a),
304 and 309, and 18 CFR 141.1 and 141.400. Failure to report may result in
icriminal fines, civil penalties and other sanctions as provided by law. The
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission does not consider these reports to be

of confidential nature

HEARING EXHIBIT DK 5
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,. .
FERC FORM NOT1'(ED:03-07) Commission Authorization (Comm. Auth.) -- The authorization of the Federal Energy Regulatory

Schedules Pages Commission, or any other Commission. Name the commission whose authorization was
Comparative Balance Sheet 110-113 obtained and give date of the authorization.

Statement of Income 114-117 Respondent -- The person, corporation, licensee, agency, authority, or other Legal entity or
Statement of Retained Earnings 118-119 instrumentality in whose behalf the report is made.

Statement of Cash Flows 120-121

Notes to Financial Statements 122-123

EXCERPTS FROM THE LAW
The following format must be used for the CPA Certification Statement unless unusual
circumstances or conditions, explained in the letter or report, demand that it be varied. Federal Power Act, 16 U.S.C. § 791a-825r

Insert parenthetical phrases only when exceptions are reported.
Sec. 3. The words defined in this section shall have the following meanings for purposes of this Act,

“In connection with our regular examination of the financial statements of [COMPANY to with:

NAME] for the year ended on which we have reported separately under date of [DATE],

we have also reviewed schedules [NAME OF SCHEDULES) of FERC Form No. 1 for the 'Corporation' means any corporation, joint-stock company, partnership, association, business
year filed with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, for conformity in all material trust, organized group of persons, whether incorporated or not, or a receiver or receivers,
respects with the requirements of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission as set forth trustee or trustees of any of the foregoing. It shall not include 'municipalities, as hereinafter
in its applicable Uniform System of Accounts and published accounting releases. Our defined;

review for this purpose included such tests of the accounting records and such other

_ _ ... ..
auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. Person' means an individual or a corporation;

‘Licensee, means any person, State, or municipality Licensed under the provisions of section 4

Based on our review, in our opinion the accompanying schedules identified in the of this Act, and any assignee or successor in interest thereof;

preceding paragraph (except as noted below) conform in all material respects with the

accounting requirements of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission as set forth in its 'municipality means a city, county, irrigation district, drainage district, or other political

applicable Uniform System of Accounts and published accounting releases.” The letter or subdivision or agency of a State competent under the Laws thereof to carry and the business of
report must state which, if any, of the pages above do not conform to the Commission’s developing, transmitting, unitizing, or distributing power; ......

requirements. Describe the discrepancies that exist.

Filers are encouraged to file their Annual Report to Stockholders, and the CPA
Certification Statement using eFiling. _ucn_._m_. Sm::o»_ozm are found on the OoBB_mw_os s

"project' means. a complete unit of improvement or development, consisting of a power house,
all water conduits, all dams and appurtenant works and structures (including navigation
structures) which are a part of said unit, and all storage, diverting, or fore bay reservoirs directly

Emm_um;m qm". i faqs- connected therewith, the primary line or lines transmitting power there from to the point of
ngferc-online. junction with the distribution system or with the interconnected primary transmission system, all
Federal, State, and Local Governments and other authorized users may obtain additional miscellaneous structures used and useful in connection with said unit or any part thereof, and
blank oou_mm oﬁ _ummo Form 1 and 3-Q free of charge from hitps://www.ferc gov/general- all water rights, rights-of-way, ditches, dams, reservoirs, Lands, or interest in Lands the use and
infi ry-forms. occupancy of which are necessary or appropriate in the maintenance and operation of such
unit;
When to Submit "Sec. 4. The Commission is hereby authorized and empowered
FERC Forms 1 and 3-Q must be filed by the following schedule: “To make investigations and to collect and record data concerning the utilization of the water

. . ‘resources of any region to be developed, the water-power industry and its relation to other
Mu__m_usnw_hoﬁmﬁ Mﬂwmom__mm mﬂmhdo u%_wﬂmvmomaum_. 31 must be filed by April 18th of the industries and to interstate or foreign commerce, and concerning the location, capacity,
o development costs, and relation to markets of power sites; ... to the extent the Commission may
FERC Form 3-Q for each calendar quarter must be filed within 60 days after the reporting deem necessary or useful for the purposes of this Act.”
quarter (18 C.F.R. § 141.400). "Sec. 304
ec. .

Where to Send Comments on Public Reporting Burden. Every Licensee and every public utility shall file with the Commission such annual and other

periodic or special” reports as the Commission may by rules and regulations or other prescribe

The public reporting burden for the FERC Form 1 collection of information is estimated to as necessary or appropriate to assist the Commission in the proper administration of this Act.
average 1,168 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching The Commission may prescribe the manner and FERC Form in which such reports shall be
mx_%_zm data sources, om?.m::o m:.a :._m_:»m_:_:o. the %E-:omama. and completing and made, and require from such persons specific answers to all questions upon which the
reviewing the collection of information. The public reporting burden for the FERC Form 3-Q Commission may need information. The Commission may require that such reports shall
collection of information is estimated to average 168 hours per response. include, among other things, full information as to assets and Liabilities, capitalization, net

investment, and reduction thereof, gross receipts, interest due and paid, depreciation, and other
reserves, cost of project and other facilities, cost of maintenance and operation of the project
and other facilities, cost of renewals and replacement of the project works and other facilities,
depreciation, generation, transmission, distribution, delivery, use, and sale of electric energy.
The Commission may require any such person to make adequate provision for currently
determining such costs and other facts. Such reports shall be made under oath unless the
Coammission otherwise snecifies* 10

Send comments regarding these burden estimates or any aspect of these collections of
information, including suggestions for reducing burden, to the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission, 888 First Street NE, Washington, DC 20426 (Attention: Information Clearance
Officer); and to the Office of Information and Regulatory Affairs, Office of Management and
Budget, Washington, DC 20503 (Attention: Desk Officer for the Federal Energy Regulatory
Ooaa_mm_oé No person m:m__ be subject to any um:m_Q if any collection of information does not
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This report is:
Name of Respondent: L Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (1) L An Original 04/14/2023 End of: 2022/ Q4

(2) 1 A Resubmission

LIST OF SCHEDULES (Electric Utility)

Enter in column (c) the terms "none," “not applicable," or "NA," as appropriate, where no information or amounts have been reported for certain pages. Omit pages where the respondents are "none,” "not
applicable," or “NA".

Line Title of Schedule Reference Page No. Remarks
No. (a) (b) {c)
Identification 1
List of Schedules 2

1 General Information 101

2 Control Over Respondent 102

3 Corporations Controlled by Respondent 103 N/A
4 Officers 104

5 Directors 105

6 Information on Formula Rates 106

7 Important Changes During the Year 108

8 Comparative Balance Sheet 110

9 Statement of iIncome for the Year 114

10 Statement of Retained Earnings for the Year 118

12 Statement of Cash Flows 120

12 Notes to Financial Statements 122

13 Statement of Accum Other no_.nw»_mumﬁmm. Comp Income, and Hedging 122a

14 Summary of Utility Plant & >no:ﬂw___um8n Provisions for Dep, Amort & 200

15 Nuclear Fuel Materials 202 N/A
16 Electric Plant in Service 204

17 Electric Plant Leased to Others 213 N/A
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46 Electric Operation and Maintenance Expenses 320

47 Purchased Power 326

48 Transmission of Electricity for Others 328

49 Transmission of Electricity by ISO/RTOs 331 N/A
50 Transmission of Electricity by Others 332

51 Miscellaneous General Expenses-Electric 335

52 Depreciation and Amortization of Electric Plant (Account 403, 404, 405) 336

53 Regulatory Commission Expenses 350

54 Research, Development and Demonstration Activities 352

55 Distribution of Salaries and Wages 354

56 Common Utility Plant and Expenses 356 REVISED
57 Amounts included in ISO/RTO Settlement Statements 397

58 Purchase and Sale of Ancillary Services 398

59 Monthly Transmission System Peak Load 400 N/A
60 Monthly ISO/RTO Transmission System Peak Load 400a N/A
61 Electric Energy Account 401a

62 Monthly Peaks and Output 401b

63 Steam Electric Generating Plant Statistics 402

64 Hydroelectric Generating Plant Statistics 406 N/A
65 Pumped Storage Generating Plant Statistics 408 N/A
66 Generating Plant Statistics Pages 410 N/A
0 Energy Storage Operations (Large Plants) 414 N/A
67 Transmission Line Statistics Pages 422

68 Transmission Lines Added During Year 424

69 Substations 42

70 Transactions with Associated (Affiliated) Companies 429

71 Footnote Data 450
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This report is:

Name of Respondent: s Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (1) L An Originai 04/14/2023 End of: 2022/ Q4

(2) 4] A Resubmission

GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Provide name and title of officer having custody of the general corporate books of account and address of office where the general corporate books are kept, and address of office where any other
corporate books of account are kept, if different from that where the general corporate books are kept.

Cynthia S. Lee
Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer and Controller

526 S. Church Street, Charlotte, NC 28202

2. Provide the name of the State under the laws of which respondent is incorporated, and date of incorporation. If incorporated under a special law, give reference to such law. If not incorporated, state
that fact and give the type of organization and the date organized.

State of Incorporation: KY

Date of Incorporation: 1901-03-20

Incorporated Under Special Law:

3. If at any time during the year the property of respondent was held by a receiver or trustee, give (a) name of receiver or trustee, (b) date such receiver or trustee took possession, (c) the authority by
which the receivership or trusteeship was created, and (d) date when possession by receiver or trustee ceased.

(a) Name of Receiver or Trustee Holding Property of the Respondent: N/A

(b) Date Receiver took Possession of Respondent Property:

(c) Authority by which the Receivership or Trusteeship was created: N/A

(d) Date when possession by receiver or trustee ceased:

4. State the classes or utility and other services furnished by respondent during the year in each State in which the respondent operated.

Kentucky - Gas and Electric

5. Have you engaged as the principal accountant to audit your financial statements an accountant who is not the principal accountant for your previous year's certified financial statements?

1 0O Yes

2 M No

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-87)
Page 101
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Name of Respondent:
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

This report is:
) O An Original
2) [¥] A Resubmission

Date of Report:
04/14/2023

Year/Period of Report
End of: 2022/ Q4

CORPORATIONS CONTROLLED BY RESPONDENT

year, give particulars (details) in a footnote.

Definitions

1. See the Uniform System of Accounts for a definition of control.

2. Direct control is that which is exercised without interposition of an intermediary.
3. Indirect control is that which is exercised by the interposition of an intermediary which exercises direct control.

4. Joint control is that in which neither interest can effectively control or direct action without the consent of the other, as where the voting control is equally divided between two holders, or each party

1. Report below the names of all corporations, business trusts, and similar organizations, controlled directly or indirectly by respondent at any time during the year. If control ceased prior to end of

2. If control was by other means than a direct holding of voting rights, state in a footnote the manner in which control was held, naming any intermediaries involved.
3. If control was held jointly with one or more other interests, state the fact in a footnote and name the other interests.

holds a veto power over the other. Joint control may exist by mutual agreement or understanding between two or more parties who together have control within the meaning of the definition of
control in the Uniform System of Accounts, regardless of the relative voting rights of each party.

Line
No.

Name of Company Controlled
(@)

Kind of Business

(b)

Percent Voting
Stock Owned

(c)

Footnote Ref.

(d)

N/A

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-96)

Page 103
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This report is:
Name of Respondent: L Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (1) L An Original 04/14/2023 End of: 2022/ Q4

2) 4} A Resubmission

INFORMATION ON FORMULA RATES

O Yes

Does the respondent have formula rates?
¥ No

1. Please list the Commission accepted formula rates including FERC Rate Schedule or Tariff Number and FERC proceeding (i.e. Docket No) accepting the rate(s) or changes in the accepted rate.

Line FERC Rate Schedule or Tariff Number FERC Proceeding
No. (@ (b)

10

"

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19
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Name of Respondent:

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

This report is:
(1) O An Original
(2) Y] A Resubmission

Date of Report:
04/14/2023

Year/Period of Report
End of: 2022/ Q4

INFORMATION ON FORMULA RATES - FERC Rate Schedule/Tariff Number FERC Proceeding

Does the respondent file with the Commission annual
(or more frequent) filings containing the inputs to the

formula rate(s)?

V] Yes

O No

If yes, provide a listing of such filings as contained on the Commission's eLibrary website.

Document Date / Filed

Formula Rate FERC Rate Schedule

Line | Accession No. Date Docket No. Description Number or Tariff Number
No. @ () (©) (@ ©

1 20120515-5244 05/15/2012 ER12-81-000 Formula Rate Annual Update PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A

2 20130129-5070 01/29/2013 ER12-91-000 Formula Rate Annual Update Corrected PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A

3 20130515-5122 05/15/2013 ER12-91-000 Formula Rate Annual Update PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A

4 20140515-5149 05/15/2014 ER12-91-000 Formula Rate Annual Update PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A

5 20150515-5244 05/15/2015 ER12-91-000 Formula Rate Annual Update PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A

6 20150617-5152 06/17/2015 ER15-1932-000 Section 205 PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A

7 20160513-5092 05/13/2016 ER12-91-000 Formula Rate Annual Update PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A

8 20161130-5416 11/30/2016 ER12-91-000 Formula Rate Annual Update Corrected PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A

9 20170509-5150 05/09/2017 ER12-91-000 Formula Rate Annual Update PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A

10 20180129-5213 01/29/2018 ER12-91-000 Formula Rate Annual Update Corrected PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A

11 20180402-5140 04/02/2018 ER18-1274-000 Section 205 PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A & H-22B
12 20180515-5331 05/15/2018 ER12-91-000 Formula Rate Annual Update PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A

13 20181214-5040 12/14/2018 ER19-555-000 Section 205 PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A

14 20190329-5217 03/29/2019 ER19-1483-000 Section 205 PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A

15 20190515-5112 05/15/2019 ER12-91-000 Formula Rate Annual Update PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A

16 20200207-5054 02/07/2020 ER12-91-000 Formula Rate Annual Update Corrected PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A

17 20200515-5123 05/15/2020 ER20-1832-000 Order No. 864 Compliance Filing PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A

18 20200515-5294 05/15/2020 ER12-91-000 Formula Rate Annual Update PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A
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Name of Respondent:

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

This report is:
(1) O An Original
2) [] A Resubmission

Date of Report:
04/14/2023

Year/Period of Report
End of: 2022/ Q4

INFORMATION ON FORMULA RATES - Formula Rate Variances

1. If a respondent does not submit such filings then indicate in a footnot

2. The footnote should provide a narrative description explaining how th

3. The footnote should explain amounts excluded from the ratebase or w
reported in Form 1 schedule amounts.

4. Where the Commission has provided guidance on formula rate inputs, the specific proceeding should be noted in the footnote.

e to the applicable Form 1 schedule where formula rate inputs differ from amounts reported in the Form 1.
e "rate" (or billing) was derived if different from the reported amount in the Form 1.
here labor or other allocation factors, operating expenses, or other items impacting formula rate inputs differ from amounts
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This report is:
Name of Respondent: . Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (1) LJ An Original 04/14/2023 End of: 2022/ Q4

(2) [ A Resubmission

IMPORTANT CHANGES DURING THE QUARTER/YEAR

Give particulars (details) concerning the matters indicated below. Make the statements explicit and precise, and number them in accordance with the inquiries. Each inquiry should be answered. Enter
“none," "not applicable,” or "NA" where applicable. If information which answers an inquiry is given elsewhere in the report, make a reference to the schedule in which it appears.

1. Changes in and important additions to franchise rights: Describe the actual consideration given therefore and state from whom the franchise rights were acquired. If acquired without the payment of

consideration, state that fact.

2. Acquisition of ownership in other companies by reorganization, merger, or consolidation with other companies: Give names of companies involved, particulars concerning the transactions, name of

the Commission authorizing the transaction, and reference to Commission authorization.

3. Purchase or sale of an operating unit or system: Give a brief description of the property, and of the transactions relating thereto, and reference to Commission authorization, if any was required.

Give date journal entries called for by the Uniform System of Accounts were submitted to the Commission.

4. Important leaseholds (other than leaseholds for natural gas lands) that have been acquired or given, assigned or surrendered: Give effective dates, lengths of terms, names of parties, rents, and

other condition. State name of Commission authorizing lease and give reference to such authorization.
5. Important extension or reduction of transmission or distribution system: State territory added or relinquished and date operations began or ceased and give reference to Commission authorization, if
any was required. State also the approximate number of customers added or lost and approximate annual revenues of each class of service. Each natural gas company must also state major new
continuing sources of gas made available to it from purchases, development, purchase contract or otherwise, giving location and approximate total gas volumes available, period of contracts, and
other parties to any such arrangements, etc.
. Obligations incurred as a result of issuance of securities or assumption of liabilities or guarantees including issuance of short-term debt and commercial paper having a maturity of one year or less.
Give reference to FERC or State Commission authorization, as appropriate, and the amount of obligation or guarantee.
. Changes in articles of incorporation or amendments to charter: Explain the nature and purpose of such changes or amendments.
State the estimated annual effect and nature of any important wage scale changes during the year.
. State briefly the status of any materially important legal proceedings pending at the end of the year, and the results of any such proceedings culminated during the year.
10. Describe briefly any materially important transactions of the respondent not disclosed elsewhere in this report in which an officer, director, security holder reported on Pages 104 or 105 of the
Annual Report Form No. 1, voting trustee, associated company or known associate of any of these persons was a party or in which any such person had a material interest.

11. (Reserved.)

12. If the important changes during the year relating to the respondent company appearing in the annual report to stockholders are applicable in every respect and furnish the data required by
Instructions 1 to 11 above, such notes may be included on this page.

13. Describe fully any changes in officers, directors, major security holders and voting powers of the respondent that may have occurred during the reporting period.

14. In the event that the respondent participates in a cash management program(s) and its proprietary capital ratio is less than 30 percent please describe the significant events or transactions causing
the proprietary capital ratio to be less than 30 percent, and the extent to which the respondent has amounts loaned or money advanced to its parent, subsidiary, or affiliated companies through a
cash management program(s). Additionally, please describe plans, if any to regain at least a 30 percent proprietary ratio.

©o®~N o

None

See Notes to Financial Statements, Note 1, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”

See Notes to Financial Statements, Note 2, "Regulatory Matters”

None

There are no changes to report during the fourth quarter 2022.
There are no changes to report during the third quarter 2022.
There are no changes to report during the second quarter 2022.

There are no changes to report during the first quarter 2022.
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E? E. Hatcher

Senior Vice President, Customer Experience and Services

Resignations effective 03/01/2022
FERfeRORM M ED. 12-96)

Resignations effective 02/25/2022

Dennis P. Gilbert, Jr.

Resignations effective 01/01/2022

Barbara A. Higgins

Larry E. Hatcher

Mia S. Haynes

Joni Y. Davis

Keith G. Butler

Senior Vice President, Natural Gas Business

Page 108-109

Vice President and Chief Information Security Officer

Senior Vice President and Chief Customer Officer

Senior Vice President, Customer Services

Vice President, Customer Care

Vice President, Chief of Staff and Chief Diversity and Inclusion Officer
Senior Vice President and Chief Security Officer
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24 Other Investments (124) 1,500 1,500
25 Sinking Funds (125)

26 Depreciation Fund (126)

27 Amortization Fund - Federal (127)

28 Other Special Funds (128) 16,155,189 16,381,482
29 Special Funds (Non Major Only) (129)

30 Long-Term Portion of Derivative Assets (175) 111,502
31 Long-Term Portion of Derivative Assets - Hedges (176)

32 TOTAL Other Property and Investments (Lines 18-21 and 23-31) 17,424,565 17,742,047
33 CURRENT AND ACCRUED ASSETS

34 Cash and Working Funds (Non-major Only) (130)

35 Cash (131) 3,326,498 5,482,547
36 Special Deposits (132-134)

37 Working Fund (135)

38 Temporary Cash Investments (136)

39 Notes Receivable (141)

40 Customer Accounts Receivable (142) 25,957,928 20,694,605
41 Other Accounts Receivable (143) 1,622,091 2,142,390
42 (Less) Accum. Prov. for Uncollectible Acct.-Credit (144) 530,729 314,921
43 Notes Receivable from Associated Companies (145) 53,343,537 22,396,503
44 Accounts Receivable from Assoc. Companies (146) 2,175,359 9,106,248
45 Fuel Stock (161) 227 38,881,864 32,848,807
46 Fuel Stock Expenses Undistributed (152) 227

47 Residuals (Elec) and Extracted Products (153) 227

48 Plant Materials and Operating Supplies (154) 227 17,915,826 16,707,317
49 Merchandise (155) 227

50 Other Materials and Supplies (156) 227

51 Nuclear Materials Held for Sale (157) 2021227
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79 Def. Losses from Disposition of Utility Pit. (187)

80 Research, Devel. and Demonstration Expend. (188) 352

81 Unamortized Loss on Reaquired Debt (189) 272,341 394,481
82 Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes (190) 234 74,456,012 70,722,124
83 Unrecovered Purchased Gas Costs (191) 1,082,583 1,128,482
84 Total Deferred Debits (lines 69 through 83) 184,671,025 218,202,299
85 TOTAL ASSETS (lines 14-16, 32, 67, and 84) 2,548,289,499 2,377,557,012

FERC FORM No. 1 (REV. 12-03)

Page 110-111
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This report is:

Name of Respondent: 1) O an Original

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

(2) 4] A Resubmission

Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
04/14/2023 End of: 2022/ Q4

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS)

Current Year End of Quarter/Year

Line Title of Account Ref. Page No. Balance Prior Year End Balance 12/31

No. (a) {b) (©) {d)
1 PROPRIETARY CAPITAL
2 Common Stock Issued (201) 250 8,779,995 8,779,995
3 Preferred Stock Issued (204) 250
4 Capital Stock Subscribed (202, 205)
5 Stock Liability for Conversion (203, 206)
6 Premium on Capital Stock (207) 18,838,946 18,838,946
7 Other Paid-In Capital (208-211) 253 273,655,189 273,655,189
8 Installments Received on Capital Stock (212) 252
9 (Less) Discount on Capital Stock (213) 254
10 (Less) Capital Stock Expense (214) 254b
1 Retained Earnings (215, 215.1, 216) 118 578,920,356 520,368,338
12 Unappropriated Undistributed Subsidiary Earnings (216.1) 118
13 (Less) Reaquired Capital Stock (217) 250
14 Noncorporate Proprietorship (Non-major only) (218)
16 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (219) 122(a)(b)
16 Total Proprietary Capital (lines 2 through 15) 880,194,486 821,642,468
17 LONG-TERM DEBT
18 Bonds (221) 256
19 (Less) Reaquired Bonds (222) 256
20 Advances from Associated Companies (223) 256 25,000,000 25,000,000
21 Other Long-Term Debt (224) 256 756,720,000 706,720,000
22 Unamortized Premium on Long-Term Debt (225)
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51 (Less) Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities 1,547,895 3,693,879
52 Derivative Instrument Liabilities - Hedges (245)

53 (Less) Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities-Hedges

54 Total Current and Accrued Liabilities (lines 37 through 53) 246,168,790 199,218,173
55 DEFERRED CREDITS

56 Customer Advances for Construction (252) 2,520,949 1,645,440
57 Accumulated Deferred Investment Tax Credits (255) 266 3,364,566 3,559,977
58 Deferred Gains from Disposition of Utility Plant (256)

59 Other Deferred Credits (253) 269 14,807,673 14,246,484
60 Other Regulatory Liabilities (254) 278 124,170,465 130,898,991
61 Unamortized Gain on Reaquired Debt (257)

62 Accum. Deferred Income Taxes-Accel. Amort.(281) 272

63 Accum. Deferred income Taxes-Other Property (282) 327,209,898 301,962,482
64 Accum. Deferred Income Taxes-Other (283) 23,962,912 36,718,297
65 Total Deferred Credits (lines 56 through 64) 496,036,463 489,031,671
66 Am.%.mqu w%,_w_r_._._mm AND STOCKHOLDER EQUITY (lines 16, 24, 35, 2.548.289,499 2,377 557,012
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Maintenance
Expenses (402)

320

34,590,833

38,272,692

32,244,328

36,185,319

2,346,505

2,087,373

Depreciation Expense
(403)

336

66,082,094

64,618,518

49,783,713

48,640,753

16,298,381

15,977,765

Depreciation Expense
for Asset Retirement
Costs (403.1)

336

Amort. & Depl. of
Utility Plant (404-405)

336

8,632,951

7,862,366

4,314,108

3,543,320

4,318,843

4,319,046

Amort. of Utility Plant
Acq. Adj. (406)

336

10

Amort. Property
Losses, Unrecov Plant
and Regulatory Study
Costs (407)

1"

Amort. of Conversion
Expenses (407.2)

12

Regulatory Debits
(407.3)

20,189,089

12,706,512

18,961,249

10,201,756

1,227,840

2,504,756

13

(Less) Regulatory
Credits (407.4)

1,158,927

7,000,556

1,067,661

6,897,985

91,266

102,571

14

Taxes Other Than
Income Taxes (408.1)

262

22,423,684

20,498,702

17,452,041

15,842,108

4,971,643

4,656,594

15

Income Taxes -
Federal (409.1)

262

9,255,847

(8,052,386)

8,497,247

(8,317,550)

758,600

265,164

16

Income Taxes - Other
(409.1)

262

1,330,719

(2,502,787)

1,145,949

(2,533,237)

184,770

30,450

17

Provision for Deferred
Income Taxes (410.1)

234,
272

59,485,831

59,111,911

43,299,864

47,582,356

16,185,967

11,629,555

18

(Less) Provision for
Deferred Income
Taxes-Cr. (411.1)

234,
272

56,362,309

38,405,762

45,269,083

30,003,029

11,093,226

8,402,733

19

Investment Tax Credit
Adj. - Net (411.4)

266

(195,412)

(58,058)

77

(428)

(195,489)

(57,630)

20

(Less) Gains from
Disp. of Utility Plant
(411.6)

21

Losses from Disp. of
Utility Plant (411.7)
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38

Allowance for Other
Funds Used During
Construction (419.1)

1,249,377

1,259,856

39

Miscellaneous
Nonoperating Income
(421)

888,030

977,722

40

Gain on Disposition of
Property (421.1)

192,167

41

TOTAL Other Income
(Enter Total of lines 31
thru 40)

6,362,045

4,439,990

42

Other Income
Deductions

43

Loss on Disposition of
Property (421.2)

121,978

Miscellaneous
Amortization (425)

45

Donations (426.1)

559,067

413,987

46

Life Insurance (426.2)

(9,559)

(9,857)

47

Penalties (426.3)

4

166,667

48

Exp. for Certain Civic,
Political & Related
Activities (426.4)

579,668

454,776

49

Other Deductions
(426.5)

11,073,319

3,817,077

50

TOTAL Other Income
Deductions (Total of
lines 43 thru 49)

12,324,477

4,842,650

51

Taxes Applic. to Other
Income and
Deductions

52

Taxes Other Than
Income Taxes (408.2)

262

3,621

(1.176)

53

Income Taxes-Federal
(409.2)

262

238,262

1,098,161

Income Taxes-Other
(409.2)

262

59,303

273,404

55

Provision for Deferred
Inc. Taxes (410.2)

234,
272

1,785,096

514,292
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71

Income Before
Extraordinary Items
(Total of lines 27, 60
and 70)

58,552,018

53,405,580

72

Extraordinary Items

73

Extraordinary Income
(434)

74

(Less) Extraordinary
Deductions (435)

75

Net Extraordinary
Iltems (Total of line 73
less line 74)

76

Income Taxes-Federal
and Other (409.3)

262

77

Extraordinary ltems
After Taxes (line 75
less line 76)

78

Net Income (Total of
line 71 and 77)

58,552,018

53,405,580

FERC FORM No. 1 (REV. 02-04)
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16 Balance Transferred from Income (Account 433 less Account 418.1) 58,552,018 53,405,580
17 Appropriations of Retained Earnings (Acct. 436)
22 TOTAL Appropriations of Retained Earnings (Acct. 436)
23 Dividends Declared-Preferred Stock (Account 437)
29 TOTAL Dividends Declared-Preferred Stock (Acct. 437)
30 Dividends Declared-Common Stock (Account 438)
301 Cash Dividend to Parent
36 TOTAL Dividends Declared-Common Stock (Acct. 438)
37 Transfers from Acct 216.1, Unapprop. Undistrib. Subsidiary Earnings
38 Balance - End of Period (Total 1,9,15,16,22,29,36,37) 578,920,356 520,368,338
39 APPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (Account 215)
45 TOTAL Appropriated Retained Earnings (Account 215)
w___uw_uﬂo_u. RETAINED EARNINGS - AMORT. Reserve, Federal (Account
46 Mmumu..ﬂ.»ﬁu_.ou. Retained Earnings-Amort. Reserve, Federal (Acct.
47 TOTAL Approp. Retained Earnings (Acct. 215, 215.1) (Total 45,46)
48 TOTAL Retained Earnings (Acct. 215, 215.1, 216) (Total 38, 47) (216.1) 578,920,356 520,368,338
UNAPPROPRIATED UNDISTRIBUTED SUBSIDIARY EARNINGS
(Account Report only on an Annual Basis, no Quarterly)
49 Balance-Beginning of Year (Debit or Credit)
50 Equity in Earnings for Year (Credit) (Account 418.1)
51 (Less) Dividends Received (Debit)
52 .ﬂo._.»»r other Changes in unappropriated undistributed subsidiary
earnings for the year
52.1 Transfers from Unappropriated Retained Earnings (Account 216)
53 Balance-End of Year (Total lines 49 thru 52)

FERC FORM No. 1 (REV. 02-04)
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17 (Less) Undistributed Earnings from Subsidiary Companies

18 Other (provide details in footnote):

18.1 Other (provide details in footnote):

18.2 Special funds (1,462,176) (2,197,548)
18.3 Prepayments 74,689 5,479,620
18.4 Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Assets (1,307,047) (445,803)
18.5 Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges (110,644) 57,260
18.6 Clearing Accounts 6 1)
18.7 Temporary Facilities

18.8 Miscellaneous Deferred Debits (161,358) (59,549)
18.9 Unrecovered Purchased Gas Costs 45,899 (4,642,503)
18.10 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

18.11 Obligations Under Capital Leases - Noncurrent (344,278) (317,819)
18.12 Accumulated Provisions 1,700,257 369,326
18.13 Accumulated Provision for Rate Refund

18.14 Contribution to Pension Plan (852,924)

18.15 Customer Advances for Construction 368,198 50,413
18.16 Other Deferred Credits 561,189 (376,163)
18.17 Derivative Instruments (672,243) 148,527
18.18 Net Utility Plant and Nonutility Property (34,901,051) 12,616,650
18.19 Debt Expenses (3,500) (23,500)
18.20 Deferred Income Taxes 311,421 391,237
22 Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities (Total of Lines 2 thru 21) 175,556,925 105,929,910
24 Cash Flows from Investment Activities:

25 Construction and Acquisition of Plant (including land):

26 Gross Additions to Utility Plant (less nuclear fuel) (172,699,698) (181,350,003)
27 Gross Additions to Nuclear Fuel

28 Gross Additions to Common Utility Plant (3,425,677) (289,169)
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61 Long-Term Debt (b) 50,000,000 50,000,000
62 Preferred Stock

63 Common Stock

64 Other (provide details in footnote):

64.1 Other (provide details in footnote):

64.2 Notes Payable to Associated Companies

64.3 Other Financing Activities (provide details in footnote):

66 Net Increase in Short-Term Debt (c)

67 Other (provide details in footnote):

67.1 Other (provide details in footnote):

67.2 Contribution from Parent 50,000,000
70 Cash Provided by Outside Sources (Total 61 thru 69) 50,000,000 100,000,000
72 Payments for Retirement of:

73 Long-term Debt (b) (380,026) (50,014,560)
74 Preferred Stock

75 Common Stock

76 Other (provide details in footnote):

76.1 Other (provide details in footnote):

76.2 Intercompany Notes Payable MoneyPool (21,364,001) 27,124,001
76.3 Premium payments and fees on deferred debt (145,915) (108,719)
76.4 Fair market value adjustment

76.5 Bond Issuance Costs

78 Net Decrease in Short-Term Debt (c)

80 Dividends on Preferred Stock

81 Dividends on Common Stock

83 Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities (Total of lines 70 thru 81) 28,110,058 77,000,722
85 Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

86 Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (Total of line 22, 57 and 83) (2,156,049) 1,185,572
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This report is:
Name of Respondent: 1y J An Origin Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
al
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (1 9 04/14/2023 End of: 2022/ Q4
(2) ¥] A Resubmission
FOOTNOTE DATA
(a) Concept: CashAndCashEquivalents
YTD December 2022 YTD December 2021
Supplemental Discl es (in th ds)
Cash paid for interest, net of amount Capital $ 28,005 $ 25,688
Cash paid / (refunded) for income taxes $ (11,154) $ 2,019
Significant non-cash transactions (in thousands)
AFUDC - equity component $ 1,249 $ 1,260
Accrued capital expenditures $ 30,310 $ 28,490
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of period:
Cash (131) $ 3,326,498 $ 5,482,547
Working Funds (135) $0 $0
Temporary Cash Investments (136) $0 $0
$ 3,326,498 § 5,482,547

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-96)

Page 120-121
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The majonity of Duke Energy Kentucky's operations are subject to pnce regulation for the sale of electricity and natural gas by the KPSC or FERC, When prices are set on the basis of specific costs of the regulated operati and an eff fr is in place such that sufficient natural gas or electric
services can be sold to recover those costs, Duke Energy K applies reg: Y Reg Y i ges the timing of the ition of costs or relative to a company that does not apply Y ing. As a result, reg y assets and regulatory liabilities are
recognized on the Balance Sheets and are amortized consistent with the treatment of the related cost in the k p g y assets are d for ity each reporting peniod. If a y asset is no longer deemed probable of recovery, the deferred cost is charged to

eamings. See Note 2 for further information.

Duke Energy K utilizes cost i h ly to as fuel adj clauses or pi gas adj t clauses. These clauses allow for the recovery of fuel and fuel-related costs, portions of purchased power, natural gas costs and hedging costs through surcharges on
customer rates. The difference the costs i d and the ot [ ded either as an adj to Operating R , Operating Exp - Fuel used in electric g ion and p power or Operati P - Cost of natural gas on the Statements of Operations
with an off-setting impact on regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
All highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less at the date of are dered cash equi
Inventory
I tory related to reg d op i ts valued at ical cost, yis ged to exp or capitali to property, plant and equipment when issued, primarily using the average cost method. Excess or obsol Y is written-d 1o the lower of cost or net realizable value. Once
y has been written-down, it creates a new cost basis for the i tory that is not My written-up. Provisions for i y write-offs were not material at December 31, 2022, and 2021. The p of i y are p d in the table below.
December 31,
(in thousands) 2022 2021
Materials and supplies $ 19,395 $ 16,685
Coal 33,706 18,978
Natural gas, oil and other 5175 13,871
Total inventory $ 58,276 $ 49,534
Long-Lived Asset Impairments
Duke Energy Kentucky evaluates long-lived assets for impai when ci indicate the carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when a long-lived asset's carrying value the esti i d cash flows exp d to result from the use and
eventual disposition of the asset. The estimated cash flows may be based on P d that are probability weighted. If the carrying value of the long-lived asset is not recoverable based on these estimated future undiscounted cash flows, the carrying value of the asset is written-
down to its then-current estimated fair value and an impai charge is d
Duke Energy Kentucky assesses the fair value of long-hived assets using various recent P third-party sales, i loped di d cash flow lysis and lysis from outside advi: Triggering events to reassess cash flows may include, but are not limited to,
i mn dity prices, the condition of an asset or management’s interest in selling the asset.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at the lower of depreciated historical cost net of any disallowances or fair value, if impaired. Duke Energy K 4 | all lated direct tabor and material costs, as well as indirect construction costs such as general engineerning, taxes and
fi ing costs. See "A for Funds Used During Construction and Interest Capitalized” below for i ion on capitalized fi ing costs. Costs of renewals and betterments that extend the useful life of property, plant and equip are also capitali The cost of repairs, replacements and
major maintenance projects, which do not extend the useful life or increase the expected output of the asset, are exp: dasi d. Depreciation is gt ty d over the esti d useful life of the asset using the composite straight-line method, Depreciation studies are conducted periodically
to update composite rates and are approved by the KPSC and/or the FERC when required. The i ig! ge depreciation rate was 2.4% for the years ended December 31, 2022, and 2021.
In general, when Duke Energy Kentucky retires its regulated property, plant and equipment, the original cost plus the cost of retirement, less salvage value and any depreciation already ized, is charged to preciation, However, when it becomes probable a regulated asset will be
retired substantially in advance of its original expected useful life or will be abandoned, the cost of the asset and the pondil lated depreciation is gnized as a sep asset. If the asset is still in operation, the net amount is classified as Facilities to be retired, net on the Balance
Sheets. If the asset is no longer operating, the net amount is classified in Regulatory assets on the Bal Sheets if d ble {see di ion of long-lived asset impairments above). The carrying value of the asset is based on historical cost if Duke Energy Kentucky is allowed to recover the
remaining net book value and a retum equal to at least the incremental borrowing rate. If not, an impairment is recognized to the extent the net book value of the asset exceeds the present value of future i d at the i g rate
When Duke Energy Ki Ky sells entire regulated operating units, the original cost and accumulated depreciation and amortization balances are removed from Property, Plant and Equipment on the Balance Sheets. Any gain or loss is rded in unless oth quired by the KPSC and/or
the FERC. See Note 7 for further information.
Leases
Duke Energy Ki b ines if an is a lease at i ion based on the g involves the use of a physi stinct identified asset and whether Duke Energy Kentucky has the right to obtain sub ially all of the fits from the use of the asset
throughout the period as well as the right to direct use of the asset. As a policy election, Duke Energy does not evaluat with i terms of less than one year as leases.
Operating leases are included in Operating lease ROU assets, net, Other current liabilities and Operating lease liabilities on the Balance Sheets.
For lessee and lessor arrangements, Duke Energy Kentucky has elected a policy to not sep: lease and ) p for all asset classes. For lessor arrangements, lease and | P are only d under one and d for under
the lease i rk if the b are not the pi i P of the t and the lease p would be ified as an operating lease
Allowance for Funds Used During Construction and Interest Capitalized
For regulated operations, the debt and equity costs of financing the construction of property, plant and equipment are reflected as AFUDC and capitalized as a component of the cost of property, plant and equipment AFUDC equity is rep on the of Operations as non-cash income in Other
Income and Expenses, net. AFUDC debt is reported as a non-cash offset to Interest Exp on the of Op After is p . Duke Energy Kentucky is permitted to recover these costs through their inclusion in rate base and the P g subseq preci
or ization of those reg d assets.
AFUDC equity, a permanent difference for income taxes, reduces the effective tax rate when capil andi the effective tax rate when depreciated or amortized. See Note 15 for additional information.
Asset Retirement Obligations
AROs are ized for legal obligati iated with the reti of property, plant and i Si all AROs are related to reg d op When ding an ARO, the present value of the proj d in the period in which it is incurred, if a reasonable
estimate of fair value can be made. The liability is accreted over time. For operating plants, the present value of the liability is added to the cost of the d asset and depreciated over the ining life of the asset. For retired plants, the present value of the liability is recorded as a regulatory asset
unless determined not to be probable of recovery.
The present value of the initial obligation and are based on discounted cash flows, which include estimates regarding timing of future cash flows, selection of discount rates and cost escalation rates, among other factors. These estimates are subject to change. Depreciation expense
is adjusted prospectively for any ges to the carrying amount of the associated asset. Duke Energy Kentucky receives amounts to fund the cost of the ARO from regulated revenues. As a result, in reg X { P and depreciation of the iated asset are
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Deferred Forced Outage Purchased Power 5,650 84 (©)
ESM Defermal 4,751 1,196 {d)2023
Ad d j 3,130 3,498 2033
Deferred gas integrity costs 1,949 2214 X 2029
Hedge costs and other deferrals 1,548 4220 {e)
Demand side )4 costs 1,438 4685 {cHd)}
Vacation accrual 1,121 1242 2023
Carbon management research grant 1,067 1.267 2028
Storm cost deferrals 818 2,011 (c)
Deferred debt expense 272 394 2036
AROs - coal ash - 32,776 X (c)a)}
Other 648 831 (c)d)
Total regulatory assets 105,030 150,197
Less: current portion 34,489 35,031
Total noncurrent regulatory assets $ 70,541 $ 115,166
Regulatory Liabilities™
Net regulatory liability related to income taxes s 110,866 118,253 (c)
Profit sharing mechanism 9,087 - 2023
Deferred fuel and purchased gas costs 7.817 3,699 {d)2023
A d p and other post fi 5,836 6,169 {b)
Hedge costs and other deferrals 3,125 107 (e
Demand side JEnergy effi costs 1,595 848 (c){(d)
Costs of removal {9,503) 747 ()]
Other 182 48 {c)(e)
Total regulatory habilities 129,005 129,871
Less: current portion 25,644 9.241
Total gulatory habi S 103,361 s 120,630
(a) Regulatory assets and liabilities are excluded from rate base unless otherwise noted.
(b) R dp ily over the g ing service periods or life exp of employ d by the benefit plans. See Note 14 for further information.
(c) The expected recovery or refund period varies or has not been determined
(d) Deferred costs are recovered through a rider mechanism.
(e) Some amounts relate to unrealized gains and losses on deri ded as a y asset or hability, respectively, until the are settled
{f) Rep funds d from to cover future | of property, plant and equip from retired or abandoned sites as property is retired. Included in rate base and recovered over the life of associated assets
(g) Certain amounts are recovered through rates,
RATE RELATED INFORMATION
The KPSC approves rates for retail electric and natural gas services within the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The FERC approves rates for electric sales to wholesale customers served under cost-based rates, as well as sales of transmisston service
Duke Energy Kentucky Natural Gas Base Rate Case
On December 1, 2022, Duke Energy Kentucky filed a rate case with the KPSC req ing an i [ in electric base rates of approximately $75 million and an ROE of 10.35%. This is an overall in rates of app 17.8%. The request for rate increase is driven by capital
to the Y 9 ion and delivery sy along with adjusted depreciation rates for the East Bend and Woodsdale generation stations to support the energy ition. Duke Energy K ky is also requesting new prog and tariff upd: including a voluntary
based bl ption program and two EV ging progl .Ap dural schedule was issued on D ber 19, 2022, ing the evidentiary hearing for May 9, 2023. New rates are anticipated to go into effect around July 15, 2023. Duke Energy Kentucky cannot predict the

outcome of this matter.

Midwest Propane Cavern

Duke Energy Kentucky used propane stored in a cavem to meet peak demand during winter for several decades. Duke Energy Ohio installed a new natural gas pipeline (the Central Corridor Project) in its Ohio service territory to increase system reliability and enable the retirement of older infrastructure.
Once the Central Corridor Project was complete and placed in service, the propane peaking facility was no longer necessary and was retired. On October 7, 2021, and November 4, 2021, Duke Energy Ohio and Duke Energy K ively, filed req with the Public Utility Commission of Ohio

and the KPSC to establish a regulatory asset for their share of expenses incurred related to the retirement of the propane storage cavern and associated propane-air facilities. On January 31, 2022, the KPSC issued an order denying o=_81m=ma< Ki ky's request. As a result of the KPSC order, Duke
Energy Kentucky recorded a $6.7 million and $0.9 mllion charge to
impairment of assets and other charges on Duke Energy K ky's of Op and Comprehensive Income in 2022 and 2021, respectively. There is $0 and $2.6 million related to the propane cavems in Net property, plant and equipment on Duke Energy Kentucky's Balance Sheets as of

December 31, 2022, and 2021, respectively.

3. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

GENERAL INSURANCE

Duke Energy K ky has and/or ge either directly or through indemnification from Duke Energy's captive i P Bison Company Limited, and its affihates, with p g in similar P with similar type
properties. Duke Energy Ki ky's ge includes (i) ial general liability coverage for liabilities arising to third parties for bodily injury and property d (ii) workers’ P ion, (i) ile liability coverage; and (iv) property ge for all real and personal property damage.
Real and p | property g electric ission and distribution lines, but i arising from boiler and hinery quakes, flood and extra but not outage or power ge. All ge is subject to certain

d ibles or i blimi Jusi terms and conditions common for companies with similar types of operations. Duke Energy Ki L if-i s its electric ission and distribution lines against loss due to storm damage and other natural disasters.

The cost of Duke Energy K ky's ge can fl year to year reflecting claims history and conditions of the i and rk

In the event of a loss, terms and ofi and reil itable might not be adequate to cover claims and other expenses incurred. Uninsured losses and other expenses, to the extent not recovered by other sources, could have a material effect on Duke Energy Kentucky's results of

operations, cash flows or financial position. Duke Energy Kentucky is responsible to the extent losses may be excluded or exceed limits of the coverage available.
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P 193
Thereafter 7,874
Total operating lease payments 11,503
Less: present value discount (3,125)
Total operating lease liabilities'™ $ 8,378
(a) Certain operating lease pay include | options that are bly certain to be d
The following tables contain additional information related to leases.
December 31,
(in thousands) Classification 2022 2021
Assets
Operating Operating lease ROU assets, net 8,016 $ 8,407
Total lease assets 8,016 § 8,407
Liabilities
Current
Operating Other current liabilities 344 318
Noncurrent
Operating 8,034 8,379
Total lease liabilities 8,378 § 8,697
Years ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2022 2021
Cash paid for i d in the of lease liabilities'?!
Operating cash flows from operating leases 688 $ 676
(a) No were ified as i ing cash flows from operating feases for the years ended December 31,2022, and 2021.
December 31,
2022 2021
Weighted. g ining lease term (years)
Operating leases 15 16
Weighted-average discount rate!®
Operating leases 4.4% 4.4%
(a) The discount rate is calculated using the rate implicit in a lease if it is readily determinable. Generally, the rate used by the lessor is not provided to Duke Energy Kentucky and in these cases the incremental borrowing rate is used. Duke Energy Kentucky wall typically use its fully collateralized
incremental borrowing rate as of the date to and record the lease. The i ] g rate is d by the lessee’s credit rating and lease term and as such may differ for individual leases, embedded leases or portfolios of leased assets.
5. DEBT AND CREDIT FACILITIES
SUMMARY OF DEBT AND RELATED TERMS
The ing table ding debt
December 31,
(in thousands) Weighted Average Interest Rate Year Due 2022 2021
Unsecured debt 4.03% 2023 - 2057 680,000 $ 680,000
Tax-exempt bonds®® 3.72% 2027 76,720 26,720
Money pool borrowings®/<! 4.31% 2027 106,232 127,596
[ debt di and pi , net (161) (174)
Unamortized debt issuance costs (2,402) (2,325)
Total debt 4.04% 860,389 $ 831,817
Short-term money pool borrowings (81,232) (102,586)
Current maturities of long-term debt (74,980) -
Total long-term debt 704,177 $ 729,221
(a) Includes $27 n that is secured by a bilateral letter of credit agreement at December 31, 2022, and 2021
(b) Floating-rate debt. At December 31, 2021, the weighted average interest rate was 0.12% and 0.36% for tax-exempt bonds and money pool borrowings, respectively.
(¢) Includes $25 n classified as Long-Term Debt Payable to Affiliated Companies on the Sheets at D ber 31, 2022, and 2021.
MATURITIES AND CALL OPTIONS
The following table shows the annual maturities of long-term debt for the next five years and th fer. A ts p d exclude short-term notes payable.
(in thousands) December 31, 2022
2023 $ 75,000
2024 —
2025 95,000
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Rewisions to estimates ot cash tows"'

24,379 17,813

Balance at end of period $ 107,821 $ 93,282
(a) All accretion expense for the years ended December 31, 2022, and 2021, relates to Duke Energy ky's regulated op and has been n d with reg Y
(b) Related to ash basin and landfill closure costs at the East Bend Station
{c) to changes in routine cost for ash imp
7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The following table summarizes property, plant and equipment.
Average Remaining Useful December 31,
Life

(in thousands) (Years) 2022 2021
Land $ 51,303 $ 41,365
Plant

Electnc g i i and 47 2,149,022 2,073,113

Natural gas transmission and distribution 57 797,622 757,878

Other buildings and improvements 61 14,767 14,197
Equipment 12 42911 36,869
Construction in process 98,107 97,535
Other 1 77,810 60,455
..‘o.m_ property, plant and equipment 3,231,542 3,081,412

preciation and {1,089,120) (1,063,561)
Facilities to be retired, net —_ 1,769
Net property, plant and equipment®/ $ 2,182,422 $ 2,019,620
(a) The debt component of AFUDC totated $1.1 million and $450 thousand at December 31, 2022, and 2021, respectively.
8. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES, NET
The components of Other Income and Exp net on the of Op are as follows.
Years Ended December 31,
{in thousands) 2022 2021
Income/(Expense):
Interest income $ 2,872 $ 982
AFUDC equity 1,249 1,260
Other (265} 2612
Other and Exp net $ 3,856 $ 4,854
9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Duke Energy Kentucky engages in retated party which are g y performed at cost and in accordance with KPSC and FERC regulations, Refer to the Balance Sheets for balances due to or from related parties related to with related parties included in the
of Operations are p! d in the table,
Years Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2022 2021
Corporate govemance and shared service oxvo._mommnw H 85,315 $ 83,976
(a) Duke Energy Kentucky is charged its proportionate share of costs, primarily related to human , employ fi i hnology, legal and fees, as well as other third-party costs, from a consolidated affiliate of Duke Energy. These are ded in Op
maintenance and other within Operating Exp on the of Operatil
In addition to the p mvo<o Duke Energy Kentucky has other affiliate ding certain i ges through Duke Energy’s wholly owned captive insurance subsidiary, rental of office space, participation in a money pool arrangement with Duke Energy and

and its proportionate share of certain charged expenses See Note 5 for more information regarding the money pool.

certain of its i other

Certain trade receivables have been sold by Duke Energy K ky to CRC, an
12 for further information related to the sales of these receivables.

Intercompany Income Taxes

d entity formed by a subsidiary of Duke Energy. The proceeds obtained from the sales of receivables are largely cash but do include a subordinated note from CRC for a portion of the purchase price, See Note

Duke Energy and its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax retum and other mﬁ.m and junsdictional EE_..._m Duke Energy Kentucky has a tax sharing agreement with Duke Energy for the allocation of consolidated tax liabilities and benefits Income taxes recorded represent amounts Duke

Energy Kentucky would incur as a sep C-Corporation. Duke Energy K had an i pany tax of $13 million and $9 million at December 31, 2022, and 2021, respectively. These are included in Other current assets on the Balance Sheets.

10. DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING

FTRs, had a notional volume of 1,820 gif h and 1,681 gi h at

COMMODITY PRICE RISK
Duke Energy xu._?_o.é has limited exposure to market price of fuel and emissi costs i d for its retail customers n_._o to the use of cost tracking and recovery Bon:uz.w:..m Duke m:o-ﬁ _Ao_._.:n_Q does have exposure to the impact of market fluctuations in the prices of electricity,
fuel and d with its gt output not utilized to serve retail op or d load (off-system, le power sales). Duke Energy K 's

December 31, 2022, and 2021, respectively.

Caa Mata 11 far additianal infasmatinn an tha fair ualiie nf ~ammadite darsuativae




gt g g e Wy S i wr Mg g% e - . PR Iy oy -

Gy e e A e ey wnpge g - pen oy . v

SIUNSO0TISIA 3INTVA UIvd ¥IHLO

9€9') $ 095y $ pouad Jo pua je asuejeq
£¥E 90'¢ nqe| Jo sjasse Asojeinbay se sjaayg g 3y uo papnjaul suieb (ejoy

BLp'e) (0og'c) sjuawames

eLe 099'¢ saseyang
SIU3UI3NIAS PUE SBOUBNSSI '$3JES ‘Saseyang
08¢’} $ 9€9°L $ pouad jo Buuubaq je asuejeg
3424 (1414 {spuesnoy; ul)

‘1€ J3gUIada(] PAPU3 SIEDA
{33u) saaneauag

(£ 19Aa7) sindui ajqeaIasq PN[aUI BNjEA Jig) JO 3y} aJaym siseq SuINda1 B UO aNnjeA Jig) | paInseaw sa | pue sjasse Jo (eq Buipua pue q jo e sapincid 3|ae; Busaajjo) 3y

sdems aje JSaJa1ul 0} 3jBjas 7 |43 SE paysse; ayL s1eays g 9y uo 1 JUBLNDUON 130 UM JAYIO PUE SBINIGEIT JUSLIND UILIA JAYIO W PapN(ou] (q)

SuLd 01 21Efal § 3raT] SE PaIISSEND SUNOWe ayl ‘sppayg 3oue(Eg By} U SIBSSY JUBLNIUON JAYIO UIYIM JBYIO PUB SIFSSY JUBLIND UIGIM JAYIO Ut PAPNISL] (2)
9¢9') $ (5¥9 $ (600'€) $ sjasse (sanqer) 1oN
0 (sva't} {5v9't) (@SOMIgEY dAteAuaQ
9€9'L $ 0 9¢9't $ (e)S19SSE aAlRALIDQ
£ i9Ad7 Z |9Ad] anjep (spuesnoys ur)

Jied jejoy
LZ0Z ‘L€ Jaquadag
095’y $ {956°t) $ $09'7 $ saniigel) s1asse jaN
- (9s6°t) (9s6't) sampgel aseauaq
095'y $ $ 095'y $ (c)S19SSE aARAISQ
£ 19427 T 13A97 anjepA {spuesnoy; u1)
Jied {gjoL

2207 ‘1€ 19quadag

S3YNSOTOSIA AILVLILNYND

n jey; sippow [eueuy Bursn panjes ale SSANBAUGP I2RAUDD 3B ISESIUI JBIUNO-IY)-48n0 |y

'saipedialunod ay) o Alijenb Upasd pue sajes 1SaIjut 'SIUNOWE [BUOHOU *SIAIND 3}B2 1S3a)U PIEMIO) 3PNOUI SINdU) “Z 19A37 S PAIJISSEID SIB PUB SIUBINIISL) JB(ILIS J0) SIndUl 3|qBAJBSqO o

SIANBALIDP DRI ISAINU|

Alaanoadsal unoy-yemebaw sad - aoud 1 4 pue Bupud uonone
6. 621 51 341 4 Ue Joj INduI 3jGeAIaSGOUN PUB anbiuyda) UCHEN|EA 3Y) ¢ |9AdT SB ! p Aip ay ay) uo oedw ueoyiubisul ue uey; 310w pey Pouad JIGRAIISAOUN AU} PUE IIBIUOT BUJ JO WLF) IINY BU) JOj SIGEAIISAD JOU SJ8 SBAIND 3aud PIEAIO) §(

S3AIRALIIP AIpowwon

aniea
ey ye swaj) 353y} Jo Aue pJodal o) Pala3|a Jou sey Ajonjua)) AB1aug unQ aNjEA JIE) JE 'IGBP UME S.AUBAIO0D U} JO SIUBWISBAUI POYI3W AIINb3 S YaNs ‘anieA Jiej e J0) PAIUNCIIE 9Q Of PaJINDaL 10U 348 1B} SIUBLLNIISUI [BIOUEUY UIBLST BINSESW 0) 193]3 0} Sanjua Siuuad aouepinG Buunoooe sniea aey

dvvo Aq pauyap se >:o._m._m_: anjeA Jie} ay) uo uummn S[aAa) ou._:_ Ul PIYISSELD BIE SIUBWRINSEAW SNjeA Jied ‘Jualpadxa jednoeud e se asn Joj papiuwad si (saoud yse pue piq q 9oud ay)) uoy! Buoud Py sindul 3jgeAasg JO 25N ITAWWAL
pue syndul 8)qeAIasqo jo asn ay) \ ‘3|qeA I 6 Jo erep jxew £q paiesoqoures ‘aiqeasasqo Appeas ag Aew sindui asayy anbiuyda) uoneniea ay o} sindul ayy w ES»;E SY5U Ayl pue xsu noge suojdwnsse Bupnpu Appge) 10 jesse oy Bupud W asn pinos
sed 1w di 10 BJRP 13)IBW 3SN m:.uEnSmnoE an[eA Jie4 1500 uoISINDE 3y} SNSIBA 32ud JIX3 UB UO SISNI0) UCHIULIP SN|BA JIey 3y L '3jep ay e sed 1yew 4 Apapso ue Ut Aigey B J3jSUBs Jo Jasse ue §as ol aaud aBueyaxa ay) st anjes ney

SINIWIHNSVIN INTVA NIV “LL

)} yoea o} ) Ip pue suwa} 10 Aioje| ay) pue ay) 4o sisA) 4 sh uo paseq ‘sjeudosdde aiaym ‘sjuawasGe (BJ31E)(00 JO 3PISING Loddns Jipasd apIA0Id 0f SIFWOISNA WD JIPBID JO Si3N3| JO YSED SUIBIGE 058 Aanjua ABsau3 ayng

suonisod jje ayepinby

PUE S}ORIUCD SeUIL] 0} 3SNED JUBIYNS S |8J3)e)102 1s0d 0} A) mc_ ay) 1ey) apiaaud osje sjuawaalbe |esale|oD Aood ppaso di03 ay} yym uip | YpaJId p ue day junowe Yl pioy: ysig UE JO $580%3 Wi ainsodxa jo Junowe ay) Joj pasn
40 SI9)39] 20 ysed Jsod 0) sauedsajunod utepad ainbal ayyl dxa J)paid UIBUD o) 6 Jajsew asn Aew ?u:.:mv_ ABiau3z aynQ ‘sioenuod Aaaiep (eaisAyd 10j Sauy ipass pajejobau .__wE.____ paiesado Aesuoisiy sey Aisnpul s Ayonuay ABuauz ayng
OSdX 3y) Aq paysiigelsa aJe SIaWoISnD IUN03)3 (12181 JO) Sluawalnbas (Bs3)8)100 pue spwif ¥pal) “siseq Buiobuo ue uo syw| asoy) Jo ssauajeudosdde ay) sIOpUOW pue SHWY IPaID pue JGe o Buuaue o) Joud sapued. 3 Jo I 1 oY) sazhieue Ayonjuay Abssus awng
NSIA LIQ34D

SBANBAUSP 3)eJ I1S3JIJUI JO SNeA Jiej BY]l UC UCHEBLWIO)UI |BUONIPRE 10) || 3ION 295

do jo ay uo dx3J 1sa121u| se pap. s1 sdems U0 153J3)u1 JO |erudde ay | ‘ssaoosd Sunjewaies sy ut m_mou paleas Jo juaweal) ay) yim juaisisuod

paziyowe ase san) A 6aJ pue sjasse A Al dsas 'sjasse Jo iqey Aloje SE paLsajap ase $3s50| 20 sureh jax! }pBW 3Y) K Gas yu 6 AoyeinBai sapun o) p ase Aay) abpay e se P jou ase Ayonjuay ABisug awng Ag o
PaJslus SIDBJUOD JRIDURUIY 'L Z0Z PUB ‘ZZOZ ‘L€ JaqwadaQ 1B uolji £ gZ§ sem Buipueisino mnuim o.m._ 1S243JU1 JO JUNOWE [BUDHOU 3y 'SIUaWa33JGE Yoo Anseall 'S N pue sdems ajes isassiul Bupnipul m.oE_:S _nacnc__ cjun seius Aew Ayanjuay ABisug awng 'saies J5auajw Ui sabUBYD Y pajemosse
ysu abeuew o] 'sajeds jsasaiul ui sabueya Buuopuow Aq pue 1qsp |10} JO d e o} 1es-ajqeuea Bupwy Aq S1)SU 3jeJ 1S2I3U| '1gap 3jeJ-paxy pue 3jel-3jqeueA Jo p SH 40 UNSa B S8 S3)e 1S3t W sabueyd o pasodxa 51 Avamuay ABiaug ayng
HSIY 3LVY LSIUILNI

fAsnnaian funnaBEIAR 1A AR R A

IAIRRR AL ArAR AAA




1668 1611 YAIUE Ut IVIIY-LSTI0 UTUL, THLIUUIEY LUTIBH » " wie e, 18y m (2 y 111aIAGL Uald (W USYEIUP UIT E3UHAalTs VI idi Vae. A yiy, uie ars L y v owe WURE CIHEIYY NEHIULRY LWUIL Have
settled in current markets. The fair value of long-term debt is determined using Leve! 2 measurements.

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
{in thousands) Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
Long-Term debt, including current maturities s 779,157 $ 694,225 § 729,221 $ 793,431
At December 31, 2022, and 2021, the fair value of cash and cash eq and notes le, and and notes payable are not jally different from their carrying amounts because of the short-term nature of these instruments and/or because the stated rates approximate
market rates.

12. VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

Avariable interest entity (VIE) is an entity that is evaluated for consolidation using more than a simple analysis of voting control. The analysis to determine whether an entity is a VIE considers contracts with an entity, credit support for an entity, the adequacy of the equity investment of an entity and the

relationship of voting power to the amount of equity invested in an entity. This analysis is performed either upon the creation of a legal entity or upon the of an event requiri such as a signil change in an entity's assets or Aq lysis of control
the party that aVIE This is based on (i) what party has the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most sig i impact its per and (ii) what party has rights to receive benefits or is obligated to absorb losses that could potentially be sigmificant to the
VIE. The analysis of the party that i aViEisa |

Cinergy Receivables Company

CRC is a bankruptcy remote, special purpose entity thatis an affiliate of Duke Energy Kentucky. As discussed below, Duke Energy Kentucky does not consolidate CRC as it is not the primary beneficiary. On a revolving basis, CRC buys certain accounts receivable arising from the sale of electricity,
natural gas and related services from Duke Energy Kentucky. CRC borrows amounts under a credit facility to buy the receivables from Duke Energy Kentucky. Borrowing availability from the credit facility is limited to the amount of qualified receivables sold to CRC which generally exclude receivables

past due more than a predetermined number of days and reserves for expected past due balances. The sole source of funds to satisfy the related debt is cash i from the ivables. A t under the credit facility are reflected on the Balance Sheets as Long-Term Debt.
The proceeds Duke Energy Kentucky receives from the sale of receivables to CRC are approximately 75% cash and 25% in the form of a subordinated note from CRC. The i note is a retained interest in the receivables sold. Duke Energy Kentucky had receivables of $53.3 million and $22.4
million from CRC at December 31, 2022, and 2021, respectively. These are din bles from affiliated companies on the Balance Sheets and reflect Duke Energy Ki ky's retained interest in ivables sold to CRC.
CRCis daVIEb 1) equity ization 1s ient to support its op (ii) power to direct the ities that most signif impact the performance of the entity is not held by the equity holder and deficiencies in net worth of CRC are funded by Duke Energy. The
most significant activities that impact the economic performance of CRC are made to q Duke Energy is considered the primary beneficiary and consolidates CRC as it makes these decisions. Ouke Energy Kentucky does not consolidate CRC.
The subordinated note held by Duke Energy Kentucky is stated at fair value. Carrying values of retained are d by ing carrying value of the receivables between assets sold and interests retained based on relative fair value. The zated basis of the i d note is not
matenally different than the face value (i) the ivables g lly turnover in less than two months, (i) credit losses are reasonably predictable due to the broad customer base and lack of significant concentration and (i) the equity in CRC is di to all retained i and thus would
absorb losses first. The hypothetical effect on fair value of the retained interests assuming both a 10% and a 20% unfavorable vanation in credit losses or discount rates is not material due fo the short tumover of receivables and historically low credit loss history. Interest accrues to Duke Energy Kentucky
on the i using the ptable yield method. This method generally approximates the stated rate on the note since the allocated basis and the face value are nearly equi An impail charge is ded against the camying value of both ined i and pi d ial
interest itis ined that an other-th p y impairment has occurred. Duke Energy ky's p to loss does not exceed the camying value.
Key ptions used in estimating fair value are iled in the table
2022 2021
Anticipated credit loss ratio 0.4% 0.4%
Discount rate 2.7% 1.1%
Receivables tumover rate 11.4% 11.4%
The following table presents gross and net receivables sold.
December 31,
{in thousands) 2022 2021
Receivables sold $ 102,233 $ 76,127
Less: Retained interests 53,344 22,397
Net receivables sold $ 48,889 $ 53,730
The following table shows sales and cash flows related to receivables sold.
Years Ended December 31,

{in thousands) 2022 2021
Sales
Receivables sold $ 671,672 $ 516,369
Loss recognized on sale 3,683 1,657
Cash flows
Cash proceeds from receivables sold $ 637,042 $ 513,346
Collection fees received 336 258
Retum received on retained interests 2,635 976
Cash flows from sales of receivables are reflected within Cash Flows from Operating Activities and Cash Flows from g Activities on the of Cash Flows
Ci ion fees ived in ion with the servicing of ferred le are included in Operati and other on the of Operati The loss gnized on sales of bles is d hly by multiplying receivables sold duning the month by the

quired di The required di is derived monthly utilizing a three-year weighted ge formula that ders charge-off history, late charge history and tumover history on the sold receivables, as well as a component for the time value of money. The discount rate, or component for the time
value of money, is the prior month-end Daily Simpte Secured Ovemight Financing Rate (SOFR) plus a fixed rate of 1 00%.
13. REVENUE
Duke Energy K i i with billed under tariff offerings or at contractually agreed upon rates based on actual physical delivery of electric or natural gas service, includi i d voll delivered when billings have not yet occurred. As such, the majority of
Duke Energy Kentucky's revenues have fixed pricing based on the terms of the published tariffs, with variability in expected cash flows attri to the £ i and uilti q of energy or natural gas supplied and used during the billing period. The stand-alone

salling orice of related sales ara desianed to suooort of orudentlv i d costs and an anorooriate return on invested assets and are orimarih d b nuhlished tariff rates or 1 d bv rel t \atorv bodies Certain excise taxes and franchise fees lavied bv
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Batance at December 31, 2022 $ 531

Trade and other receivables are evaluated based on an estimate of the risk of loss over the life of the receivable and current and histoncal conditions using supportable Pt luates the nsk of loss for trade and other bles by P the ical write-off to
total over a specified peniod. Historical loss rates are adjusted due to the impact of current i as well as d i overa ble time period. The calculated write-off rate can be applied to the ivable bal. for which an ished reserve does not already exist.
Management reviews the assumptions and nsk of loss peniodically for trade and other receivables.

The aging of trade receivables is presented in the table below.

December 31,

(in thousands) 2022 2021
Unbilled Receivables® ! $ 13,722 $ 326
Current 3,518 2,346
0-30 days past due 700 177
31-60 days past due 181 34
61-90 days past due 729 2,534
91+ days past due 3,480 2,535
Deferred Payment Arrangements'®! —_ 21
Trade and Other Receivables $ 22,330 § 7,973
(a) Unbilled are ized by apph billing rates to the estimated volumes of energy or natural gas delivered but not yet billed and are included in Receivables on the Duke Energy Kentucky Balance Sheets. Unbilled bles relate to with PIM ion, LLC
(b) Duke Energy Kentucky sells, on a revolving basis, nearly all of its retail ivable, including r bles for unbil to CRC. As further in Note 12, Duke Energy K L for these of bles as sales, A gly, the bles sold are not

d on the Sheets. Receivables for unbilled included in the sales of accounts receivable to CRC were $44 million and $27 million at December 31, 2022, and 2021, respectively.
{c) Due to ! |l h ips impactil Duke Energy has permitted s to defer pay t of past-due through i pay t plans.

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLANS

Duke Energy Kentucky participates in quatified, non-contributory defined benefit retirement plans, which consist of the Duke Energy Retirement Cash Balance Plan (RCBP), which is an active plan, and the Duke Energy Legacy Pension Plan (DELPP), which is an inactive plan. Duke Energy Kentucky

participants also participate in non-qualified defined benefit retirement plans and other post-retirement benefit plans sponsored by Duke Energy. Duke Energy p and other post { and costs related to these plans to Duke Energy Kentucky. The plans cover most
employees using a cash balance formula. Under a cash balance formula, a plan participant | a benefit ing of pay credits based upon a percentage of current eligible eamings based on age and/or years of service and interest credits. Certain employees are covered under
plans that use a final average earnings formula. Under these ] i las, a plan p. ip [ a reti benefit equal to the sum of percentages of their (i) highest three-year or four-year g it) highest three-year or four-year ge earnings in excess of
covered compensation per year of participation (maximum of 35 years) and/or (iii) highest three-year average eamings times years of participation in excess of 35 years. Duke Energy also maintains, and Duke Energy Ki ky particip in, qualified, y defined benefit retrement
plans which cover certain executives. The qualified and non-qualified non-contributory defined benefit plans are closed to new participants.

Duke Energy uses a December 31 measurement date for its defined benefit retirement plan assets and obligati Actuarial losses experi d by the defined benefit reti plans in ing plan assets as of December 31, 2022, were primarily attr le to actual [ that
was less than exp d p Actuarial gains experi d by the defined benefit reti plans in ing plan obligations as of O ber 31, 2022, were primarily attri to the i in the di rate used to plan obli

As a result of the application of ing due to total lump-sum benefit pay ing the hreshold d as the sum of service cost and interest cost on proj d benefit obligati P of net periodic benefit costs) for one of its qualified pension plans, Duke
Energy ized ges of $1,973 d which were ded to Other Income and Expenses, net, within the of Operations as of D ber 31, 2022, ges include Il d by Duke Energy for employees of Duke Energy Kentucky and

allocated charges for their proportionate share of ges for employ of Duke Energy’s shared services affiliate.

Duke Energy's policy is to fund amounts on an actuarial basis to provide assets sufficient to meet benefit payments to be paid to plan participants. Actual contributions for Duke Energy Kentucky were $853 thousand for the year ended December 21, 2022. Duke Energy Kentucky did not make any
contributions in 2021.

Net periodic benefit costs disclosed in the tables below represent the cost of the respective plan for the periods pi d prior to capitalization of 1l d as Net property, plant and equip on the Sheets. Only the service cost component of net periodic benefit costs is eligible to be

itatized. The inil italized portions of net periodic benefit costs are classified as either: (i) service cost, which is ded in Operati i and other on the St of Operati or as (ii) p of non-service cost, which is recorded in Other income and expenses,
net, on the of Operati A ts p d in the tables below rep the of pension and other post-reti benefit cost allocated by Duke Energy for employees of Duke Energy Kentucky. Additionally, Duke Energy Kentucky is allocated its proportionate share of pension
and other post-retirement benefit cost for employees of Duke Energy's shared services affiliate that provides support to Duke Energy Ki ky. These all d are included in the gt and shared services costs discussed in Note 9
QUALIFIED PENSION PLANS
Components of Net Periodic Pension Costs

Years Ended December 31,
{in thousands) 2022 2021
Service cost $ 953 $ 1,212
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 3,089 3.0
Expected return on plan assets {4,850) (6.207)
Amortization of prior service credit (85) (95)
Amortization of actuarial loss 1,333 2,118
Amortization of g 1,973 -
Net periodic pension costs $ 2,413 $ 59
A d in Regulatory Assets
December 31,

(in thousands) 2022 2021

Regulatory assets, net (decrease) H (7,031) $ (4,069)
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Duke Energy provides, and Duke Energy Kentucky participates in, some health care and life i fits for retired employ ona butory and non ibutory basis, Employ
plans. The health care benefits include medical, dental and prescription drug coverage and are subject to certain limitati such as and co-p
Duke Energy did not make any pre-funding ibutions to its other post-reti benefit plans during the years ended December 31, 2022, and 2021,

Components of Net Periodic Other Post-Retirement Benefit Costs

are eligible for these benefits if they have met age and service requirements at retirement, as defined in the

Years Ended December 31,
{in thousands) 2022 2021
Service cost $ 51 $ 81
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 112 112
Expected return on plan assets (62) €7
Amortization of prior service credit (66) (220)
Amortization of actuanial loss 188 214
Net p post costs $ 223 $ 120
A Recogni inR y Assets and Reg y Liabilities
December 31,
(in thousands) 2022 2021
Regulatory assets, net decrease $ {1,447) $ (187)
Regulatory liabilities, net increase (333) (128)
Reconciliation of Funded Status to A d Other Post-Retil Benefit Costs
Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2022 2021
Change in Projected Benefit Obligation
A lated post-reti benefit obligation at prior date $ 4,194 $ 4619
Service cost 51 81
Interest cost 112 112
Plan participants’ contnbutions 179 179
Actuarial gains 8 (284)
Benefits paid {616) (513)
Accrued retiree drug subsidy - -
A post-reti benefit obli at date $ 3,912 $ 4,194
Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
Plan assets at prior measurement date $ 1,575 $ 1,750
Actual retum on plan assets {234) 104
Plan participants' contnbutions 179 179
Benefits paid (616) (513)
Employer contributions 339 55
Plan assets at measurement date $ 1,243 $ 1,575
Funded status of plan $ (2,669) $ (2,619)
Recognized in the Bal: Sheets
December 31,
(in thousands) 2022 2021
Current post-retirement | $ 166 $ 168
Noncurrent post-retirement i 2,503 2,451
Total accrued post-retirement | $ 2,669 $ 2,619
Regulatory assets $ - $ 1,447
Regulatory lia $ 5,863 $ 6,169
(a) Included in Other within Current Liabilities on the Balance Sheets.
(b) Included in Accrued pension and other post-retit benefit costs on the Balance Sheets.
Assumptions Used for Other Post Benefits A ing
December 31,
2022 2021

Benefit Obligations
Discount rate 5.60 % 290%
Net Periodic Benefit Cost
Discount rate 2.90 % 260 %

6.50 % 6.50 %

Expected long-term rate of retum on plan assets
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Duke Energy also particip in employee savings plans sponsored by Duke Energy. Most employ participate in a formula where Duke Energy provides a g . g lly equal to 100% of employee before-tax and Roth 401(k) contnbutions and, as
icable, after-tax i of up to 6% of eligible pay per penod.
For new and rehired non-union and certain unionized employees who are not eligible to participate in Duke Energy's defined benefit plans, an additional employer contribution of 4% of eligible pay per pay period, which is subject to a three-year vesting dule, is provided to the employee's savings plan
account.
Duke Energy Kentucky's expense related to its proportionate share of pretax employer contributions and the additional 4% employer contribution was $1,385 thousand and $1,215 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2022, and 2021, respectively.
15. INCOME TAXES
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Comp of Tax Exp
Years Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2022 2021
Current income taxes
Federal $ 9,494 $ (6,954)
State 1,390 (2.229)
Total current income taxes 10,884 {9,183)
Deferred income taxes
Federal (396) 14,419
State 1,713 4,892
Total deferred income taxes® 1,317 19,311

tax credit i {195) (58)

[~ Total income tax exp included in St: of Op $ 12,006 $ 10,070
Biatufory Rate Reconciliation
The following table presents a reconciliation of income tax expense at the U.S. federal statutory tax rate to actual tax expense.
UENT EVENTS Years Ended December 31,

m rdghhh._mbﬂh %’.n OIS .1\!..“’ Macch 242023 Ford i on. aveatsrelatedto y hanefit ..u_ﬂ!n sea-hlote-14. NONN NONA
| Income tax expense, computed at the statutory rate of 21% $ 14,817 $ 13,328 |
State income tax, net of federal income tax effect 2,452 2,104
A i of excess income tax (4,887) (4,741)—

i 403, 313
FEREFORM No. 1 (ED. 12-96) “03) 313)
er items, net 499 492 27 (308)

Total income tax expense rage-esire s 12,006 s 10,070

Effective tax rate 17.0% 15.9%

DEFERRED TAXES

Net Deferred Income Tax Liability Components

Years Ended December 31,

{in thousands) 2022 2021

Deferred credits and other liabilities 1,991 $

Lease obligations 2,088 2141

Tax credits and NOL carryforwards 5,310 5,069

Pension, post and other employ fi 3,117 4,387

Regulatory liabilities and deferred credits 10,105 -

Investments and other liabilities p— 467

Other 1,008 468

Total deferred income tax assets 23,619 12,532

Accelerated depreciation rates (300,336) (278.714)

Regulatory assets and deferred credits —_ (1,777

Total deferred income tax lial (300,336) (280,491)

Net deferred income tax liabilities $ (276,717) $ (267,959)

The following table p the exp of tax credits and NOL carryforwards.

December 31, 2022

{in thousands) Amount Expiration Year

General business credits $ 5,242 2024 _ 2042

Charitabl ion carry d 33 2024 - 2025

State NOL carryforward 35 2037
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Name of Respondent:
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

This report is:
(1) OJ An Original

(2) [ A Resubmission

04/14/2023

Date of Report:

End of: 2022/ Q4

Year/Period of Report

SUMMARY OF UTILITY PLANT AND ACCUMULATED PROVISIONS FOR DEPRECIATION. AMORTIZATION AND DEPLETION

Report in Column (c) the amount for electric function, in column (d) the amount for gas function, in column (e}, (

f), and (g) report other (specify) and in column (h) common function.

Line Classification ._.oﬁa_smoo_ﬂ__ww%q“ For Electric Gas Other (Specify) Other (Specify) GOM.M.WV Common
No. (a) <mnzo=mAuw. Ended (©) (d) (e) ) u§ (h)
1 UTILITY PLANT
2 In Service
3 Plant in Service (Classified) 2,829,954,100 2,057,804,272 728,816,160 43,333,668
4 Property Under Capital Leases 8,015,743 18 015,743
5 Plant Purchased or Sold
6 Completed Construction not Classified 303,478,776 186,522,479 116,910,527 45770
7 Experimental Plant Unclassified
8 Total (3 thru 7) 3,141,448,619 2,252,342,494 845,726,687 43,379,438
9 Leased to Others
10 Held for Future Use 33,484 33,484
11 Construction Work in Progress 96,808,176 68,720,279 22,690,940 5,396,957
12 Acquisition Adjustments
13 Total Utility Plant (8 thru 12) 3,238,290,279 2,321,096,257 868,417,627 48,776,395
14 w%ﬂw:n,__%wh wﬁuw__mnw_hmq & Depletion 1,067,492,714 840,576,650 199,648,398 27,267,666
15 Net Utility Plant (13 less 14) 2,170,797,565 1,480,519,607 668,769,229 21,508,729
DETAIL OF ACCUMULATED
16 PROVISIONS FOR DEPRECIATION,
AMORTIZATION AND DEPLETION
17 In Service:
18 Depreciation 1,010,317,484 821,792,072 183,689,521 4,835,891
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Name of Respondent:
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

This report is:
(1) O An Original
(2) [V] A Resubmission

Date of Report:
04/14/2023

Year/Period of Report
End of: 2022/ Q4

FOOTNOTE DATA

(a) Concept: UtilityPlantinServicePropertyUnderCapitalLeases

Property Under Capital Leases includes Net Operating Leases of $8,015,745.

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-89)

Page 200-201
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Est Net Salvage Value of Nuclear Materials in

7 Chemical Processing

18 Nuclear Materials held for Sale (157)

19 Uranium

20 Plutonium

21 Other (Provide details in footnote)

22 TOTAL Nuclear Materials held for Sale (Total

19, 20, and 21)

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-89)

Page 202-203
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13 (315) Accessory Electric Equipment 48,173,350 5,407,453 3,836,201 49,744,602
14 (316) Misc. Power Plant Equipment 23,997,106 273,330 139,428 24,131,008
15 | B17)Asset Refirement Costs for Steam 100,701,443 62,653,805 (33,350,843) 130,004,405
16 MMMQMNM.M ﬂw:nu%o: Plant (Enter 1,026,274,626 95,684,654 21,353,683 (33,350,843) 1,067,254,754
17 B. Nuclear Production Plant
18 (320) Land and Land Rights
19 (321) Structures and Improvements
20 (322) Reactor Plant Equipment
21 (323) Turbogenerator Units
22 (324) Accessory Electric Equipment
23 (325) Misc. Power Plant Equipment
24 (326) >m.mm~ Retirement Costs for Nuclear
Production
25 TOTAL z:o_mm_. Production Plant (Enter
Total of lines 18 thru 24)
26 C. Hydraulic Production Plant
27 (330) Land and Land Rights
28 (331) Structures and Improvements
29 (332) Reservoirs, Dams, and Waterways
30 (333) Water Wheels, Turbines, and
Generators
31 (334) Accessory Electric Equipment
32 (335) Misc. Power Plant Equipment
33 (336) Roads, Railroads, and Bridges
34 (337) >m.mm” wmz..m.ama Costs for
Hydraulic Production
a5 TOTAL _.._<a_.m=__n Production Plant (Enter
Total of lines 27 thru 34)
36 D. Other Production Plant
37 (340) Land and Land Rights 3,035,570 (776,981) 2,258,589
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60 (360) Land and Land Rights 17,091,984 4,091,813 21,183,797
61 (361) Structures and Improvements 1,420,206 270,926 10,720 1,680,412
62 (362) Station Equipment 116,995,252 4,882,396 (6,684,875) 3,287 128,565,810
63 G.mwM m:.m_d< Storage Equipment -

Distribution
64 (364) Poles, Towers, and Fixtures 74,482,036 2,886,964 593,426 76,775,574
65 (365) Overhead Conductors and Devices 152,067,838 7,680,045 3,218,404 156,529,479
66 (366) Underground Conduit 43,372,544 566,337 2,473 43,936,408
67 m.wwhmamaaca Conductors and 81,870,581 3,942,938 148,820 85,664,699
68 (368) Line Transformers 74,015,440 4,379,643 858,735 77,536,348
69 (369) Services 22,230,247 (969,277) 613 21,260,357
70 (370) Meters 28,534,851 2,569,202 257 31,103,796
71 (371) Installations on Customer Premises 862,336 339,900 30,248 1,171,988
72 mw_.wwm_m.wmmwa Property on Customer 9,647 9,647
73 (373) Street Lighting and Signal Systems 9,734,404 769,658 284,495 10,219,567
74 @.RM >m.mm~ Retirement Costs for

Distribution Plant
75 “_mww»%o_w_.wﬂ,wuw_o: Plant (Enter Total of 622,687,366 31,410,545 (1,536.684) 3287 | 655,637,882
76 5. REGIONAL TRANSMISSION AND

MARKET OPERATION PLANT
77 (380) Land and Land Rights
78 (381) Structures and Improvements
79 (382) Computer Hardware
80 (383) Computer Software
81 (384) Communication Equipment
a2 (385) z._mo.m__m:mo:m Regional .

Transmission and Market Operation Plant
83 (386) Asset Retirement Costs for

Regional Transmission and Market Oper
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Name of Respondent:
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

This report is:
(1) O An Original
(2) [¥] A Resubmission

Date of Report:
04/14/2023

Year/Period of Report
End of: 2022/ Q4

FOOTNOTE DATA

(a) Concept: ElectricPlantinServiceAdditions

The balances above do not include Operating Lease Activity

FERC FORM No. 1 (REV. 12-05)

Page 204-207
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TOTAL

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-95)
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21

Other Property:

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32
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41

42
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44
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TOTAL

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-96)
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22 138 KV LINE FROM WOODSPOINT SUBSTATION TO AERO SUBSTATION 9,559,395
23 REBUILD CLARYVILLE TO POLE 3,670,674
24 REBUILD HWY 177 POLE 3,484,998
25 PROJECTS LESS THAN $1 MILLION 1,199,983
43 Total 68,720,279

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-87)
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14 Salvage (Credit) 230,449 230,449

15 Hmuﬁww ”_MV" Chrgs. for Plant Ret. (Enter Total of lines (33,515,090) (33,515,090)

16 Other Debit or Cr. Items (Describe, details in footnote):

17.1 | Other Debit or Cr. ltems (Describe, details in footnote):

17.2 | Other Cost of Removal/Salvage Activity (48,946) (48,946)

17.3 | Main Basin ARO (24,371,013) (24,371,013)

17.4 | Gain & Loss on sale/disposal of assets 11,071 11,071

17.5 | Misc. Adjustments 234,239 234,239

18 Book Cost or Asset Retirement Costs Retired

19 _AwM._MﬂMmAmmqv_a of Year (Enter Totals of lines 1, 10, 15, 821,792,072 821,792,072
Section B. Balances at End of Year According to Functional Classification

20 Steam Production 448,375,380 448,375,380

21 Nuclear Production

22 Hydraulic Production-Conventional

23 Hydraulic Production-Pumped Storage

24 Other Production 201,405,690 201,405,690

25 Transmission 12,684,422 12,684,422

26 Distribution 155,338,325 155,338,325

27 Regional Transmission and Market Operation

28 General 3,988,255 3,988,255

29 TOTAL (Enter Total of lines 20 thru 28) 821,792,072 821,792,072

FERC FORM No. 1 (REV. 12-05)
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This report is:

Name of Respondent: ) O An Original Date of Report: Year/Period of Report

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

04/14/2023 End of: 2022/ Q4
2) [¥] A Resubmission

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (Account 123.1)

1.

Report below investments in Account 123.1, Investments in Subsidiary Companies.

2. Provide a subheading for each company and list thereunder the information called for below. Sub-TOTAL by company and give a TOTAL in columns (e), (M, (g) and (h). (a) Investment in Securities -
List and describe each security owned. For bonds give also principal amount, date of issue, maturity, and interest rate. (b) Investment Advances - Report separately the amounts of loans or
investment advances which are subject to repayment, but which are not subject to current settlement. With respect to each advance show whether the advance is a note or open account. List each
note giving date of issuance, maturity date, and specifying whether note is a renewal.

3. Report separately the equity in undistributed subsidiary earnings since acquisition. The TOTAL in column (e) should equal the amount entered for Account 418.1.

4. For any securities, notes, or accounts that were pledged designate such securities, notes, or accounts in a footnote, and state the name of pledgee and purpose of the pledge.

5. If Commission approval was required for any advance made or security acquired, designate such fact in a footnote and give name of Commission, date of authorization, and case or docket number.

6. Report column (f) interest and dividend revenues from investments, including such revenues from securities disposed of during the year.

7. In column (h) report for each investment disposed of during the year, the gain or loss represented by the difference between cost of the investment (or the other amount at which carried in the books
of account if different from cost) and the selling price thereof, not including interest adjustment includible in column (f).

8. Report on Line 42, column (a) the TOTAL cost of Account 123.1.

Gain or
Amount of
Amount of s - Loss from
Line Description of Investment Date Acquired Date of Maturity Investment at mnmr“.__".w_m”_ w.%dm_mm_.i Jwﬂmﬁoﬂww _M“.Mmhu_wﬂ” Investment
No. (a) (b) (©) Beginning of Year m“mv 0 Year Disposed
(d) of
(@ h)
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13

14
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FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-89)
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TOTAL Materials and Supplies

49,533,602

58,276,337

FERC FORM No. 1 (REV. 12-05)

Page 227
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This report is:

Name of Respondent: " OAn Original Date of Report: Year/Period of Report

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

04/14/2023 End of: 2022/ Q4
(2) [ A Resubmission

Allowances (Accounts 158.1 and 158.2)

1.

Report below the particulars (details) called for concerning allowances.

2. Report all acquisitions of allowances at cost.
3. Report allowances in accordance with a weighted average cost allocation method and other accounting as prescribed by General Instruction No. 21 in the Uniform System of Accounts.
4. Report the allowances transactions by the period they are first eligible for use: the current year's allowances in columns (b)-(c), allowances for the three succeeding years in columns (d)-(i), starting
with the following year, and allowances for the remaining succeeding years in columns (j)-(k).
5. Report on Line 4 the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) issued allowances. Report withheld portions Lines 36-40.
6. Report on Line 5 allowances returned by the EPA. Report on Line 39 the EPA's sales of the withheld allowances. Report on Lines 43-46 the net sales proceeds and gains/losses resulting from the
EPA’s sale or auction of the withheld allowances.
7. Report on Lines 8-14 the names of vendors/transferors of allowances acquired and identify associated companies (See "associated company" under "Definitions" in the Uniform System of
Accounts).
8. Report on Lines 22 - 27 the name of purchasers/ transferees of allowances disposed of and identify associated companies.
9. Report the net costs and benefits of hedging transactions on a separate line under purchases/transfers and sales/transfers.
10. Report on Lines 32-35 and 43-46 the net sales proceeds and gains or losses from allowance sales.
Current Year Year One Year Two Year Three Future Years Totals
Line s02 OMMWMH__MM w.n,_m:.\_mv:»oé No. Amt. No. Amt. No. Amt. No. Amt. No. Amt. No. Amt.
No. @) (b) (c) (d (e) " (9) (h) (0] /)] (k) U] (m)
1 Balance-Beginning of Year #1208,112 16,417 41,828 38,518 34,140 887,110 1,209,708 | 16,417
2
3 Acquired During Year:
4 Issued (Less Withheld Allow)
5 Returned by EPA
6
7
8 Purchases/Transfers:
9
10
1
12
13

14
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41

42 Sales

43 Net Sales Proceeds (Assoc. Co.)

44 Net Sales Proceeds (Other)

45 Gains

46 Losses

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-95)
Page 228(ab)-229(ab)a
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This report is:
Name of Respondent: L Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (1) L) An Original 04/14/2023 End of: 2022/ Q4

(2) [¥] A Resubmission

Allowances (Accounts 158.1 and 158.2)

1. Report below the particulars (details) called for concerning allowances.
. Report all acquisitions of allowances at cost.

HWN

with the following year, and allowances for the remaining succeeding years in columns (j)-(k).

. Report allowances in accordance with a weighted average cost allocation method and other accounting as prescribed by General Instruction No. 21 in the Uniform System of Accounts.
. Report the allowances transactions by the period they are first eligible for use: the current year's allowances in columns (b)-(c), allowances for the three succeeding years in columns (d)-(i), starting

5. Report on Line 4 the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) issued allowances. Report withheld portions Lines 36-40.
6. Report on Line 5 allowances returned by the EPA. Report on Line 39 the EPA's sales of the withheld allowances. Report on Lines 43-46 the net sales proceeds and gains/losses resulting from the
EPA’s sale or auction of the withheld allowances.
7. Report on Lines 8-14 the names of vendors/transferors of allowances acquired and identify associated companies (See "associated company” under “Definitions" in the Uniform System of
Accounts).
8. Report on Lines 22 - 27 the name of purchasers/ transferees of allowances disposed of and identify associated companies.
9. Report the net costs and benefits of hedging transactions on a separate line under purchases/transfers and sales/transfers.
10. Report on Lines 32-35 and 43-46 the net sales proceeds and gains or losses from allowance sales.
Current Year Year One Year Two Year Three _“.MM_._M Totals
Line NOx OMMMMHMM mm._w«_wsﬂoé No. Amt. No. Amt. No. Amt. | No. | Amt. | No. | Amt. No. Amt.
No. (a) (b) () (d) (e) U] @ [ O | 6] o {(m)
1 Balance-Beginning of Year 212,021 2,772 5,384 3,615 21,020 | 2,772
2

3 Acquired During Year:

4 Issued (Less Withheld Allow)

5 Returned by EPA

8 Purchases/Transfers:

10

11

12

13

14
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41

42 Sales

43 Net Sales Proceeds (Assoc. Co.)
44 Net Sales Proceeds (Other)

45 Gains

46 Losses

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-95)

Page 228(ab)-229(ab)b
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Name of Respondent:
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

This report is:
(1) O An Original
(2) ] A Resubmission

Date of Report:
04/14/2023

Year/Period of Report
End of: 2022/ Q4

EXTRAORDINARY PROPERTY LOSSES (Account 182.1)

Line
No.

Description of Extraordinary Loss [Include in
the description the date of Commission
Authorization to use Acc 182.1 and period of
amortization (mo, yr to mo, yr).]

()

Total Amount of Loss

(b)

Losses Recognized
During Year

{c)

WRITTEN OFF DURING YEAR

Account
Charged

(d)

Amount Balance at End of Year

e U

10

1"

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21
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Name of Respondent:
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

This report is:
(1) O An Original
(2) (4] A Resubmission

Date of Report:
04/14/2023

Year/Period of Report
End of: 2022/ Q4

UNRECOVERED PLANT AND REGULATORY STUDY COSTS (182.2)

Description of Unrecovered Plant and
Regulatory Study Costs [Include in the
Line | description of costs, the date of COmmission
No. | Authorization to use Acc 182.2 and period of
amortization (mo, yr to mo, yr)]

(a)

Total Amount of Charges
(b)

WRITTEN OFF DURING YEAR

Costs Recognized During Account
Year Charged

(c) (d)

Amount Balance at End of Year
(e) (f)

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40
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Name of Respondent:
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

This report is:
(1) O An Original
2) /) A Resubmission

Date of Report:
04/14/2023

Year/Period of Report
End of: 2022/ Q4

Transmission Service and Generation Interconnection Study Costs

1. Report the particulars (details) called for concerning the costs incurred and the reimbursements received for performing transmission service and generator interconnection studies.
2. List each study separately.

3. In column (a) provide the name of the study.

4. In column (b) report the cost incurred to perform the study at the end of period.

5. In column (c) report the account charged with the cost of the study.

6. In column (d) report the amounts received for reimbursement of the study costs at end of period.

7. In column (e) report the account credited with the reimbursement received for performing the study.

Line
No.

Description

(a)

Costs Incurred During Period

(b)

Account Charged
()

Reimbursements Received Account Credited
During the Period With Reimbursement

(d) (e)

Transmission Studies

10

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18
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Name of Respondent:
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

This report is:
(1) O An Original
(2) [¥] A Resubmission

Date of Report:
04/14/2023

End of: 2022/ Q4

Year/Period of Report

OTHER REGULATORY ASSETS (Account 182.3)

1. Report belo
2. Minor items (

w the particulars (details) called for concerning other regulatory assets, including rate order docket number, if applicable.
5% of the Balance in Account 182.3 at end of period, or amounts less than $100,000 which ever is less), may be grouped by classes.

3. For Regulatory Assets being amortized, show period of amortization.

CREDITS
Written off
. - During . .
. Description and Purpose of Other Regulatory Balance at Beginning of . Written off During the Balance at end of Current
ﬂ:m Assets Current Quarter/Year Al Quarter/Year Period Amount Quarter/Year
0. b) (c) Account ) )
@ ( Charged
(d)

1 INCOME TAXES 5,629,141 3,464 5,632,605

DEMAND SIDE MANAGEMENT COSTS -

(Amortized in accordance with rider revenue) -
2 | Order #2017-321, Order #2015-368, Order 4,684,756 (3,246,326) 1438430

#2014-388

INTEREST RATE HEDGES (Amortized over life
3 associated debt) - Order #2006-563 3,693,879 (2,145,984) 1,547,895
4 ESM DEFERRAL - Order #2017-321 2,183,711 6,946,914 9,130,625
5 FTR DEFERRAL
6 REPS INCREMENTAL COSTS
7 ARO OTHER REGULATORY ASSET 276,656 47,625 324,281
8 GAS ARO OTHER REGULATORY ASSET 6,910,286 640,499 7,550,785
9 ARO CONTRA-REGULATORY ASSET - Order (988,059) (3,391,962) (4,380,021)

#2017-321
10 m%m»_. ASH DEFERRED SPEND - Order #2015- 1,082,696 (1,065,852) 16,844
11 COAL ASH ARO - Order #2015-187 18,684,744 (36,762,785) (18,078,041)
12 M%Z. ASH CONTRA EQUITY - Order #2017- (619,279) 94,620 (524,659)

SPEND RA AMORTIZATION (NC & MW) - Order 182.3, 407.3,
13 #2017-321 12,197,343 421, 431 1,509,458 10,687,885
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31 Cust. Connect Deferral LT Order #2021-00190 918,578 918,578
32 Deferred CIS O&M Current Order # 2021-00190 124,047 124,047
44 TOTAL 140,633,411 (21,232,108) 16,257,589 103,143,714

FERC FORM No. 1 (REV. 02-04)
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This report is:
Name of Respondent: L Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
LA po
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (1) L An Original 04/14/2023 End of: 2022/ Q4
(2) [¥] A Resubmission

FOOTNOTE DATA

(a) Concept: MiscellaneousDeferredDebits

Deferred Regulatory Comm. Expenses (See pages 35@-351) is presented within page 233 by accounts.

(b) Concept: MiscellaneousDeferredDebits

Deferred Regulatory Comm. Expenses (See pages 350-351) is presented within page 233 by accounts.

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-94)
Page 233
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Name of Respondent:
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

This report is:
(1) O An Original

Date of Report:
04/14/2023

(2) 4] A Resubmission

Year/Period of Report
End of: 2022/ Q4

CAPITAL STOCKS (Account 201 and 204)

1. Report below the particulars (details)
preferred stock. If information to mee
year and company title) may be reported in col

called for concerning common and preferred
t the stock exchange reporting requirement ou

stock at end of year, distinguishing separate serie
tlined in column (a) is available from the SEC 10-

umn (a) provided the fiscal years for both the 10-K report and this report are compatible.

s of any general class. Show separate totals for common and
K Report Form filing, a specific reference to report form (i.e.,

2. Entries in column (b) should represent the number of shares authorized by the articles of incorporation as amended to end of year.
3. Give details concerning shares of any class and series of stock authorized to be issued by a regulatory commission which have not yet been issued.
4. The identification of each class of preferred stock should show the dividend rate and whether the dividends are cumulative or noncumulative.
5. State in a footnote if any capital stock that has been nominally issued is nominally outstanding at end of year.
6. Give particulars (details) in column () of any nominally issued capital stock, reacquired stock, or stock in sinking and other funds which is pledged, stating name of pledgee and purpose of pledge.
Outstanding per | £L1"GHCRE]
Bal. Sheet (Total : amount Held by Held by Held by Held by
Class and Series of Stock Number of Par or Stated . amount outstanding Respondent | Respondent xmm_u.o:nmsn mmm_u.o:..uoa..
. Shares Call Price at outstanding 8 As As In Sinking In Sinking
Line and Name of Stock N Value per . A without . .
No Series Authorized by Share End of Year without reduction reduction for Reacquired | Reacquired and Other and Other
: @) Charter ©) (d) for amounts held amounts held Stock (Acct | Stock (Acct Funds Funds
(b) by respondent) by respondent) 217) Shares 217) Cost Shares Amount
Shares Yot @ (h) (@ 0}
e) moun
U]
1 Common Stock (Account
201)
2 Common Stock 1,000,000 15.00 585,333 8,779,995
7 Total 1,000,000 585,333 8,779,995
8 Preferred Stock (Account
204)
9
10
11
12 Total
Capital Stock (Accounts
1 201 and 204) - Data
Conversion
2
3
4
5 Total 1,000,000 585,333 8,779,995




152-05Z abed
(16-21 "a3) L "ON WHO4 O¥34

T T T I T 1



This report is:

Name of Respondent: ™ O aAn Original Date of Report: Year/Period of Report

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

2023-04-14 End of: 2022/ Q4
(2) [¥] A Resubmission

Other Paid-in Capital

1. Report below the balance at the end of the year and the information specified below for the respective other paid-in capital accounts. Provide a subheading for each account and show a total for the
account, as well as a total of all accounts for reconciliation with the balance sheet, page 112. Explain changes made in any account during the year and give the accounting entries effecting such change.

Donations Received from Stockholders (Account 208) - State amount and briefly explain the origin and purpose of each donation.

Reduction in Par or Stated Value of Capital Stock (Account 209) - State amount and briefly explain the capital changes that gave rise to amounts reported under this caption including identification
with the class and series of stock to which related.

Gain or Resale or Cancellation of Reacquired Capital Stock (Account 210) - Report balance at beginning of year, credits, debits, and balance at end of year with a designation of the nature of each
credit and debit identified by the class and series of stock to which related.

Miscellaneous Paid-In Capital (Account 211) - Classify amounts included in this account according to captions that, together with brief explanations, disclose the general nature of the transactions
that gave rise to the reported amounts.

item Amount

Line No. @) (b)

Donations Received from Stockholders (Account 208)

2 Beginning Balance Amount 148,811,383
3.1 Increases (Decreases) from Sales of Donations Received from Stockholders

4 Ending Balance Amount 148,811,383
5 Reduction in Par or Stated Value of Capital Stock (Account 209)

6 Beginning Balance Amount

71 Increases (Decreases) Due to Reductions in Par or Stated Value of Capital Stock

8 Ending Balance Amount

9 Gain or Resale or Cancellation of Reacquired Capital Stock (Account 210)

10 Beginning Balance Amount

11.1 Increases (Decreases) from Gain or Resale or Cancellation of Reacquired Capital Stock

12 Ending Balance Amount

13 Miscellaneous Paid-In Capital (Account 211)

14 Beginning Balance Amount 124,843,806
15.1 Increases (Decreases) Due to Miscellaneous Paid-In Capital

16 Ending Balance Amount 124,843,806
17 Historical Data - Other Paid in Capital
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This report is:
Name of Respondent: > Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (1) & An Original 04/14/2023 End of: 2022/ Q4

(2) ¥ A Resubmission

CAPITAL STOCK EXPENSE (Account 214)

1. Report the balance at end of the year of discount on capital stock for each class and series of capital stock.
2. If any change occurred during the year in the balance in respect to any class or series of stock, attach a statement giving particulars (details) of the change. State the reason for any charge-off of
capital stock expense and specify the account charged.

Line Class and Series of Stock Balance at End of Year
No. (a) (b)

10

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20
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This report is:

Name of Respondent: - Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (1) L An Original 04/14/2023 End of: 2022/ Q4

2) ] A Resubmission

LONG-TERM DEBT (Account 221, 222, 223 and 224)

1.

. For bonds assumed by the respondent, include in column (a) the name of the issuing company as well as a description of the bonds, and in column (b) include the related account number.
_ For Advances from Associated Companies, report separately advances on notes and advances on open accounts. Designate demand notes as such. Include in column (a) names of associated

w~No (S0 wN

Report by Balance Sheet Account the details concerning long-term debt included in Accounts 221, Bonds, 222, Reacquired Bonds, 223, Advances from Associated Companies, and 224, Other
Long-Term Debt.

companies from which advances were received, and in column (b) include the related account number.

_For receivers' certificates, show in column (a) the name of the court and date of court order under which such certificates were issued, and in column (b) include the related account number.
. In a supplemental statement, give explanatory details for Accounts 223 and 224 of net changes during the year. With respect to long-term advances, show for each company: (a)principal advanced

during year (b) interest added to principal amount, and (c) principal repaid during year. Give Commission authorization numbers and dates.

. If the respondent has pledged any of its long-term debt securities, give particulars (details) in a footnote, including name of the pledgee and purpose of the pledge.
. If the respondent has any long-term securities that have been nominally issued and are nominally outstanding at end of year, describe such securities in a footnote.
. If interest expense was incurred during the year on any obligations retired or reacquired before end of year, include such interest expense in column (m). Explain in a footnote any difference

between the total of column (m) and the total Account 427, Interest on Long-Term Debt and Account 430, Interest on Debt to Associated Companies.

9. Give details concerning any long-term debt authorized by a regulatory commission but not yet issued.
W_MMMM wm Outstanding
Obligation, Total (Total
Coupon Rate . ota . u:.o::.a
(For new Related Principal Expense, Total Total Total Nominal Date of AMORTIZATION | AMORTIZATION | outstanding Interest

Line issue, give Account | Amount of | Premium Expense | Premium | Discount Date of Maturity PERIOD Date PERIOD Date without for Year
No. e Number | Debt Issued or pe Issue > From To reduction Amount

commission . (e) (f (9) (i .

Authorization | (® (©) Discount (h) 0 (k) for amounts (m)

numbers and (d) held by

dates) respondent)
(a) 0]

1 Bonds

(Account 221)
2
3
4
5 Subtotal

Reacquired
6 Bonds

(Account 222)
7
8
9
10 Subtotal
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23

4.26%
SERIES DUE
IN 2057

30,000,000

124,475

09/07/2017

09/15/2057

09/07/2017

09/15/2057

30,000,000

1,278,000

24

4.01%
SERIES DUE
IN 2023

25,000,000

111,522

10/03/2018

10/15/2023

10/03/2018

10/15/2023

25,000,000

1,002,500

25

4.18%
SERIES DUE
IN 2028

40,000,000

156,522

10/03/2018

10/15/2028

10/03/2018

10/15/2028

40,000,000

1,672,000

26

4.62%
SERIES DUE
IN 2048

35,000,000

141,522

12/12/2018

12/15/2048

12/12/2018

12/15/2048

35,000,000

1,617,000

27

4.32%
SERIES DUE
IN 2049

40,000,000

195,082

07/17/2019

07/15/2049

07/17/2019

07/15/2049

40,000,000

1,728,000

28

3.23%
SERIES DUE
IN 2025

95,000,000

415,082

09/26/2019

10/01/2025

09/26/2019

10/01/2025

95,000,000

3,068,500

29

3.56%
SERIES DUE
IN 2029

75,000,000

335,082

09/26/2019

10/01/2029

09/26/2019

10/01/2029

75,000,000

2,670,000

30

2.65%
SERIES DUE
IN 2030

35,000,000

127,283

09/15/2020

09/15/2030

09/15/2020

09/15/2030

35,000,000

927,500

31

3.66%
SERIES DUE
IN 2050

35,000,000

127,283

09/15/2020

09/15/2050

09/15/2020

09/15/2050

35,000,000

1,281,000

32

19
Footnote

33

Subtotal

756,720,000

4,735,799

367,900

756,720,000

27,687,076

33

TOTAL

781,720,000

781,720,000

29,167,594

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-96)

Page 256-257
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This report is:

Name of Respondent: o OAn Original Date of Report: Year/Period of Report

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

04/14/2023 End of: 2022/ Q4
(2) [¥] A Resubmission

RECONCILIATION OF REPORTED NET INCOME WITH TAXABLE INCOME FOR FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

1. Report the reconciliation of reported net income for the year with taxable income used in computing Federal income tax accruals and show computation of such tax accruals. Include in the
reconciliation, as far as practicable, the same detail as furnished on Schedule M-1 of the tax return for the year. Submit a reconciliation even though there is no taxable income for the year. Indicate
clearly the nature of each reconciling amount.

2. If the utility is a member of a group which files a consolidated Federal tax return, reconcite reported net income with taxable net income as if a separate return were to be field, indicating, however,
intercompany amounts to be eliminated in such a consolidated return. State names of group member, tax assigned to each group member, and basis of allocation, assignment, or sharing of the
consolidated tax among the group members.

3. A substitute page, designed to meet a particular need of a company, may be used as Long as the data is consistent and meets the requirements of the above instructions. For electronic reporting
purposes complete Line 27 and provide the substitute Page in the context of a footnote.

Line No. vm&o:_mﬁuaaﬁm_mv >=~Mv::»

1 Net Income for the Year (Page 117) 58,552,018
2 Reconciling ltems for the Year

3

4 Taxable income Not Reported on Books

5 Contributions in Aid of Construction 1,906,698
6 Total 1,906,698
9 Deductions Recorded on Books Not Deducted for Return

10 Federal & State Income Tax Deducted for Books 12,005,847
1 Bad Debts 215,809
12 Book Depreciation 74,297,150
13 Capitalized Hardware/Software 137,055
14 Coal Ash Spend, Net of Capitalized Portion 3,508,863
15 Deferred Revenue 501,061
16 Demand Side Management Deferral 3,993,396
17 Emissions Allowance Expense 216
18 Gas Supplier Refunds 576,963
19 Impairment of Plant Assets 6,909,955
20 Lease Adjustments 578,135
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21 AFUDC Interest 1,112,022
22 Asset Retirement Obligation 81,668
23 Benefits Accruals 5,168,113
24 Cares Act Reserve 404,161
25 COLI Adjustments 9,559
26 Cost of Removal 18,355,504
27 Deferred Costs - Customer Connect 1,042,625
28 Environmental Reserve 48,768
29 Equipment/T&D Repairs 22,127,840
30 Mark to Market 16,257
31 MGP Sites 50,536
32 Non-Cash Overhead Basis Adjustment 340,444
33 Regulatory Asset - ESM Deferral 3,554,952
34 Regulatory Asset - Rate Case Expenses 207,864
35 Regulatory Asset - Transition from MISO to PJM 241,727
36 Regulatory Liability - Outage Costs 6,814,157
37 Tax Depreciation/Amortization 77,100,000
38 Tax Gains/Losses 12,440,000
39 Total 150,506,238
27 Federal Tax Net Income 59,031,519
28 Show Computation of Tax:

29 Tax at 21% for Electric, Water, Non-Utility and Gas 12,396,619
30 Prior Year Federal Tax True Ups (2,902,510)
3 Total Federal Income Tax 9,494,109

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-96)

Page 261
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Fed Unemployment

9 Unemployment Tax Federal | 2022 638 8,009 8,255 392 5,859
State Unemployment .

10 Unemployment Tax Various | 2022 579 10,294 24,278 (13,405) 9,903
Subtotal

1 Unemployment 1,217 18,303 32,633 (13,013) 15,762
Tax

12 |KYSglesand | SalesAndUse |y 2022 0 2727118 | 2,341,486 038824 | 424,456 270,609
Use Tax Tax
OH Sales and Sales And Use (o1

13 Use Tax Tax OH 2022 0 49,198 39,002 7,540 17,736 (41,366)
Other Sales Sales And Use 0

14 and Use Tax Tax Other 2022 0 2,173 97,431 99,604
Subtotal Sales

15 And Use Tax 0 2,778,489 2,380,488 143,795 541,796 229,243

16 Fed Income Tax | Income Tax Federal | 2022 | (6,757,397) 9,494,109 (8,402,128) 11,138,840 8,497,247

17 Mw,m . Income Tax KY 2022 | (1,810,628) 1,390,022 | (2,752,400) 2,331,794 1,145,949
Subtotal

18 Income Tax (8,568,025) 10,884,131 | (11,154,528) 13,470,634 9,643,196

19 State Franchise | Franchise Tax | Various | 2022 1 (1) 10,481
Subtotal

20 | Franchise Tax 1 Q) 10,481
Miscellaneous Miscellaneous .

21 Tax Other Tax Various | 2022 0 8,144 8,144 0
Subtotal

22 Miscellaneous 0 8,144 8,144 0
Other Tax

40 TOTAL 9,222,510 34,775,217 4,781,834 39,215,893 27,095,237

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-96)
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Name of Respondent:
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

This report is:
(1) O An Original
(2) ¥ A Resubmission

Date of Report:
04/14/2023

Year/Period of Report
End of: 2022/ Q4

ACCUMULATED DEFERRED INVESTMENT TAX CREDITS (Account 255)

Report below information ap
account balance shown in co

plicable to Account 255. Where appropriate, segregate the balan
lumn (g). Include in column (i) the average period over which the t

ces and transactions by utility and nonutility operations. Explain by footnote any correction adjustments to the
ax credits are amortized.

Deferred for Year >=oom=o:m_ _ﬂmom-__ﬁ_.oza Year's
Balance ><m_,mmm
_.Lzo Account Subdivisions Be mmm_w__.thMw“ ear Account No. Amount Account No. Amount Adjustments | at End of M_._wn_.._nomﬂmﬂ. MMM&MHRMMH
o. (a) (b) (c) (d) (e ® (9 Year to Income )
(h) i)
1 Electric Utility
2 3%
3 4%
4 7%
5 10% a7 411.4 7 30 years
6 30% 3,235,578 3,235,578 | 25 years
8 | pory ecne Enter Total of 3,235,501 7 3,235,578
9 Other (List separately and show
3%, 4%, 7%, 10% and TOTAL)
10 :
1" Gas - 4 881 411.4 881 46 years
12 Gas -10 323,596 411.4 194,608 128,988 | 45 years
13 Total Gas 324,476 195,489 128,988
47 OTHER TOTAL
48 GRAND TOTAL 3,559,977 195,412 3,364,566

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-89)
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